FRONTIER

SERVICES GROUP
Frontier Services Group Limited

TEBRBEERRR A

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(RERETMRIZIZEBRATA)
(Stock Code B% 3 X35 : 00500)

1)

I

n
)
enmn

Annual Report 2017 £ &



CONTENTS
B &

Page(s)
Corporate Information NGIE-¥E 2-3
Chairman’s Statement TERE 4-7
Management Discussion and Analysis BERENREDNT 8-19
Corporate Governance Report EERWME 20 - 29
Environmental, Social and Governance Report RE - LB REARRE 30-35
Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management EERERERABZBREFE 36 - 42
Report of the Directors EEeRs 43 - 54
Independent Auditor’s Report 18 M AZ BRI R 55 - 63
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements KEZIRE TG mE
Consolidated Income Statement Falamk 64
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income REEHKER 65
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position e MBARR R 66 — 67
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity REEREHER 68 - 69
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows FAERERER 70 - 71
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements AR M 72 - 207
Five Year Financial Summary AFMBEHE 208

Annual Report 2017 £ 1



CORPORATE INFORMATION
QA EH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Erik D. Prince (Chairman)

Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Luo Ning (Deputy Chairman)

Dr. Hua Dongyi (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Hu Qinggang

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry
Professor Lee Hau Leung
Dr. Harold O. Demuren

Audit Committee

Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry (Chairman)
Professor Lee Hau Leung
Dr. Harold O. Demuren

Nomination Committee

Mr. Erik D. Prince (Chairman)
Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson
Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry
Professor Lee Hau Leung

Dr. Harold O. Demuren

Remuneration Committee

Professor Lee Hau Leung (Chairman)
Mr. Erik D. Prince

Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson

Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry

Dr. Harold O. Demuren

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISERS

Baker & McKenzie
Michael Li & Co.
Reed Smith LLP

Frontier Services Group Limited 5t ZiR#&EBE B R A 7

EEg

HTES

Erik D. Prince 5e 4 (£ /&)
SRIESE(F/EE)
BELEE(FEE)

E2R B (TEAZ)
AR £

BYFHTES

ERhEisE
TRRHIE
Harold O. Demurent& =+

ERRE®

BRREAE(ERE)
TR HIF
Harold O. Demureni&+

REZEY
Erik D. Prince 54 (/&)
=R NE S A
ERE L
TR
Harold O. Demuren i@+

FMEES

THBREHF(EE)

Erik D. Prince &4
SRIERE

e et

Harold O. Demuren &+

REAME

PR &m0 S A

B B

BEAACE R B
KR AT

SRR
AT o KRR EMELH

TR IBEREBET
Reed Smith LLP



CORPORATE INFORMATION
QA EH

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of Communications Co., Limited
China Everbright Bank

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Suite 3902, 39th Floor
Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road
Admiralty

Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Principal Registrars

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrars and Transfer Office

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 22

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Investor Relations Department
Frontier Services Group Limited
Telephone: (852) 3766 1077

Fax: (852) 3007 0386

Website: www.fsgroup.com
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/frontier

Email: ir@fsgroup.com

FEERRIT
BRI AR AA
B KIRTT
BERITAERAR]

B TRERTT

GRS

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

TREXEMH
B

B8
ERB165R
EREBP O
39123902 %

RIBFERLE
TEERRE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

EERNDBFERTE

BEZFERARAT
a5

EREKRER 183
AR

2218

REEBER

WEEBERE

SEURBERBR AT

ES (852) 3766 1077

g5 : (852) 3007 0386

HED www.fsgroup.com
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/frontier

EFEM : ir@fsgroup.com

Annual Report 2017 &R



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE®E

Dear Shareholders

2017 was an important year for the growth and development
of Frontier Services Group Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”). The Group can now proudly
say that we are the first integrated security, logistics and insurance
company in the world. We offer multinational teams of professionals
working across a global office network, multiple security licenses in
frontier markets, strong asset base and an undisputed track record
of helping clients overcome the complex challenges presented by
doing business in frontier markets.

In the past year, the Group has taken critical steps to build out our
global footprint opening new offices and obtaining security licenses
in key strategic markets across Africa and Asia in order to provide
fully for the evolving needs of our clients. Most importantly, the
Group has made significant investments in personnel by recruiting
more staff, investing in training facilities and facilitating the
graduations of multiple classes from our training courses. Our goal
is simple — to provide world class security, logistics and insurance
services to the highest international standards regardless of the
location.

DELIVERING ACROSS THE BELT & ROAD

The Group’s business is now focused on four strategic Belt & Road
regions — North West, South West, Middle East and Africa. The
North West Region is comprised of Kazakhstan, Uzbekistan and
Pakistan with its regional office in Kashgar, China. Currently, the
focus of the region is serving the China Pakistan Economic Corridor
("CPEC”) and its related projects. In 2017, the Group also opened
offices in the regions to support clients in country with their security,
logistics and insurance needs.

The South West Region is made up of Myanmar, Laos, Thailand and
Cambodia. In Myanmar, the Group signed a partnership agreement
with the country’s leading security firm. With the Myanmar
partnership in place, the Group can now provide security services to
its key clients across the country. In Laos, the Group broke ground
on a new security training facility across the border from China in
Boten.

Operating from the regional office in Dubai, the Middle East is
the Group’s newest region comprised of U.A.E. and Qatar. The
region is home to key logistics routes for the Belt & Road as well
as construction and energy projects. With the Group’s unique
combination of security, logistics, and insurance services, the
Company is ready to face the requirements of our clients in the
region.
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With the longest history, Africa is the Group’s most mature region
with the key focus markets of Kenya, Democratic Republic of Congo
(“DRC”) and South Africa, and the secondary markets of Tanzania,
Mozambique and Uganda. The Group expanded its regional office
in Nairobi, Kenya to be the first regional office to offer integrated
security, logistics, and insurance service solutions.

STRONGER SERVICE OFFERINGS
Security

The Group’s security services are at the core of everything we
do. If our clients are not safe, they cannot work effectively. We
have further expanded our risk mitigation capabilities through
local security licenses, regional operational centers and a global
security center in Dubai overseeing security projects and providing
centralized governance. With local security license in place, clients
can trust that their projects are staffed with the Group employees.
In addition, the Group invested in Beijing’s International Security
and Defense College (“ISDC”) in order to have a training facility for
clients as well as training our own staff to the highest international
standards. Already, the Group has graduated multiple classes of
international security professionals in China. With our new facility in
Boten, Laos, we will be able offer our clients and staff an additional
training location prior to deploying to projects in the region.
Additionally, the Group utilizes the latest technology from tracking
to communications to provide information and communication in real
time, mitigating risk before they can affect our clients.

Logistics

In April, the Group opened our global logistics center in Shanghai,
which now has more than 20 staff focused on supporting our four
regions and 20 countries. The Group is now able to interface
directly with our clients and link them to our overseas offices,
logistics teams and operations. From Africa to China, we help our
clients with the unique challenges of logistics in frontier markets.
With local teams in each of our target countries, we are able to
provide knowledge and past experience saving our clients valuable
time and cost. In addition, with global tracking capabilities, we can
ensure that goods are secure throughout their transit.
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Maleth Aero Limited

Maleth Aero Limited (“MAL”"), the Group’s Malta based air operation
company continued to see positive growth with more aircraft coming
under management and greater utilization of the existing fleet,
covering Europe, Northern Africa and Central Asia. Multiple contracts
for its wide body aircraft over the slower parts of the year and high
demand for charter service allowed for significant growth in revenue.
MAL has recently brought an Airbus 340 under management which
will be the largest aircraft ever to be registered in Malta.

Transit Freight Forwarding (Pty) Ltd

Transit Freight Forwarding (Pty) Ltd (“TFF”) the Group’s logistics
subsidiary headquartered in Johannesburg, South Africa with offices
in Lusaka, Zambia and Harare, Zimbabwe. TFF grew revenues for
the second straight year. Growth was driven by higher demand from
existing customers as well as new specialized logistics projects
across greater Africa.

Phoenix Aviation Limited

Phoenix Aviation Limited, the Group’s Nairobi, Kenya based air
operations company signed a partnership agreement with its longtime
air ambulance partner AMREF Flying Doctors. The agreement gives
allows the businesses to share customers and resources while jointly
marketing their capabilities.

Cheetah Logistics SARL

Cheetah Logistics SARL (“Cheetah”), the Group’s Kinshasa, DRC
based trucking operation, saw further growth improved performance
for the year. With the business now coming under TFF management,
Cheetah is improving the efficiency and profitability of its work.

Insurance

The Group’s insurance business developed under the leadership
of the newly appointed Head of Insurance. The Group insurance
business strategy will focus on large commercial risk coverage in our
four regions and 20 countries. Based on the Group’s unparalleled
advantage in security and logistics services, we are able to offer one-
stop service that packages comprehensive risk management together
with logistics. We help our clients operated identify, transfer and
manage their risks through tailor made insurance programs. Through
our integrated global office network in target markets, The Group looks
to act as a bridge between local insurance company in frontier market
that needs to access Chinese customers and the capacity support
from Chinese insurance market. At the same time, Chinese insurance
companies need to expand their coverage to overseas projects and
look to the Group to play the role of their local representative.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2018 —E-NFERE

With the build out of the platform in 2017, the Group has added REBRZZE—LFEIELFE  TUERE
depth and breadth to its capabilities, teams and service offerings. BREE D BB ARRE 2 Ei REE - It
Moreover, with new management and corporate governance at each SN EAREBESMBARCHATREEREEE
of its subsidiaries, the businesses are operating at greater efficiency JABIZETT - EBEEBREREN KT - BHEH
than ever before. With a significant pipeline of opportunities focused ERREEE R 2 RTBR RS 2 B
on delivering world-class service capabilities across the Belt & Road, B AREREED  BEPAZZE—NF -

we look ahead to 2018 with confidence.

Erik D. Prince Erik D. Prince
Chairman FE
Hong Kong, 26 March 2018 B - NF=A=+"H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION.AND ANALYSIS
BEEEN WK

REVIEW OF RESULTS E 3 {e1)
Overall Performance BRERR
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Revenue WA 724,414 576,889
Cost of direct materials and job expenses BEEMEIAR TERX (131,705) (130,697)
Cost of aircraft management services TR 12 AR 75 X AR (125,448) (48,134)
Data costs BB (6,950) (8,033)
Employee benefit expenses EERFFX (178,612) (166,129)
Sub-contracting charges SEER (295,382) (246,900)
Operating lease rentals KERDNES (22,412) (18,014)
Repairs and maintenance costs BIERREER (35,694) (42,948)
Depreciation and amortisation e R (35,375) (34,115)
Other income and other Ha g A R E bl s/ (&) -
gains/(losses), net F58 6,309 20,911
Other operating expenses HEm=EER (88,552) (84,743)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale PENHEEeREEL
financial assets g 592 10,712
Provision for impairment of goodwill and MEREMELEEZ
other intangibles B E (9,000) (9,970)
Provision for impairment of property, W - R RBEAR
plant and equipment and assets held BEHEEEY
for sale, net BIERE  FE (23,633) (17,362)
Operating loss HEEE (221,448) (198,533)
Interest income B WA 9,463 13,857
Finance costs A kA (18,213) (23,339)
Share of loss of associates FEMRE N EEE (2,859) (561)
Loss before income tax KR FT S BRI E 18 (233,057) (208,576)
Income tax credit/(expenses) s’ e, (FAx) 9,955 (910)
Loss for the year FEBRE (223,102) (209,486)

Frontier Services Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) reported a consolidated
revenue of HK$724,414,000 for the year ended 31 December
2017. The financial effect of the Group’s acquisition of Maleth
Aero Limited (“Maleth”) was the fundamental driver of the 25.6%
annual revenue growth. For 2017, the Group reported an operating
loss of HK$221,448,000, an 11.5% increase over 2016’s reported
operating loss of HK$198,533,000. However, reported results for
2017 included non-recurring income and expenses/provisions, such
as a gain on the disposal of available-for-sale financial assets and
substantial impairment charges against goodwill, other intangibles,
property, plant and equipment and assets held for sale, which
had a combined negative effect on the reporting operating loss by
HK$43,726,000 on a net basis.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR D

As a result, the reported operating loss for 2017 would have
decreased for 5.1% versus the same figure for 2016 if those
extraordinary items had been excluded. While core operating
expenses were reduced as a percentage of revenue and greater
overhead leverage was achieved, the Group’s net loss was
HK$223,102,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Financial Key Performance Indicators

Eit - WA REFIILEEHEIRE - FIRE2
TR L FEZEEREERR T - RFRD
51% - BERLBEBRGRAZED L N
RWEMAEANZERE  FAEEREZEZ
T—+tFF+_A=+—BLEFEZEBRIFEA
223,102,000/8 7T °

MBERENIER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLFE
2016

—T—RF

Basic loss per share FREAAREIE (15.84) centsl (17.06) cents
As at 31 December
Rt+—_A=+—H
2017 2016
gt —E—xE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FAET
Total assets BEMEAE 884,177 912,467
Shareholders’ funds BEES 263,674 275,403
Net asset value per share (excluding FREEFE
non-controlling interests) (BRI i 2 ) 18 cents 22 cents
Cash and bank balances B MIRITTHET 302,057 299,388
Current ratio Dk =S 1.42 1.34
Total liabilities-to-total assets ratio BEBEELX 0.56 0.56
Price to book ratio MERE 9.11 4.66

The basic loss per share was HK$0.1584 for 2017, relative to basic
loss per share of HK$0.1706 for 2016. At 31 December 2017, the
Group had total assets of HK$884,177,000, marking a 3.1% decline
versus the same figure for 2016 due to minimal capital expenditures
and impairment charges taken against intangibles, property, plant
and equipment and assets held for sale. The current ratio and
total liabilities-to-total assets ratio at year-end 2017 were 1.42 and
0.56 respectively. While the Group’s total liabilities-to-total assets
ratio experienced very little increase, the material annual change
in the current ratio resulted from an increase principally in trade
receivables and payables during 2017. The pronounced increase
in the Company’s share price over 2017, closing at year-end at
HK$1.64, and a decline in Group’s net assets were the primary
catalysts in the increase in the price-to-book ratio.

ZE—EFEREXEBIEAR015848T - M
ZE-AFAAGREKXEIE01706B T -
R_BE—+FE+-_A=+—8 r&E=EEFE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION.AND ANALYSIS
BEEEN WK

Revenue

L'ON

2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Aviation and logistics business Mz R YmER 704,587 555,462
Financial market information business SRS EMER 19,827 21,427
724,414 576,889

Consolidated revenue for 2017 was HK$724,414,000, marking
growth of 25.6% on an annual basis. The incorporation of full-year
results for Maleth was the primary driver of the annual growth in
total revenue. More specifically, Maleth contributed approximately
HK$143,757,000 of revenue to the Group’s 2017 revenue. As a
result, and in line with past years, aviation and logistics (“AL”")
business accounted for 97% of the Group’s 2017 revenue. The
Group’s remaining legacy unit, financial market information (“FMI”)
business, produced HK$19,827,000 of revenue for the full-year
2017, a decline of 7.5% versus 2016 as market demand slackened.

Gain on Disposal of Available-for-Sale Financial Assets

The gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets for the
year ended 31 December 2017 represents the net gain on disposal
of shares of Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (“YFGL”) in the
market.

Provision for Impairment of Other Intangibles

Other intangibles of HK$9,000,000 associated with the Group’s
operating businesses was impaired in 2017. The decision to
take this impairment against an AL subsidiary, namely Phoenix
Aviation Limited (“PAL”), was reached after a careful internal
review of those business units and discussion among the Group’s
senior management. Impairment made due to the scale down of
its maintenance business and a decline in the franchise’'s core
air ambulance business within a generally more competitive
marketplace in east and central Africa, which has had a secondary,
negative effect on pricing. In the future, the Group will continue
to monitor the carrying value of its acquired other intangibles in
accordance with its accounting practices.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWmE DM

Provision for Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and
Assets Held for Sale, net

The Group recorded HK$23,633,000 provision for impairment loss
against the aircraft fleet for the year ended 31 December 2017.
The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is measured
periodically against the resale market for comparable assets. The
market for aviation assets is cyclical, with substantial changes in
resale pricing common over time. Consequently, the Group impaired
specific aircraft within its fleet to better reflect the likely value
achievable in a resale scenario as at 31 December 2017, and will
closely monitor if an impairment indicator is identified.

REVIEW OF OPERATING SEGMENTS
Aviation and Logistics Business

With continuous growth in the Group’s AL segment in 2017,
HK$704,587,000 of revenue was reported from operating
subsidiaries mainly from Africa, southern Europe and mainland
China. The effects of Maleth acquisition and organic growth
in Transit Freight Forwarding Proprietary Limited (“TFF”) were
fundamental catalyst in AL segment revenue growth comparing
2016. The Group will continue to implement cost containment
measures to increase profitability and potential value in the AL
segment.

TFF, a South African based warehouse and logistics company,
generated HK$364,005,000 of revenue in 2017. This 13.1% revenue
growth reflected the effect price increases at TFF in 2017 and were
in line with management expectations. With new board members
and senior management, TFF conducted a new thorough cost
analysis and will develop a specialty logistics division to further
increase its operational efficiency and profitability of the company.

Cheetah Logistics SARL, a Congolese logistics company, has
improved its performance in 2017 and will continue to strive for
further improvements in their revenue and profitability in 2018.

Maleth, a Malta based aircraft management services company,
was acquired in July 2016. With full-year results included, Maleth
contributed HK$143,757,000 to total revenue in 2017. With expected
expansion through managing more aircraft, we are optimistic about
the operations and results of Maleth in 2018.
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BEEEN WK

PAL, a Kenyan aviation company based in Nairobi, reported a 24.0%
decline in revenue compared to 2016. With political instability and
decreased flying hours from the United Nations deeply impacted
on the overall results of PAL. Improved performance is expected
from PAL upon the implementation of cost containment measures in
2017.

The Group has increased its segment loss by 27.6% to
HK$161,987,000 comparing 2017. With the launch of new global
logistics centers and various cost containment measures, positive
impacts will be expected from AL results in 2018.

Financial Market Information Business (“FMI segment”)

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s FMI segment
generated reported revenue of HK$19,827,000. This legacy
business unit provides online financial market data and related
information. FMI segment revenue for 2017 represents a 7.5%
decline against comparable figure for 2016. Considered non-
core to the Group’s overall results and outlook, the FMI segment
produced a small operating loss of HK$219,000 for the year ended
31 December 2017 as demand for its services declined during the
year.

Direct Investments

Direct investments is the Group’s segment for available-for-sale
financial assets and other direct investment holdings. For 2017, the
Group generated HK$5,875,000 in operating loss from the direct
investments segment. This resulted from an expenses provision for
closing down one of the associates being partially offset by the gain
on disposal of shares of YFGL in the open market during the year.
For 2016, the comparable reported profit from the direct investments
segment also included a profit of HK$10,712,000 resulting from the
disposal of shares in YFGL.

PROSPECTS

In 2017, the Group completed major progress on the buildout of
its four regions, including expanding its office footprint into key
markets, establishing security licenses and partnerships, new
facilities and expanding its team of international professionals
across its service offerings. With these new capabilities, the Group
enters 2018 with a full pipeline of programs and projects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Company’s combines security, logistics and insurance services
into integrated solutions for its client. Security continues to be the
main differentiator and the entry point for key customers. Projects
often begin with security risk assessments (“SRA”) and insurance
plans. Once the projects move forward, the suggestions laid out in
the SRA then transforms into the active security management and a
full insurance solution for the project. With a total risk management
solution in place though security and insurance services, clients
can then focus on logistics to bring in key personnel, equipment
and materials. After the project completes construction and is
operational, clients then focus on logistics for offtake and supply
chain. This integrated solution through the project life cycle allows
the Group to serve client as a true partner and not just a one-off
service provider.

Key projects along the Belt and Road continue to be the Company’s
main focus along with major infrastructure, resources and oil & gas
projects in its target markets. In addition, the Company is focused
on special projects, which are often public private partnerships
(“PPP”) in national infrastructure, resources, energy, fisheries and
security. These special projects allow the Group to leverage its
deep relationships, subsidiary companies and service offerings in
major concession agreements, where the Group serves as both an
equity partner and service provider.

Security capabilities of the Group are further enhanced through the
expansion of the Dubai based global security center. The center
maintains the latest technology to monitor and communicate with
operations and offices around the world. Security services are
split between training and operations. Training includes the firm’s
security training facility in Beijing and new facilities to be built
in strategic locations for the North West and South West regions
of the Belt and Road. These training centers are focused on
preparing both the Group clients and internal personnel for work
in frontier markets. In addition, the firm also has mobile training
teams that can be sent to the project site to supplement a client or
team’s knowledge base. Operations are focused on process and
procedures from the global office and close communication with
the Regional Operations Centers (“ROC”) and Tactical Operations
Centers (“TOC”) at the project site.

Secured logistics continues to leverage the firm’s local capabilities
and office combined with the oversight from the group’s global
logistics center in Shanghai. Integration of logistics subsidiaries with
air, ground and sea capabilities across Asia to Africa gives the Group
a unique advantage in door to door logistics with an emphasis in last
mile capability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION.AND ANALYSIS
BEEEN WK

Insurance services are focused on major projects across the Belt and
Road as a part of the Group’s total risk management solution. The
Group’s advantage lies with its significant footprint in target markets,
security service offerings and partnerships with local insurance
companies. By being able to serve clients locally while leveraging
the international insurance market, the Group is able to offer unique
insurance solutions not available in the market.

With the significant progress of 2017 and a strong pipeline for
2018, the Group looks forward to its strongest prospects for growth
since the Company’s inception. In 2018, the Group will be able to
demonstrate its unique capabilities in overcoming the challenges of
frontier markets.

EMPLOYEES

The Group has developed its human resources policies and
procedures based on performance and merit. The Group ensures
that the pay level of its employees is competitive and employees
are rewarded on a performance-related basis within the general
framework of the Group’s salary and bonus systems. The Group
provides on-the-job training to its employees in addition to retirement
benefit schemes and medical insurance. Employees are offered
discretionary year-end bonus based on individual merit.

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible directors and employees
of the Group to recognise their contribution to the success of the
Group. The Company has granted 14,497,030 share options under
its share option scheme during the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: 24,632,060).

The Company also operates a share award scheme to recognise the
contributions by certain employees and persons to the Group and to
provide them with incentives in order to retain them for the continual
operation and development of the Group and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group. The Company has
granted 1,137,000 shares under its share award scheme during the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: 10,067,000).

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 December 2017
was 432 (2016: 430).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWmE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 31 December 2017, the Group recorded total assets of
HK$884,177,000 (2016: HK$912,467,000) which were financed
by liabilities of HK$496,236,000 (2016: HK$513,536,000), non-
controlling interests of HK$124,267,000 (2016: HK$123,528,000)
and shareholders’ equity of HK$263,674,000 (2016:
HK$275,403,000). The Group’s net asset value per share (excluding
non-controlling interests) as at 31 December 2017 amounted to
HK$0.18 (2016: HK$0.22).

The Group recorded cash and bank balances of HK$302,057,000
(2016: HK$299,388,000) and total borrowings of HK$258,347,000
(excluding facility arrangement fees of HK$4,788,000) (2016:
HK$318,164,000 (excluding facility arrangement fees of
HK$1,380,000)) as at 31 December 2017. During the year ended 31
December 2017, bank loans amounting to HK$153,705,000 (2016:
HK$220,921,000) in aggregate were matured and repaid by internal
resources. The Group’s borrowings, which comprise of bank loans,
finance leases and other loan and are denominated in United States
dollars (“US$”), South African Rand (“ZAR”) and Euro (“EUR”"), will
mature in 1 to 4 years (2016: 1 to 4 years) as at 31 December 2017.
Except for the borrowings of HK$59,439,000 (2016: HK$45,635,000),
which are interest bearing at fixed rates, the remaining balances
of HK$198,908,000 (2016: HK$272,529,000) are interest bearing at
floating rates as at 31 December 2017. On the basis of the Group’s
net borrowings (total borrowings less cash and bank balances)
relative to the shareholders’ equity and non-controlling interests, the
Group’s gearing ratio was Nil (2016: 0.07) as at 31 December 2017.

On 13 March 2017, the Company issued 216,000,000 new shares at
an issue price of HK$0.90 each. Net proceeds of HK$192,456,000
was raised for the working capital for the development and
expansion of the Group’s existing AL Business. As at 31 December
2017, approximately HK$134,000,000 has been used for the
intended purpose of which approximately HK$33,100,000 has
been used for aircraft operation, approximately HK$8,300,000 on
for license fees, approximately HK$7,500,000 for office related
deposits, approximately HK$75,100,000 for other operating
expenditures such as staff costs, rentals and transportation service
fees, and approximately HK$10,000,000 for loan interest payment.
The remaining net proceeds will be used as intended.
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At 31 December 2017, the Company had 351,162,575 outstanding
share options (2016: 361,856,173), out of which 146,046,918 share
options (2016: 133,949,888) were granted under its share option
schemes. If all of the remaining outstanding share options were
exercised, a gross proceeds of approximately HK$358,000,000
(2016: HK$339,000,000) in aggregate would be raised before
deducting any issuance expenses. Subsequent to the financial
position date, 50,000,000 share options were exercised at an
exercise price at HK$1.50 each and 52,557,828 share options were
lapsed on 9 January 2018 and 10 January 2018 respectively.

Treasury Policies

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies and has tight
controls over its cash management. The Group’s cash and bank
balances are held mainly in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), Renminbi
(“RMB”), US$ and EUR. Other than the bank deposits pledged for
the Group’s bank borrowings, surplus cash is generally placed
in term deposits and investments in light of the Group’s funding
requirements.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Related
Hedges

The Group currently operates mainly in Hong Kong, Africa, Malta
and mainland China.

For operations in Hong Kong, most of the transactions are
denominated in HK$ and US$. The exchange rate of US$ against
HK$ is relatively stable, and the related currency exchange risk is
considered minimal.

For operations in Africa, most of the transactions are denominated
in US$, Kenyan Shillings (“KES”) and ZAR. The exchange rates of
KES and ZAR against HK$ have decreased by 0.1% and increased
by 11.7% respectively during the year ended 31 December 2017.
No financial instrument was used for hedging purposes for the year
due to the prohibitive cost of available hedging opportunities. The
Group is closely monitoring the currency exchange risk of KES and
ZAR and will consider the use of financial instrument for hedging
purposes, if necessary.

For operations in Malta, most of the transactions are denominated
in EUR and US$. The exchange rate of EUR against HK$ has
increased by 14.0% during the year ended 31 December 2017. No
financial instrument was used for hedging purposes for the year.
The Group is closely monitoring the currency exchange risk of
EUR and will consider the use of financial instrument for hedging
purposes, if necessary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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For operations in mainland China, most of the transactions are
denominated in RMB. The conversion of RMB into foreign currencies
is subject to the rules and regulations of the foreign exchange
controls promulgated by the Chinese government. The exchange
rate of RMB against HK$ has devalued since August 2015. No
financial instrument was used for hedging purposes for the period.
The Group is closely monitoring the currency exchange risk of
RMB and is looking for any opportunities to mitigate the currency
exchange risk of RMB.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries and
Associates

On 28 April 2017, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a conditional investment agreement for the acquisition
of 25% equity interest in the International Security and Defense
College (“ISDC"), a training school in Beijing principally engaged in
the provision of private security training courses, for a consideration
of approximately RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$12,156,000). Subsequently, the wholly-owned subsidiary
entered into a loan agreement with ISDC, pursuant to which the
wholly-owned subsidiary would provide a loan of RMB5,749,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$6,877,000). The acquisition of 25%
equity interest in ISDC was completed on 7 July 2017.

Save as mentioned above, the Group did not have any other
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and associates
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Charges on Assets

At 31 December 2017, the Group had bank deposits amounting
to approximately HK$231,365,000 (2016: HK$216,208,000) and
certain trade receivables of approximately HK$11,682,000 (2016:
HK$9,366,000) pledged to banks as security for bank borrowings.
In addition, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company has
also issued a fixed and floating debenture on all the assets of this
subsidiary as securities for its banking facilities.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets and
Capital Expenditure Commitments

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had capital expenditure
commitments for investment in associates and purchase of
land-use-rights amounting to HK$7,058,000 (2016: Nil) and
HK$35,889,000 (2016: Nil) respectively. Apart from the aforesaid,
the Group did not have any concrete future plans for material
investments or capital assets and material capital expenditure
commitments as at 31 December 2017.

However, the Group always seeks for new investment opportunities
in order to broaden the revenue and profit potential of the Group
and enhance shareholders’ value in long term.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION.AND ANALYSIS
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Contingent Liabilities

The Group, in the ordinary course of its business, is involved in
various claims, suits, investigations and legal proceedings that
arise from time to time. Although the Group does not expect
that the outcome in any of these legal proceedings, individually
or collectively, will have a material adverse effect on its
financial position or results of operations, litigation is inherently
unpredictable. Therefore, the Group could incur judgements or enter
into settlements of claims that could adversely affect its operating
results or cash flows in a particular period.

At 31 December 2017, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company has issued a fixed and floating debenture on all the
assets of this subsidiaries as securities for its banking facilities
of US$3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$23,454,000)
(2016: US$3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$23,268,000))
provided by a bank to a customer as a guarantee against the
subsidiary’s potential failure to meet obligations to complete the
services. At 31 December 2017, the bank has issued guarantees of
US$1,322,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$10,335,000) (2016:
US$1,420,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$11,014,000)) under
this arrangement.

Events After The Financial Position Date
Exercise of Share Options

On 9 January 2018, Mr. Erik D. Prince, the chairman of the
Company, exercised his right to subscribe 50,000,000 share
options, out of his total share options of 102,557,828 at an exercise
price of HK$1.50 per share which were granted to him on 10
January 2014 under the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 28 March 2012. The total proceeds of approximately
HK$75,000,000 resulted from the exercise of share options were
received by the Company. The remaining unexercised share options
of 52,557,828 at an exercise price of HK$1.50 were subsequently
expired and lapsed on 10 January 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWmE DM

Subscription of Shares

On 2 March 2018, the Company entered into three separate
subscription agreements with three subscribers, namely Easy Flow
Investment Limited (“Easy Flow”), Taiping Trustees Limited and
Trinity Gate Limited (together as the “Subscribers”), pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue to
the Subscribers, and the Subscribers has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for up to a total of 640,000,000 subscription shares at
the subscription price of HK$1.30 each, amounting to total gross
proceeds of no more than approximately HK$832 million. As Easy
Flow is a substantial shareholder of the Company and a connected
person of the Company. The subscription of shares by Easy Flow
constitutes a connected transaction for the Company under the
Listing Rules and is subject to the reporting, announcement and
Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 2 March 2018 for more information.

Except as disclosed above and elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Group did not have any other material events
occurred subsequent to the financial position date.
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INTRODUCTION

Frontier Services Group Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries as the “Group”) is firmly committed to the overall
standards of corporate governance and has always recognised
the importance of accountability, transparency and protection of
shareholders’ interest in general. The Company has adopted the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its own corporate
governance policy, subject to amendments from time to time.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CG CODE

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board of
Directors (the “Board”) of the Company has reviewed the Group’s
corporate governance practices and is satisfied that the Company
has complied with the code provisions of the CG Code from time to
time.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At the date of this annual report, the Board of the Company
comprises 8 directors, including 5 executive directors (Mr. Erik D.
Prince (Chairman), Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson (Deputy Chairman),
Mr. Luo Ning (Deputy Chairman), Dr. Hua Dongyi (Chief Executive
Officer) and Mr. Hu Qinggang) and 3 independent non-executive
directors (Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry, Professor Lee Hau Leung and
Dr. Harold O. Demuren).

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
separate and are exercised by different individuals. One of the
independent non-executive directors is a professional accountant,
which is in compliance with the requirement of the Listing Rules.
There are also 3 board committees under the Board, which are the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee.

The key responsibilities of the Board include, among other things,
formulating the Group’s overall strategies, setting management
targets, regulating and reviewing internal controls, formulating the
Company’s corporate governance policy, supervising management’s
performance while the day-to-day operations and management
of the Group are delegated by the Board to management, and
ensuring adequacy of resources, qualifications, experience and
training programs and budget of the financial staff.
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In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting of the Company one-third of the directors for the
time being or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation, provided that every director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

Each of the independent non-executive directors is appointed for a
specific term of not more than 3 years and is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual general
meeting in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and the Listing
Rules. To determine the non-executive directors’ independence,
assessments are carried out upon appointment, annually and at
any other time where the circumstances warrant reconsideration by
the Nomination Committee. The Company has received from each
of the independent non-executive directors an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Board determined that all the independent non-executive directors
meet the requirements for independence as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. Mr. Luo Ning is an employee of CITIC Group
Corporation, a substantial shareholder of the Company. There is no
material relationship between each of the Board members.

Every newly appointed director will be given an induction so as to
ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the Group’s
business and of his/her duties and responsibilities under the Listing
Rules and the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements.
The directors may request the Company to provide independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense to discharge his/her
duties to the Company. Directors’ training is an ongoing process.
During the year, the Company had provided to the directors regular
updates and presentations on changes and developments to the
Group’s business and to the legislative regulatory environments
in which the Group operates. All directors are also encouraged
to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expense. All
directors are required to provide the Company with their record of
training they received during the year ended 31 December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board has
reviewed and monitored the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management. The Board has
also reviewed and ensured compliance of the relevant legal and
regulatory requirements, the code of conducts, the CG Code and
the disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements and ensuring that the financial statements are
prepared as to give a true and fair view and on a going concern
basis in accordance with the statutory requirements and applicable
financial reporting standards.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises 3 independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry (Chairman),
Professor Lee Hau Leung and Dr. Harold O. Demuren.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required,
among other things, to oversee the relationship with the independent
auditor, to review the Group’s interim and annual consolidated
financial statements, to monitor compliance with statutory and listing
requirements, to ensure adequacy of resources, qualifications,
experience and training programs and budget of the financial staff,
and to engage independent legal or other advisers if necessary
to perform investigations. The Audit Committee also takes up
the role as a risk management committee of the Company and is
responsible for facilitating the risk assessment process and timely
communication with the Board where appropriate, and ensuring key
business and operational risks are properly identified and managed.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee,
among other matters, reviewed reports from the independent auditor
regarding the audit on annual consolidated financial statements
and the review on nonexempt continuing connected transactions,
discussed the risk management and internal control of the Group,
and met with the independent auditor. The Audit Committee, acting
as a risk management committee of the Company, reviewed the
scope, extent and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. Further information is disclosed in the
section titled “RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL”
below.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises 5 directors, namely
Mr. Erik D. Prince (Chairman), Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson, Mr.
Yap Fat Suan, Henry, Professor Lee Hau Leung and Dr. Harold O.
Demuren.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
determined with reference to the CG Code. Under its terms
of reference, the Nomination Committee is responsible for
identifying potential directors and making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors of
the Company. Potential new directors are selected on the basis
of their qualifications, skills and experience which the Nomination
Committee considers will make a positive contribution to the
performance of the Board.
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The Nomination Committee is also responsible for the review of the
Board’s diversity policy, considering factors including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service
of board members, and review the measurable objectives that the
Board has set for implementing the Board’s diversity policy, and
monitor the progress on achieving the measurable objectives.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises 5 directors,
namely Professor Lee Hau Leung (Chairman), Mr. Erik D. Prince, Mr.
Ko Chun Shun, Johnson, Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry and Dr. Harold O.
Demuren.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee have been
determined with reference to the CG Code. Under the terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee, the responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee include, inter alia, assisting the Company
in the administration of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policies, making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management, and ensuring that no director
or any of his/her associates is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the work performed by
the Remuneration Committee includes, inter alia, the review of the
Group’s remuneration policy for its executive directors and senior
management and their levels of remuneration.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In 2013, the Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company considered diversity of board members can be achieved
through consideration of a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All board appointments are based on merit and contribution, and
candidates are considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Nomination
Committee reviews the Policy on a regular basis and discusses any
revisions that may be required, and recommends any such revisions
to the Board for consideration and approval.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT MEETINGS

The attendance records of each director at the various meetings of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out
as below:

ERHECE

BE-T—tF+-A=+—HILFE ZEF
AR A A RS2 EERANT -

Attended/Eligible to Attend

BHE/AERLER
Annual Audit Nomination Remuneration
general Board committee committee committee
meeting meetings meetings meeting meetings
RE Ezg ENZzEg REZEE FWzag
BEXE = 6 = =6
Number of meetings BENE 1 8 2 1 4
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Erik D. Prince Erik D. Prince £ 4 il 718 N/A i A il 4/4
Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson BRIBELE il 8/8 N/ATNER il 4/4
Mr. Luo Ning BRELE il 6/8 N/A i N/ATiE A N/A T A
Dr. Hua Dongyi ER—E+ il 6/8 N/A i N/ATiE A N/A T A
Mr. Hu Qinggang TRERIEE il 5/8 N/AEA N/ATER N/ARER
Independent Non-Executive BUFHITEE
Directors
Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry BRELE 1 5/8 212 A 4/4
Professor Lee Hau Leung FHEHE i 5/8 2/2 i 4/4
Dr. Harold O. Demuren Harold O. Demurenfd+ il 5/8 2/2 il 4/4
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BEECEFRS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the directors’
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry by the
Company, all directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code regarding directors’
securities transactions throughout the year ended 31 December
2017.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, all current directors
have participated in continuous professional development as shown
below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Erik D. Prince
Reading relevant materials in relation to listing rules update and
corporate governance

Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson
Reading relevant materials in relation to listing rules update and
corporate governance

Mr. Luo Ning
Reading relevant materials in relation to listing rules update and
corporate governance

Dr. Hua Dongyi
Reading relevant materials in relation to listing rules update and
corporate governance

Mr. Hu Qinggang
Reading relevant materials in relation to listing rules update and
corporate governance

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry
Reading relevant materials in relation to listing rules update and
corporate governance

Professor Lee Hau Leung
Reading relevant materials in relation to listing rules update and
corporate governance

Dr. Harold O. Demuren
Reading relevant materials in relation to listing rules update and
corporate governance
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company engaged PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong as
its statutory auditor for the year ended 31 December 2017. The
statement by the independent auditor of the Company and the
Group regarding their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Company and the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 55 to 63 of this Annual
Report.

The remuneration in respect of services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong to the Group in 2017 is
summarised as follows:

BB &

HE-T—tF+=A=+—HILFE  ALT
EREBR AR ACE R D B AR R
0 - DR R A E 2 BB A A
A R A B3 75 2 PR 95 AN 5
%558 % 63 B2 BUBRMEABE -

R-Z—+F  GREEREICGESTIER
FrAAEERERE 2B dnT

HK$’000

TET

Auditing services EBZRB 2,945

Non-auditing services EEZIRTE

Fee for review of interim report EHPEHREER 181
Fee for corporate governance reporting, and PEEAREANIRE  Hek

environmental, social and governance reporting ERMEER 320

3,446

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company does not engage an external service provider as
its Company Secretary. Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason, being the
Company Secretary of the Company, has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2017.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Responsibilities

The Board has the overall responsibility for setting forth proper risk
management culture and risk appetite for the Group, evaluating and
determining the level of risk that the Group should take and monitor
regularly, and demonstrating openness, integrity and accountability
to stakeholders in the decision-making process. The Board, through
the Audit Committee, has also devoted to maintain sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems in order to
safeguard the assets, to achieve business objectives and to ensure
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations. The Group’s
management continues to allocate resources for the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems. The Group established the risk management and
internal control systems with aims to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatements or losses cased by judgment in decision making
process, human error, fraud or other irregularities.
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Control Framework

Risk Management Policy has been established to set forth the
risk management framework and to maintain a consistent basis
for the identification, analysis, evaluation, treatment, monitoring
and reporting of risks at all levels across the Group to support the
achievement of the Group’s overall strategic objectives.

The Group has adopted the Enterprise Risk Management framework,
which is published by the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations
of the Treadway Commission (the “COSO”) and involves identifying
risks and opportunities that are relevant to the Group’s objectives
and organisational structure, evaluating those using appropriate
qualitative and quantitative techniques, and formulating risk
management plans that are consistent with the Group’s risk
appetite. The Group has chosen both “top-down and bottom-up”
approaches in relation to risk management and internal control. It
involves collating and appraising bottom-up input from the heads
of all corporate departments, and senior management of business
units of the Group, with refinements and adjustments through top-
down input from the Board in an iterative manner.

With reference to the Internal Audit Manual of the Group, the
Group’s internal audit function has been established to provide risk-
based and objective assurance, advice and insight to the Board
through the Audit Committee. It also helps the Group accomplish
its strategic objectives by bringing a systematic and disciplined
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk
management, internal control and governance processes of the
Group. To ensure that key risks are addressed, expectations are
managed and results are properly communicated, the internal audit
function maintains on-going communication with the Board, the
Audit Committee, senior management, other assurance providers
and employees during audit assignment planning, execution and
wrap-up.

2017 Review

During the year, the Audit Committee and the Board have
conducted an ongoing review and monitoring of the effectiveness of
the risk management, reviewed and discussed the internal control
review report submitted. A comprehensive risk assessment exercise
was conducted to identify and prioritise the key risks perceived and
faced by the Group. Certain key risks summarised in the form of a
risk register were identified and categorised into strategic business,
financial, operational and compliance aspects in a risk heat map in
terms of impact and likelihood of occurrence. The Group performed
internal control related activities according to the Internal Audit Plan
of 2017. The internal audit function assessed the major changes
in the organisational structure that occurred during the previous
audit cycle and the changes that were planned for the coming
audit cycle. Revisiting and updating the internal audit plan was
considered for any major organisational changes.
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Based on the reviews, the Board considered that (i) the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems were effective and
adequate with reference to the COSO; and (ii) the Group had
complied satisfactorily with the requirements of the CG Code in
respect of risk management and internal control systems.

Subsequent to the yearend, the Company has put in place internal
control measures to regularly monitor, manage, control and/or
mitigate any possible sanction risks in the countries wherein the
Group has or will have operations. The internal control measures,
including but not limited to, the followings:—

o To assess and evaluate sanction risks, with consultation with
external legal counsel, before the Group carries out new
business in any sanctioned countries;

o To perform regular review and assess sanction risks with
consultation with external legal counsel on the countries where
the Group has business operations and which may be subject
to sanctions imposed by other countries;

o To engage external legal counsel to provide regular training
programs and information update in relation to trade or
economic sanctions to senior management of the Group; and

o If any, to disclose the status of the Group’s business in the
sanction countries and its business intention relating to the
sanction countries in the interim and annual reports, and to
issue an announcement as soon as practicable to inform its
shareholders if it believes in sanction countries will put them
at risk.

Furthermore, the Group has established a sanctions risk
management committee (comprising the chairman of the Board
and all three independent non-executive directors and chaired by
the Chief Executive Office of the Company) to take charge of such
measures.

During the year, Cheetah Logistics SARL (“Cheetah”), a company
provides transport logistics services, continues to conduct its
business in the DRC, which is a country subject to certain sanctions
imposed by the governments of the US, EU, UN and Australia
(the “Authorities”). The Company has consulted and received
confirmation from a legal adviser that Cheetah’s operation in the
DRC does not fall within the scope of sanctioned activities imposed
by the Authorities therefore it is not subject to any sanctions risk.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS

The Board recognises the importance of effective communication
with the shareholders and investors. The Company communicates
with the shareholders and investors through various channels
including investors’ conferences, TV interviews, press releases, and
publication of interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars
and other corporate communications and publications available on
the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the
Company.
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The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
direct communication between the Board and the shareholders.
The Company encourages the participation of the shareholders
through annual general meetings and other general meetings where
the shareholders meet and exchange views with the Board, and to
exercise their right to vote at meetings. The Company shall arrange
notices of meetings and circulars containing details on proposed
resolutions to be sent to the shareholders. At general meetings,
separate resolutions are proposed on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual directors.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
direct communication between the Board and the shareholders.
The Company encourages the participation of the shareholders
through annual general meetings and other general meetings where
the shareholders meet and exchange views with the Board, and to
exercise their right to vote at meetings. The Company shall arrange
notices of meetings and circulars containing details on proposed
resolutions to be sent to the shareholders. At general meetings,
separate resolutions are proposed on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual directors.

The Board always ensures that shareholders’ and investors’ views
are heard and understood, and welcomes their questions and
concerns relating to the Group’s management and governance. The
Company’s website provides email address and telephone number
to enable the shareholders to make any enquiries and concerns to
the Board. Shareholders may also at any time send their enquiries
and concerns to the Board by addressing to the Chief Executive
Officer by post or by email. The contact details are set out in the
Corporate Information section of this Annual Report.

Subject to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the
“Act”) and Bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws of the Company, shareholders
holding in aggregate not less than 10% of the paid-up capital of
the Company have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary of the Company, to request a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall
be held within three months after the deposit of such requisition.
Any number of shareholders representing not less than 5% of the
total voting rights of the Company on the date of the requisition
or not less than 100 shareholders of the Company are entitled to
put forward a proposal for consideration at a general meeting of
the Company. Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in Section 79 of the Act for putting forward
such proposal at a general meeting.

There were no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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ABOUT THE REPORT

This is the second Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
report of Frontier Services Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”). The report summarises the
performance for the year ended 31 December 2017.

This report covers the key operations of the Group in two
differentiated services, including distribution and warehousing,
and aviation. The report is compiled in accordance with the ESG
Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Group believes that creating long-term value for stakeholders
is important to sustain its business success. As a company with
services spanning across several continents, the Group strives to
engage and gain trust and support from its various stakeholders.
These include customers, employees, suppliers, investors and the
wider community as a whole. The Group engages its stakeholders
on a regular basis, through various channels, such as conferences,
interviews and surveys. Stakeholders’ inputs on what ESG issues
matter the most are collected and prioritised. The following sections
of the report cover environmental protection, employment and
labour practices, operating practices and community investment.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is committed to operating in a sustainable manner
through mitigating emissions, improving energy efficiency and
reducing its impacts on the environment.

The Group recognises that pollution prevention and resource
conservation are keys to a sustainable environment, and effectively
integrates these concepts into its business decision making.

Enhancing fuel efficiency is a key focus of the Group’s
environmental protection efforts and technology play a key part
in driving the Group’s sustainable development. For example, at
the Group’s ground logistics business, drag-reducing devices are
installed on trucks to improve fuel efficiency and reduce greenhouse
gas (GHG) emissions. These devices are expected to lower fuel
usage by 5%.

Responsible waste management practices are adopted in the
Group’s processes. For example, within the Group’s aviation
business, used oil from aircraft servicing and maintenance is
siphoned into drums for storage and recycling by qualified vendors.
The Group encourages proper waste segregation and storage
in designated receptacles on its premises to facilitate material
recovery and biological treatment.
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The Group takes proactive measures to minimise the environmental
impact arising from its operations. For instance, the Group’s
flagship aviation business has relocated its full power engine runs
to a designated area located on the southern end of Wilson Airport
in Kenya, far from the neighbouring community and sensitive
natural habitats. This helps to reduce the impact of air and noise
pollution arising from aircraft test runs and vehicle movements.
When replacing fleet vehicles, the Group also takes fuel efficiency
into account in its decision making process. Fleet vehicles are
constantly monitored for excessive fuel usage. Where necessary,
drivers are trained to drive the vehicles in the most fuel-efficient
ways by observing practices with regard to tyre pressures, harsh
braking and acceleration, as well as driver behaviour.

All employees are responsible and accountable for operating in an
environmentally responsible manner.

The Group has worked towards to raise staff awareness of
environmental management by implementing sustainable practices
at workplace. For example, to avoid energy wastage, employees
are reminded to turn off idle electrical appliances. To lower paper
consumption, double-sided printing, recycling of used paper
and use of electronic documentation are strongly encouraged.
Dedicated bins have been set up at the Group’s offices to facilitate
waste separation and recycling. Waste paper from the offices is
delivered to an approved paper recycler.

The Group strives to drive the environmental performance of its
logistics solutions to another level by continuous monitoring and
improvement. Regular reviews are carried out on a timely basis
to evaluate and explore alternative eco-friendly measures and
practices. Going forward, part of the Group’s strategy is to increase
strategic investment in energy-efficient technologies, such as
replacing existing lighting systems with LED lamps at the premises
of its aviation business.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
Employment

The Group believes that people are the foundation of its business
growth. The Group’s human resources policies and procedures
have set key aspects such as compensation, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, welfare and other benefits. It is paramount for
the Group to attract qualified talent both internally and externally to
support business ambitions.
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The Group’s remuneration mechanism is performance-based and
competitive. Eligible employees are entitled to other benefits in
addition to basic salary, such as medical insurance and retirement
funds. Share option and share award schemes are in place to
reward and differentiate performance. The remuneration packages
are reviewed regularly to keep up with the market.

The Group is committed to providing employees with an inclusive
workplace that embraces and promotes diversity and equal
opportunity. The Group has zero tolerance towards harassment and
discrimination of any form. Employees are hired and selected based
on their merits regardless of their race, colour, age, religion, sex and
national origin. For example, the Group’s flagship aviation business
adopted a “Fair and Just Culture Policy” to ensure that all personnel
are treated fairly. At the Group’s ground logistics business where it
employs most people, grievance procedures are enforced to make
sure that the concerns of the employees are heard and addressed
in an equitable and fair manner.

Health and Safety

Occupational health and safety (OHS) is the Group’s first priority
when operating businesses. The Group adopts proper procedures
at the workplace to identify, mitigate and monitor health and safety
risks. Hazard assessments and safety monitoring are also carried
out frequently; results are followed up in a timely manner to drive
continuous improvement. Proper personal protective equipment and
training are provided to employees. The Group protects the safety
of its people and assets by undertaking scrupulous fire prevention
measures, organising safety awareness workshops and providing
firefighting training. Fire and evacuation drills are conducted
periodically.

The Group’'s flagship aviation business is certified by the
Department of Occupational Safety and Health Services under
the Ministry of Health of the Republic of Kenya, in recognition
of its achievements in upholding workplace safety. The Group’s
major ground logistics business in South Africa has embarked on
OHSAS 18001 compliance and certification. With the Group’s freight
forwarding business, a toolbox talks covering topics such as safety,
hazards, health and equipment operations is held with the frontline
workers on a daily basis.

The Group is committed to protecting the health and safety of
all individuals affected by its activities, including its employees,
contractors and the public. The Group will provide a safe and
healthy working environment, and will not compromise the health
and safety of any individual.

Employees are encouraged and supported to maintain a healthy
work-life balance. In addition to subscribing to all standard aviation
safety regulations, the Group’s flight operations have enhanced
regimes around pre-flight rest and duty hours to further minimise
OHS-related risks caused by fatigue.
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Development and Training

The Group believes that talent development is integral to sustaining
its competitive advantage and organic growth. Training programmes
are set up at business level to support daily job functions. For
instance, the Group places a high priority on honing the skills of its
ground logistics staff with a focus on the operation of warehouse
equipment. Furthermore, highly customised training courses are
available for pilots and engineers within the Group’s aviation
business. The Group also provides support and assistance to staff
to attend external training courses that are relevant to their areas of
expertise, in order to facilitate employees’ professional growth and
career progression.

Labour Standards

The Group strives to adhere to applicable local and international
labour standards and strictly prohibits the use of child or forced
labour in its operations. The Group’s suppliers and contractors are
expected to attain the same standard in their labour practices.

OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

The Group works closely with its suppliers and service providers
to support and optimise its complete logistic solutions. The Group
aspires to exert a positive influence over its suppliers to promote the
awareness of sustainability and manage risks within its supply chain.
These include environmental, social and governance practices.
A scrupulous and rigorous process for supplier monitoring and
screening has been implemented.

Product Responsibility

Since its establishment, the Group has focused on helping
its customers operate more securely and efficiently in frontier
markets. The Group emphasises on service quality and reliability
to differetiate itself in the market and help its clients focus on
meeting their project milestones on time and within budget. The
Group’s aviation business, for example, has implemented an I1SO
9001-certified quality management system, with a wide scope of
provision of aviation logistics services, such as worldwide charter
flights and medical air ambulance charter. To maintain the reliability
of its aviation services, the Group conducts forecasts on capacity,
demand patterns and customer requirements to address potential
bottlenecks caused by hangar space, associated logistics and
custom procedures.
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Furthermore, a complaint handling mechanism is in place to
address customers’ concerns. Complaints are properly documented
upon receipt and subsequently followed up in a timely and efficient
manner. Once complaints are verified, compensation is provided
to customers in accordance with established procedures and with
reference to prior cases.

Collected personal data is only accessible by authorised personnel
and is handled in a confidential manner.

Anti-corruption

The Group maintains a high standard of anti-corruption measures
and have zero-tolerance for any form of bribery, corruption or
fraud. Upon employment, all employees are informed with specific
requirements relating to the corruption policies in the company, and
provided anti-corruption training in order to combat the relevant
risks to the business. In addition, a whistle-blowing procedure
for anti-corruption is established with the objective to provide a
confidential channel to report on suspected irregularities.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to supporting the development of the
community where it operates and works closely with a number of
charities to reach out the local communities. In the past, the Group
supported Carolina for Kibera’s Child Outreach Programme in
Nairobi, Kenya, by participating in educational fieldtrips to promote
children’s awareness in conserving wildlife. The Group’s business
also cooperated with Support Teacher Empowerment Trust and
provided training to teachers and equipped them with necessary
knowledge and skills to support and educate the disadvantaged
youths. In South Africa, one of the Group’s major business locations,
the Group worked with Phakamani Trust, a local non-profiting
organisation aiming to empower rural young women, to combat
poverty and unemployment.

As the export warehouse for a large fast-moving consumer goods
company, food items are at times rejected due to numerous
reasons. These products are then donated to various charitable
organisations such as churches and children homes. The Group has
always provided the transport of these food items free of charge.

In November 2017, the Group held its first graduation ceremony
for its first International Security Specialist Programme (ISSP)
at the International Security and Defense College in China. The
programme trains local talents at high international standards and
prepares them for the challenges of managing security programme
across the Belt and Road initiative, which aims to strengthen the
connectivity, development and cooperation of the region.
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REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating to
areas such as environmental protection, employment and labour
practices and operating practices during the reporting period.

2017 ENVIRONMENTAL KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

Environmental KPIs
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Total non-hazardous waste produced
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Total energy consumption
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Total direct energy consumption
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Total direct energy consumption intensity by revenue
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Purchased electricity
EEEEN
Total indirect energy consumption intensity by revenue
N sst 2 HEGERBEERE
Water consumption
FEKE
Water consumption intensity by revenue

Pl asst 2 kKB R E

EEAR

AEBY TAEBEETATETERIERNIT
R NEEAREERBEHARNNIRR - BERS

TERREEERETAEREALE -

—E-tERERBANER

Unit
B

tonne

U7}

tonne

7

tonne

s

tonne CO2e

Z b Bk BE HE 2L
tonne CO2e

ZE A e A 2K
tonne CO2e

Z AR B R £
tonne

i

tonne

urE

kWh

TR

kWh

FREF

kWh

FEB

kWh

FELB

kWh

FRE
kWh/HKD’000 revenue
FEE WS THET
kWh

TR

kWh

T FLEF
kWh/HKD’000 revenue
FRE, Mz TF AT
m3

m3 /HKD’000 revenue
SLF K Wes T AT

2017
—g—tf

12.64

0.02

0.91

7,640.19
6,716.63
923.56

7.07

152.55
28,251,508.79
27,218,161.91
11,765,608.67
12,5673.84
15,439,979.41
36.44
1,033,346.88
1,033,346.88
1.38
19,178.60

0.03

Annual Report 2017 &R

35



36

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF.DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERGREEAEZEESE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Erik D. Prince, aged 48, has been appointed as an executive
director and the Chairman of the Company since 10 January
2014. He is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company and the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and a committee member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Prince is a
US-born entrepreneur, philanthropist, military veteran and private
equity investor with business interests in Africa, Europe, the Middle
East and North America in the fields of logistics, aviation services,
manufacturing, natural resources development and energy. He is
the founder and chairman of Frontier Resource Group, a private
equity firm active across the African continent in areas such as
exploration, mining and energy development. Mr. Prince is the
founder of Blackwater, a global private security company, which
he sold in 2010 after successfully growing the company over the
course of more than a decade into the premier provider of global
security and logistics solutions to the United States Government
and others. In addition, Mr Prince purchased Presidential Airways in
2003 and grew it from a one-plane operation into a global logistics
and aviation business with over 70 fixed and rotary wing aircraft
operating in Africa, the Middle East and North America; he sold the
company in 2010. Mr. Prince was educated at Hillsdale College.
Upon graduation, he enlisted in the US Navy, where he served as a
Navy SEAL officer until 1996.

Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson, aged 66, has been an executive
director of the Company since 1998 and a Deputy Chairman of
the Company since January 2014. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company and is a committee member of the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr. Ko is a non-executive director of Yunfeng Financial
Group Limited and KuangChi Science Limited, both of which
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is an independent non-
executive director, a committee member of the audit committee and
the chairman of the remuneration committee of Meitu, Inc., which
is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ko has
extensive experience in direct investment, merger and acquisition,
TMT (Technology, Media and Telecom) and financial service.
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Mr. Luo Ning, aged 59, has been an executive director of the
Company since October 2006 and a Deputy Chairman of the
Company since January 2014, Mr. Luo is currently an assistant
president of CITIC Group Corporation, a substantial shareholder
of the Company, a deputy-chairman of CITIC Guoan Group, the
chairman and general manager of CITIC Networks Co., Ltd, and the
chairman of CITIC Guoan Information Industry Company Limited,
which is a public company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). He is a director of Baiyin
Nonferrous Group Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange in PRC. Mr. Luo is a non-executive director of Asia
Satellite Telecommunications Holdings Limited and an executive
director of CITIC Telecom International Holdings Limited, both of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is
also a non-executive director of Lajin Entertainment Network Group
Limited, which is listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange. He also holds directorships in several other subsidiaries
of CITIC Group Corporation. Mr. Luo has extensive experience
in telecommunication business and holds a Bachelor Degree in
Communication Speciality from The Wuhan People’s Liberation Army
Institute of Communication Command in the PRC.

Dr. Hua Dongyi, aged 53, has been appointed as an executive
director and the Acting Chief Executive Officer of the Company
since 26 July 2016. On 22 March 2017, he has officially become
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He is also an executive
director of VDM Group Limited, which is listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange. Dr. Hua graduated from the Chengdu
University of Technology (formerly known as Chengdu College of
Geology) with a Bachelor Degree in Engineering in 1984, and also
received his Master Degree and Doctoral Degree in Engineering
from the China University of Geosciences in 1990 and 1996
respectively. Dr. Hua has over 20 years’ experience in international
engineering project bidding, international contract management of
consulting projects, project management, project evaluation, cost
and risk management and planning, organising, implementing,
operating of major infrastructure projects and constructing and
developing of large mining projects.

Mr. Hu Qinggang, aged 43, has been an executive director of
the Company since October 2006. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He has extensive experience in the
finance field and had worked in the Finance Department of CITIC
Group Corporation, a substantial shareholder of the Company, as
the deputy director of the Finance and Planning Division. Mr. Hu
holds a Bachelor Degree in Economics from the Beijing University of
Technology and a Master Degree in Economics from the University
of International Business and Economics in the PRC.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry, aged 72, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since 2004. He is also
the chairman of the Audit Committee, and a committee member
of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. Mr. Yap holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the University of Strathclyde, Glasgow, in the
United Kingdom. He is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has extensive
experience in finance and accounting. He retired as the managing
director of Johnson Matthey Hong Kong Limited in June 2007 and
prior to that appointment he was the general manager of Sun Hung
Kai Development (China) Limited. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Concord New Energy Group Limited, which
is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and Brockman
Mining Limited, which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and the Australian Securities Exchange.

Professor Lee Hau Leung, aged 65, has served as an independent
non-executive director of the Company since 2014. He is also
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a committee
member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. Professor Lee is the Thoma Professor of Operations,
Information and Technology at the Graduate School of Business
at Stanford University and the chairman of the board of the
Fung Academy. His areas of specialisation include supply chain
management, information technology, global logistics system
design, inventory planning, and manufacturing strategy. He is
the founding and current co-director of the Stanford Value Chain
Innovation Initiative. He was elected a member of the United States
National Academy of Engineering in 2010. He obtained his Bachelor
of Social Science degree in Economics and Statistics from The
University of Hong Kong in 1974, his Master of Science degree
in Operational Research from the London School of Economics in
1975, and his Master of Science and PhD degrees in Operations
Research from the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania
in 1983. He was awarded an Honorary Doctorate of Engineering
degree by the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
in 2006 and an Honorary Doctorate from the Erasmus University of
Rotterdam in 2008. Professor Lee is an independent non-executive
director of each of Lion Rock Group Limited (formerly known as
1010 Printing Group Limited), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange; Synnex Corporation, a public company
listed on The New York Stock Exchange in the United States; and
Esquel Enterprises Limited, a private company based in Hong Kong.
Also, Professor Lee has been re-designated as a non-executive
director of Global Brands Group Holding Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since 14 June 2017.
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Dr. Harold O. Demuren, aged 72, has served as an independent
non-executive director of the Company since 2014. He is also
a committee member of the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Dr.
Demuren is an aeronautical engineer and the chief executive officer
of Harold Demuren Consulting. With over 45 years of experience
in both the public and private sectors of the aviation industry,
Dr. Demuren has been a strong proponent of aviation safety and
security, especially advocating and spreading safety regulatory
oversight on the African continent. He was the chief executive
officer of Afrijet Airlines, a successful cargo airline, which had
strategic alliances with foreign partners servicing Africa, Europe
and the Americas from 1998 to 2005. He is the founder of Evergreen
Apple Nigeria, the first fully integrated fixed based operations and
maintenance facility hangar in Nigeria. He was appointed as the
Director General of the Nigerian Civil Aviation Authority from 2005
to 2013 and was the first to provide vital information to the public
on the failed attempt of the “Christmas Day Bomber” in 2009. He
successfully attained US Federal Aviation Administration (FAA)
Category One Certification for Nigeria and was the first African
to be elected as the President of the International Civil Aviation
Organisation (ICAO) General Assembly in Montreal in 2010. For his
contribution to aviation safety globally, Dr. Demuren has received
numerous awards including the 2010 Laura Taber Barbour Air
Safety Award and the 2014 FSF-Boeing Aviation Safety Lifetime
Achievement Award from Flight Safety Foundation. Dr. Demuren
holds a Master of Science degree in Aeronautical Engineering from
the Kiev Institute of Aeronautical Engineers in the former Soviet
Union and a Doctor of Science degree in the field of gas turbines,
specialising in aircraft jet engines, from the Massachusetts Institute
of Technology (MIT).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry, aged 48, has been the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company since April 2017. Mr. Wong has
more than 27 years of experience in finance, accounting, internal
controls and corporate governance in mainland China, Hong
Kong, Singapore, London, Japan and the United States. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Wong held senior finance and internal audit
positions for multinational companies listed in the United States
and Hong Kong. His experience covers a variety of industries
including manufacturing, fast-moving consumer goods, real estate
development and media. He had also held senior roles in Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu and PricewaterhouseCoopers for over 10 years.
Mr. Wong graduated from City University of Hong Kong in 1993 with
a bachelor’s degree in Accountancy and also obtained a master’s
degree in Electronic Commerce from The Open University of Hong
Kong in 2003. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants as well as certified internal auditor. He currently
serves as an independent non-executive director of Shifang Holding
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. J. David Whittingham, aged 37, is the Group Vice President
& Head of Africa. Mr. Whittingham oversees the companies
businesses across Africa in addition to supporting the group leading
special projects, mergers & acquisitions and investor relations.
Previously, Mr. Whittingham served as Manging Director and Head
of Investment Banking at Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (formerly
known as Reorient Group Limited), where he advised the Company
on many of its early acquisitions. For the past 15 years, he has been
based in China working across the globe advising and consulting
clients on joint ventures, overseas acquisitions, capital raising
initiatives, and global market entry solutions. Mr. Whittingham has
a wealth of cross-border experience that includes advising many of
China’s largest state owned and private enterprises on acquisitions
and market entry in the United States, Africa, Europe, and Latin
America. Mr. Whittingham began his finance career working for
Cantor Fitzgerald in Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor's Degree from
Georgetown University in Political Economy and Chinese, and is
fluent in Mandarin.
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Mr. Uldarico Ard Peregrino Jr., aged 48, is the Chief Security
Officer of the Group and a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. He has advised the corporate and national security level
programs in the industry since 1994, and has managed complex,
global integrated security and logistics programs in various
capacities over the past 20 years. Mr. Peregrino began his career
as a United States Marine. After completing his seven-plus years of
service, Mr. Peregrino entered the International Corporate Security
industry, quickly progressing to managing large VIP security
operations and developing critical training for close protection
teams. He also served as a local law enforcement officer where
he was awarded two “Valor Awards”. Among other certifications,
Mr. Peregrino holds one of the most respected Aviation Security
Certification, the AVSEC PMC certified by ICAO. He has published
papers on many security topics and has participated in the
international arena as a featured speaker for the corporate security
industry and law enforcement.

Mr. Liu Jun, Jason, aged 45, is the Head of Logistics of the
Group overseeing the Group’s logistics for sea, air and ground
transportation solutions across the entire business regions. Mr.
Liu is based in Group’s global logistics centre in Shanghai and
brings with him over 19 years of experience in the international
logistics industry, Previously, he was General Manager of Sinotrans
(Australia) Pty Limited and was responsible for all the logistics
services in Australia, which was the world’s largest iron ore project
from 2007 to 2011. Mr. Liu has a bachelor’s degree in International
Shipping Management from Shanghai Maritime University and a
master’s degree in Logistics Engineering and Management from the
University of Western Australia.

Mr. Su Bin, aged 38, is the Head of Group Insurance division,
focusing on the global risk opportunities and providing insurance
solutions to the Group. Mr. Su has over 10 years of experience in
comprehensive and tailor-made risk and insurance solutions for
multinational enterprises and international projects. Before joining
the Group, he worked as Director Construction & Energy of JLT
Insurance Broker Co., a Jardine Matheson associate company. He
had served clients in power generation, infrastructure, oil and gas,
renewable energy etc. in high-risk areas such as Southeast Asia,
Central Asia, Africa and South America. Mr. Su also worked as
Assistant General Manager of the Captive Insurance Department
of Generali China, Assistant General Manager of P&C Technical
Department of Jiangtai Insurance Broker Co. He holds Master
Degree of Insurance (Central University of Finance and Economics),
Bachelor Degree of Economics (Beijing Commercial College),
ANZIIF (Fellow) CIP, and is a registered broker of China Insurance
Regulatory Commission.
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Mr. Shi Yi, John, aged 51, is the Head of Southwest Region of
the Group, overseeing the Group’s business and operations in
Myanmar, Laos, Cambodia and Thailand. Mr. Shi has over 30 years
of security expertise and is an expert in criminal investigation,
administrative protection and personal safety in China. Before
joining the Group, he was one of the founders of International
Security Defensive College (ISDC), one of China’s foremost safety
training and education institutions. Prior to that, Mr. Shi was also
co-founder and president of CRISK, a China-based risk advisory
service body. CRISK was once a leading security risk advisory
body in China specializing in risk assessment and safety planning
for companies outside of China. He is one of the key contributors
to the “Guide to the Safety Management of Business Institutions
and Personnel Outside China” published by the Chinese Ministry
of Commerce in 2012. Mr. Shi started his career as a security
professional in Beijing Public Security Bureau and was responsible
for the safety management of important state agencies in Beijing.
He graduated from Beijing Police College with a degree in Public
Security Management.

Mr. Lv Chaohai, aged 54, is the Head of Northwest Region, who
is responsible to oversee the Company’s business and operations
in Pakistan, Kazakhstan, Uzbekistan and other major countries in
Northwest Asia. Prior to working with the Company, Mr. Lv was vice
president of Xinjiang Production and Construction Corporations
and the chairman of its international company, having extensive
overseas working experience in project operation, equipment
procurement as well as localization, security, training, education and
employment of Chinese and foreign labor. Mr. Lv is a graduate of
Xi'an Jiaotong University and a certificate holder of senior engineer
and construction engineer.

Ms. Li Haijie, Kathy, aged 42, is the Global Human Resources
Director of the Group, overseeing human resources systems and
best practice across all of the offices, subsidiaries and operations of
the Group from Asia to Africa. Ms. Li is responsible for creating and
implementing human resource strategy of the Group in support of
the Group’s strategic direction and business plan. She is a human
resource and business professional with extensive experience in
human resources, finance, business administrations and operations.
Ms. Li holds a bachelor's degree in International Trade from the
Ocean University of China, a MSc degree in Business Management
from the University of International Business and Economics, a
MBA from the University of Edinburgh and is a Certified Public
Accountant of China.

Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason, aged 44, has been the Company
Secretary of the Company since 2006. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He graduated from the University of
British Columbia in Canada with a Bachelor Degree in Commerce
and holds a certificate of Certified Public Accountant issued by the
Washington State Board of Accountancy in the United States. He has
extensive experience in accounting and corporate finance.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

The directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of Frontier Services Group Limited (the
“Company”) are investment holding and management. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year by operating segments is set out in Note
5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 64.

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company does not
recommend the payment of any dividend (2016: Nil) for the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group as required by Schedule 5 to
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement and the Management Discussion and Analysis of this
Annual Report. The review forms part of the Report of the Directors.

Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
are provided in the paragraph below.

Detailed discussions on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders, and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group
are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
this Annual Report. The discussions form part of the Report of the
Directors.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to various risks, including factors that
are unique to the Group and the markets in which it operates, in
addition to those risks that are shared by most other businesses.
The Group has implemented a risk management and internal control
framework to identify current and foreseeable risks at different levels
of the Group in order to monitor and mitigate their adverse impacts.
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The following discussion highlights the risks that are believed
to be most germane to the Group at this time. Any or all of the
Group’s business, financial status, operations, personnel, and
outlook may be adversely or, potentially, materially affected by the
identified risks. The scope of the risks influencing the Group may
exceed those presented herein, so the following is not intended
to be comprehensive. Rather, the list of risks may include in the
future unknown matters that ultimately have an impact, material or
otherwise, on the Group.

Geopolitical Environment — The Group’s core business is the
provision of logistics, security and insurance services to customers
operating across the One Belt One Road region from Asia to
Africa. The Group’s target geographies include many of the world’s
fastest growing markets. However, the orderly transition of elected
leadership, especially within less developed countries, has been
challenged at times, creating localised political risk. In addition,
regional pockets of terrorism, often directed toward governments
and related agencies, can compound the geopolitical risk inherent.
Therefore, diversification, across end-markets, service capabilities
and operating locations, is the cornerstone of the Group’s process
to mitigate geopolitical risk.

Economic Environment — The Group employs a strategy of
diversification to hedge against cyclical downturns in geographic
regions and specific end-markets. Nevertheless, the Group’s
regional markets, writ large, have been and will continue to be
affected by commodity prices and balance-of-trade issues.

Compliance — Similar to the intrinsic geopolitical risk arising from
operating in Africa, corruption is found in fast-growing markets. The
Group rigorously adheres to all applicable anti-bribery statues of
various jurisdictions and offers a thorough anti-corruption training
program to all of its staff members to reduce the risk of corruption
to the business.

Aviation — The Group has invested considerable resources into the
development of its aviation capabilities. The global aviation market
carries numerous inherent risks, from the safe operation of aircraft
to the evolution of local regulatory policies. The Group follows all
policies and procedures to ensure that its aviation operations are
fully compliant with the relevant civil aviation authority and that it
operates its fleet in the safest and most reliable manner.

Competition — The Group has endeavoured to be the first business
to bring a complete logistics, security and insurance service
solution to One Belt One Road markets. Within its primary aviation
and logistics segment — air and ground — the Group faces strong
competition from existing vendors specialising in one or more of the
Group’s lines of service. The Group continually adapts its tactical
response to the ever-changing competitive landscape across its
target markets. Combining security services with logistics, aviation
and insurance offerings is a huge market differentiator.
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Global Operations — The Group, headquartered in Hong Kong, now
conducts operations in three continents, Asia, Africa and Europe. As
a result, considerable ongoing coordination is required to manage
the business in the most effective manner across multiple time
zones and numerous geographies.

Financial — The Group operates across multiple jurisdictions and
conducts business in multiple foreign currencies. The Group also
has a substantial amount of collateralised debts. As such, the
Group is exposed to foreign exchange trends, margin calls on
secured debts and general liquidity risks. The Group monitors its
cash position and overall near- and medium-term liquidity on a
weekly basis, and makes all necessary adjustments to ensure that
the business has a functioning capital structure.

Strategy — The Group is fully committed to its strategic
development of an integrated logistics, security and insurance
service offering. The execution of this vision requires great
coordination among the Group’s operating businesses, in addition
to the cooperation of other potential partners. Further, the fulfillment
of the Group’s strategy may require the addition of new geographic
or service capabilities, either through greenfield investment or
corporate acquisition. While the Group proactively plans for these
potential requirements, there are no assurances that the required
investment opportunities will exist in the future.

Personnel — The Group’s success is ultimately determined by its
dedicated staff, and the ability to grow the business is predicated
on the Group’s ability to recruit, train, and retain highly qualified
personnel who share a passion for the corporate vision. The loss
of any key staff member or a failure to attract new personnel could
have a negative and potentially material effect on the Group and its
prospects.

Highly Regulated Business — The Group is subject to any number
of national and local regulatory bodies by virtue of its global
operations. Failure to comply with any one of the applicable
regulatory regimes could have an adverse impact on the Group.
Consequently, the Group expends substantial resources ensuring
its businesses operate in a fully compliant manner, often with the
assistance of third-party service providers who specialise in such
matters.

Sanction risks — The Group is subject to sanction risks imposed by
various bodies by virtue of its global business in frontier markets.
These sanction risks might impose restrictions to the Group’s
business and might have an adverse impact on the Group. The
Company has put in place various measures, including but not
limited to seeking external legal counsel’'s advise and setting up
a sanction risk management committee, to ensure these sanction
risks would not have a negative impact on the Group.
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SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE
AWARD

Details of the movements in the share capital, share options and
share award of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2017 are set out in Notes 30, 31 and 32 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

RESERVES

The Company’s distributable reserves as at 31 December
2017, which solely comprised contributed surplus, amounted to
approximately HK$558,899,000 (2016: HK$558,899,000). Details of
the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to HK$89,000 (2016:
HK$531,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities, non-
controlling interests and shareholders’ equity of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated
financial statements, is set out on page 208 of the Annual Report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or there is no restriction against such rights under the laws
of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

The Company has not redeemed any of its listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2017. Neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries, except the trustee of the share award scheme of
the Company, has purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2017 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Erik D. Prince (“Mr. Prince”)

Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson (“Mr. Ko”)
Mr. Luo Ning (“Mr. Luo”)

Dr. Hua Dongyi (“Dr. Hua")

Mr. Hu Qinggang (“Mr. Hu”")

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry (“Mr. Yap”)
Professor Lee Hau Leung (“Professor Lee”)
Dr. Harold O. Demuren (“Dr. Demuren”)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Ko, Professor
Lee and Dr. Demuren will retire by rotation and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from all independent non-executive directors and considers them
to be independent. Under the terms of their appointment, the
independent non-executive directors are appointed for a specific
term and are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the Company’s Bye-laws.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws and subject to the statues,
every director shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and liabilities which
he may sustain or incur in the execution of his office or otherwise
in relation thereto. The Company has taken out and maintained
insurance against the liability and costs associated with defending
any proceedings which may be brought against the directors of the
Company. The level of coverage is reviewed annually.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme and the share award scheme
of the Company as set out in Notes 31 and 32 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively and the preference shares
issued by DVN (Group) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, there were no other equity-linked agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares or that require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares entered into by the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2017 or subsisted as at 31 December
2017.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 36 to 42 of the
Annual Report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS EENAR DA R ARBEE RS RAE
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE BROZEZRAR

COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

At 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the R-ZB—+F+-_A=+—8 EBFRAQAH
directors in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or Higs 2B (T X REH LS GG ([FFH &
its associated corporations, as defined in Part XV of the Securities EI&GI1) B XV E) 2 Bin kAR (P A AR
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) and as recorded in the register ARRRIRBEFES KB EKRPIEI2KEFEZE
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO Atz EE AR KRR LT BITAEE#TT
or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of FBERGWIZESH([IEETE] ) BARITRE R
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model REIREBHERBER AR ([BRAT]) 2
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the mEORBWT ¢

“Model Code”), were as follows:

Long Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the REQXTROREERD 2HR
Company
Number of
underlying
shares held
Number of ordinary shares held FREE
MEEBERYA RAEE
% of the
issued share
Name of Personal Family Corporate Personal capital of the
director interests interests interests Total interests Grand total Company
ERDFBET
EEps fBAER FkER AEER @t BARR @t REBDL
Mr. Prince 30,575,000 — — 30,575,000 307,673,485 338,248,485 23.33%
Prince T4 (Note (i)
(Hz2()
Mr. Ko — 2,040,816 223,776,719 225,817,535 — 225,817,535 15.58%
mEE (Note (ii)) (Note (iii))
(st (i) (it (iii)
Dr. Hua — — — — 26,834,060 26,334,060 1.85%
B h (Note (iv))
(Hizt(iv)
Mr. Hu 9,814,000 — — 9,814,000 — 9,814,000 0.68%
b
Mr. Yap — — — — 1,400,000 1,400,000 0.10%
Eha (Note (iv))
(Bizt(iv)
Professor Lee 1,400,000 — — 1,400,000 — 1,400,000 0.10%
FHR
Dr. Demuren 1,400,000 — — 1,400,000 — 1,400,000 0.10%
Demuren i+
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Notes:

(i) This represents Mr. Prince’s interest in the option for the rights to
subscribe for up to 307,673,485 new shares of the Company, details
of which are disclosed in Note 31(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

(i) These shares were held by the spouse of Mr. Ko.
(iiiy ~ This represents:

(a) the deemed interests of Mr. Ko in the 48,276,719 ordinary
shares of the Company held by First Gain International Limited
under the SFO by virtue of his interests in First Gain International
Limited; and

(b) the deemed interests of Mr. Ko in the 175,500,000 ordinary
shares of the Company held by Rich Hill Capital Limited under
the SFO by virtue of his interests in Rich Hill Capital Limited.

(iv)  These represent the share options of the Company granted to the
respective directors under the Company’s share option scheme,
details of which are disclosed in Note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2017, none of the
directors had any interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations which had been recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the section titled “DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS” above
and in the share option disclosed in Note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the
Company granted to any director or their respective spouse or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER FERRRHEMATRARG 2B
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

At 31 December 2017, other than the interests and short positions of RZZE—+F+-_A=1+—"H BLEXEER
the directors or chief executive of the Company as disclosed in the AR B SR EE I MABRERR (D 2 s &
section titled “DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN KB —EHPRBE AR EEREEITHA

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY BrRERmRARIN  REAAFIERILRRPE
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS” above, the following interests of 5% GPIFE 3B RIFE 2 REE LM HEAR
or more of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded AIEEITIRAS% I F 7S FBRRELHE
in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company AT :
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
Long Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the REATARGREBRAZEFR
Company
Number of
underlying
shares held
Number of ordinary shares held JiigsR il
FELEREA RO EE
% of the
Direct Through Through issued share
beneficially controlled Security controlled capital of the
Name owned corporation interests Total corporation Grand total Company
NG|
BITRE
A% EEBHEST BBRIELN BHES @ BBTEAR @t =R
Easy Flow Investments 237,592,607 — — 237,592,607 237,592,607 16.39%
Limited
BEREFRAA
CITIC Investment (HK) — 237,592,607 — 237,592,607 — 237,592,607 16.39%
Limited (Note (i)
(Bizt (i)
CITIC Corporation Limited — 237,592,607 — 237,592,607 237,592,607 16.39%
REHEFERAA (Note (ii)
(Bt (i)
CITIC Limited — 237,592,607 — 237,592,607 — 237,592,607 16.39%
RERERHERAR (Note (iii))
(it (iii)
CITIC Group Corporation — 237,592,607 — 237,592,607 — 237,592,607 16.39%
FEAEEEERAF (Note (iv))
(B3t (iv))
Rich Hill Capital Limited 175,500,000 — — 175,500,000 — 175,500,000 12.11%
(Note (v))
(Hizt(v)

Annual Report 2017 “F 5} 51



52

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

Notes:

(i) CITIC Investment (HK) Limited is deemed to be interested in the
237,592,607 ordinary shares of the Company held by Easy Flow
Investments Limited under the SFO by virtue of its interests in Easy
Flow Investments Limited.

(i) CITIC Corporation Limited is deemed to be interested in the
237,592,607 ordinary shares of the Company held by Easy Flow
Investments Limited under the SFO by virtue of its interests in CITIC
Investment (HK) Limited.

(i)~ CITIC Limited is deemed to be interested in the 237,592,607 ordinary
shares of the Company held by Easy Flow Investments Limited under
the SFO by virtue of its interests in CITIC Corporation Limited.

(iv)  CITIC Group Corporation is deemed to be interested in the 237,592,607
ordinary shares of the Company held by Easy Flow Investments Limited
under the SFO by virtue of its interests in CITIC Limited. Mr Luo, a
deputy chairman and an executive director of the Company, is an
employee of CITIC Group Corporation.

(v) Mr. Ko is deemed to be interested in the 175,500,000 shares of the
Company held by Rich Hill Capital Limited under the SFO by virtue
of his interests in Rich Hill Capital Limited. Such interest forms a
part of the corporate interests in the ordinary shares of the Company
interested by Mr. Ko as set out in the section titled “DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS”
above. Mr. Ko is a director of Rich Hill Capital Limited.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2017, no other person
(other than the directors or chief executive of the Company whose
interests are set out in the section titled “DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS”
above) had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group'’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 44% (2016: 50%) of the total sales
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 30% (2016:
31%). Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 7% (2016: 7%) of the total purchases for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to approximately 2% (2016: 4%).

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own 5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group conducted
certain transactions with connected persons which constituted
continuing connected transactions under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”). These transactions are also regarded as
related party transactions under applicable accounting principles,
which are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements
and with respect of which the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out in Note
37(a)(i) to the consolidated financial statements and have confirmed
that these continuing connected transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board of the Company engaged the independent auditor of
the Company to report on the continuing connected transactions
on a sample basis in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
independent auditor has issued a letter containing the findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of
the Listing Rules. A copy of the letter has been provided to the
Company for submission to the Stock Exchange.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors, the directors confirmed that
the Company has maintained at least 25% public float during the
year as required under the Listing Rules.
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EVENTS AFTER THE FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

Except for the information as disclosed in Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group did not have any other
material events occurred subsequent to the financial position date.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Erik D. Prince
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHBERE

_a

pwc

To the Shareholders of Frontier Services Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Frontier Services Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
set out on pages 64 to 207, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017;

o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

ERpER
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B o

matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summerised as follows:

—  Goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant end equipment

impairment assessment

—  Going concern assumption

Key Audit Matter

Goodwill, intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment
impairment assessment

Refer to Note 4 (Critical accounting
estimates and judgements), Note
14 (Property, plant and equipment)
and Note 15 (Goodwill and other
intangibles) to the consolidated
financial statements

As at 31 December 2017, the Group
had goodwill before impairment
of HK$2,102,000 arising from the
acquisitions of Maleth Aero Limited in
the Aviation and Logistics Business
segment (“AL Business Segment”).
The goodwill is subject to an annual
impairment assessment performed
by management.

How our audit addressed the Key
Audit Matter

Our procedures in relation to
management’s gooduwill, intangible
assets and property, plant and
equipment impairment assessment
included the following:

We evaluated and challenged the
composition of management’s
future cash flow forecasts used
in their value-in-use calculations,
and the process by which they
were prepared. We found that
the cash flow forecasts prepared
by management were subject to
oversight and review by the directors
of the Company and was consistent
with the board of directors of the
Company approved budgets.
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Key Audit Matter

In addition, the Group also owned,
as at 31 December 2017, intangible
assets and property, plant and
equipment before impairment of
HK$35,019,000 and HK$292,283,000,
respectively. A significant portion of
the intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment relates to the
AL Business Segment. These assets
require an impairment assessment if
an impairment indicator is identified.

The AL Business Segment has been
loss making since becoming part of
the Group in 2013 and recorded an
operating loss of HK$161,987,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2017.
This represented an impairment
indicator for the relevant intangible
assets and property, plant and
equipment.

Management performed an
impairment assessment in respect of
the goodwill and intangible assets of
each AL Business Segment related
Cash Generating Unit (“CGU") using
the value-in-use method which
involved significant judgement
in determining the assumptions
used in the calculations. The key
assumptions include:

. annual growth rate;
o long-term growth rate; and
o discount rate.

How our audit addressed the Key
Audit Matter

We compared the current year actual
results with the amounts included in
the prior year cash flow forecast to
consider the quality of management'’s
forecasting, and we checked that
management had considered the
current year actual results in the
preparation of this year’s forecasts.
We also inquired of management
to understand the reasons for the
deviation of the actual results for the
current year from prior year forecast,
comparing the explanations to our
market knowledge and expectations,
and checked that the relevant factors
had been taken into account in this
year's forecasts.

The procedures we performed over
management'’s key assumptions used
in the cash flow forecasts included:

. comparing annual growth rate
to historical actual figures;

. benchmarking the long-term
growth rate against industry
forecasts;

o benchmarking the discount

rate against our research
on the discount rate for
comparable companies.
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Key Audit Matter

In relation to the impairment
assessment of property, plant and
equipment in each AL Business
Segment related CGU, management
determined the recoverable amount
as the higher of value-in-use and fair
value less costs of disposal, which
was calculated by benchmarking
against the price quotation of a
comparable model in the second-
hand market.

A provision for impairment of
HK$9,000,000 and HK$19,531,000
was made for the other intangibles
and property, plant and equipment,
respectively, for the year ended
31 December 2017. No provision
for impairment on the goodwill was
considered necessary as at 31
December 2017.

We focused on this area due to
the significance of the balances
and the significant judgements
involved in the assessment of the
recoverable amounts of the CGUs
including the assumptions used in
the calculation of value-in-use as well
as the judgement required to identify
suitable market comparable data to
determine the fair value less costs
of disposal of property, plant and
equipment.

How our audit addressed the Key
Audit Matter

We evaluated sensitivity analysis
performed by management around
the key assumptions by calculating
the degree to which these
assumptions would need to change
to trigger further material impairment.
We determined that the calculation
was most sensitive to the growth
rates and discount rate assumptions,
and we discussed and challenged
management’s view on the likelihood
of such a change in the growth rates
and discount rate.

In relation to the fair value less costs
of disposal of property, plant and
equipment, we checked, on a sample
basis, the market price quotations
for comparable property, plant and
equipment identified by management
to the relevant source. We also
compared, on a sample basis,
the key specifications, including
the model, year of manufacture,
equipment and modifications of the
comparable property, plant and
equipment with those owned by the
Group to assess the suitability of the
comparison. We also performed our
own internet search, on a sample
basis, on the fair value less costs of
disposal of similar property, plant
and equipment.

Based on the procedures performed,
we found management’s goodwill,
intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment impairment
assessment to be supportable based
on the available evidence.
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Going concern assumption

Refer to Note 2.1 to the consolidated
financial statements

For the year ended 31 December
2017, the Group had incurred net
losses of HK$223,102,000 and
had an operating cash outflows of
HK$119,034,000.

The Group is therefore dependent on
its existing cash resources, available
facilities from bank and cash flows
to be generated from operations to
finance the future operations of the
Group. The forecast of its cash flows
generated from operations involved
key assumptions such as revenue
growth and gross profit margin.

Management of the Group has
performed a cash flow forecast and
concluded that there will be sufficient
funds to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due in the next
twelve months from 31 December
2017 to support going concern basis
of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We focused on this assessment as
it involved consideration of future
events and application of significant
judgements and estimates and
accordingly, this was an area of our
audit focus.

How our audit addressed the Key
Audit Matter

In assessing the appropriateness
of management’s going concern
assumption in preparing the
consolidated financial statements,
the following audit procedures have
been performed by us:

o Confirming the cash
balances and available
facilities as at 31 December
2017 by circulation of bank
confirmations;

o Reviewing the signed
agreement for the acquisition
of the land use right to
ensure the payment terms are
properly reflected in the cash
flow forecast;

o Checking the bank statements
to confirm the proceeds from
Erik Prince’s exercise of share
options have been received
by the Company;

o Assessing the appropriateness
of key assumptions used in
the cash flow forecast for the
Group’s major operations by
(i) obtaining sales agreements,
sales invoices and bidding
proposals for future projects
to support the projected
revenue, (i) comparing the
pro-rated revenue per the
latest management account
to projected revenue, and
(i) comparing projected gross
margin to historical gross profit
margin.

o Evaluating the sensitivity of
the Group's cash flow forecast
by considering downside
scenarios against reasonable
possible changes to the above
key assumptions.

Based on the procedures described,
we found that the judgements and
estimates made by management
in preparing the working capital
forecast for the purposes of
going concern assessment were
supportable by available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B %A RS

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHBERE

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Hin Gay Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT.
! 2

e W aE R

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-F— L&A=+ —HILEE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
HiaF FET FAET
Revenue A 6 724,414 576,889
Cost of direct materials and job BEEMEERAR
expenses TERX 10 (131,705) (130,697)
Cost of aircraft management services i & 3 fR 75 A A (125,448) (48,134)
Data costs LS ADWIN (6,950) (8,033)
Employee benefit expenses REBAFAX 7 (178,612) (166,129)
Sub-contracting charges PEEMA (295,382) (246,900)
Operating lease rentals KERDES (22,412) (18,014)
Repairs and maintenance costs #E RIRBRA (35,694) (42,948)
Depreciation and amortisation e R E 14,15 & 20 (35,375) (34,115)
Other income and other H bl A R E At ik~
gains/(losses), net (E518) @ F58 6,309 20,911
Other operating expenses Hh&iE& A (88,552) (84,743)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEHESMEEZ
financial assets Wz 21 592 10,712
Provision for impairment of goodwill 5% K H b £ & 7 2 6
and other intangibles BERE 15 (9,000) (9,970)
Provision for impairment of property, #13 - #22 &R EH AR
plant and equipment and assets BIELEEEZRER
held for sale, net & F8 14 (23,633) (17,362)
Operating loss EEBE (221,448) (198,533)
Interest income F B A 9,463 13,857
Finance costs BLE B 8 (18,213) (23,339)
Share of loss of associates FE(GEE & A R E 1R 17 (2,859) (561)
Loss before income tax R AT1S 5 Al B 18 (233,057) (208,576)
Income tax credit/(expenses) Fri8iiEe,/ (Fx) 9 9,955 (910)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR EERE 10 (223,102) (209,486)
Attributable to: AT FEAS ¢
Equity holders of the Company RARIERFEE A 33 (223,760) (209,816)
Non-controlling interests R i 658 330
(223,102) (209,486)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE ZAAG#ZFEAELESE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE R EE
COMPANY 11
Basic and diluted loss per share FRERREGEE (15.84) centsll (17.06) centsfll|
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REXEWRBRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BTt FE+_A=+—HIEE

2017 2016
—E—t% —EAE

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hat FET FAET
LOSS FOR THE YEAR EEFE (223,102) (209,486)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hftt2EUzE ~(FE)
Items that have been reclassified EEMHERANERE
or may be subsequently BNHEEEEZIEE
reclassified to profit or loss
Foreign exchange differences [E W =58 14,653 (21,350)
Change in value of available-for- AL ESMmEEL
sale financial assets BEEZRE 21 (125) (11,815)
Realisation of equity instrument HETHEE SR
reserve upon disposal BERSRER
of available-for-sale T ARFE
financial assets 88 (604) (10,910)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) EEHt2mEWzE(E51E)
for the year, net of tax (BrT1%) 13,924 (44,075)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FEXHEGEAHE
FOR THE YEAR (209,178) (253,561)
Attributable to: AT A -
Equity holders of the Company AR A (209,917) (253,879)
Non-controlling interests IR 739 318
(209,178) (253,561)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMEN'LPE F@(NC’IAL POSITION
N

nv_\ é E\ZI- i% ;‘ﬁ 3R %
As at 31 December 2017
RZE—+tF+=-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HieE FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - HBRRERE 14 272,752 337,728
Goodwill and other intangibles AmERAMELEE 15 28,121 35,327
Interests in associates REEZ N T 2 RS 17 9,848 7,185
Pledged bank deposits BB IRITIF K 25 — 66,070
Restricted cash PR HIEE 25 — 5,045
Deferred income tax assets BEMSHEE 18 7,249 5,345
Non-current prepayments FEBNHRFE AR 19 27,675 28,348
Prepaid operating lease rentals T ERNES 20 1,351 1,393
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE 21 42 61
Total non-current assets ERBEEAE 347,038 486,502
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories T8 22 11,287 6,183
Trade receivables B 5 W RIE 23 120,434 87,480
Prepayments, deposits and other BAR  Ee RAEMEK
receivables E/QE] 24 82,900 77,414
Tax receivables JE U i 18 905 960
Available-for-sale financial assets AN EeREE 21 — 1,281
Restricted cash PR HIEE & 25 5,085 9,991
Pledged bank deposits EREIRITIF K 25 231,365 150,138
Short-term bank deposits BHERITER 25 379 —
Cash and cash equivalents BERIREEEY 25 65,228 68,144
517,583 401,591
Assets held for sale RHEHERE 14(iv) 19,556 24,374
Total current assets MENE EEE 537,139 425,965
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables B S RN IE 26 116,254 79,134
Other payables and accruals H e~ 5108 R EET & B 27 65,969 49,735
Borrowings BR 28 194,654 187,681
Tax payables FE IR 133 465
Total current liabilities mE B EEE 377,010 317,015
Net current assets mEEEFE 160,129 108,950
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANGIAL POSITION
e BB IRR &R

As at 31 December 2017
RZE—+tF+=-HA=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HteE FHET FAET
Total assets less current liabilities EERERRBDEE 507,167 595,452
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Borrowings BR 28 58,905 129,103
Deferred income tax liabilities REFMSHAE 18 52,775 60,455
Other long-term liabilities Hit R E 7,546 6,963
Total non-current liabilities FRBEELE 119,226 196,521
Net assets EEFE 387,941 398,931
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to the Company’s AR GlkEzEH AEGER
equity holders
Share capital & A< 30 144,970 123,370
Reserves G 33 118,704 152,033
263,674 275,403
Non-controlling interests SEFE IR fE 34 124,267 123,528
Total equity B 387,941 398,931
Signed on behalf of the Board on 26 March 2018 by REBEEVR _ZE—N\F=ZA=-+HEE
Erik D. Prince Hua Dongyi
HER—
Director Director
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT pf
MEERZER N
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-F—LET-A=+—ALFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARAERREAER
Non-
controlling
Share capital Reserves Total interests Total equity
e e @it FiEhER BiER
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hiit FEL FAT FET FET FET
At 1 January 2016 R-E-xE-F-H 122,950 403,795 526,745 116,250 642,995
Comprehensive income/(loss) 2EkE/ (F8])
Loss for the year FEBE = (209,816) (209,816) 330 (209,486)
Other comprehensive loss L2 AEE
Foreign exchange differences ERES — (21,338) (21,338) (12) (21,350)
Change in value of available- NHEESRAEL
for-sale financial assets BEg 21 — (11,815) (11,815) — (11,815)
Realisation of equity instrument HEFHLESR
reserve upon disposal of AERERER
available-for-sale financial assets TERE 33 = (10,910) (10,910) — (10,910)
Other comprehensive loss for the FEAMEEER
year, net of tax (BrHit%) = (44,063) (44,063) (12) (44,075)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EErmb/ (B8)
for the year 0% - (253,879) (253,879) 318 (253,561)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEREAR - - — 6,960 6,960
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR = (8,202) (8,202) — (8,202)
Transactions with equity holders HERHBEAZRS
Share-based compensation IRIA S T2 8 - 21,477 21,477 — 21,477
Exercise of share options fTibRERkE 420 3,653 4,073 — 4,073
Symmetrical put and call option HIERE RRE R 13 = (6,963) (6,963) — (6,963)
Shares acquired for share BRHREEEIRE
award scheme fin — (7,848) (7,848) — (7.,848)
420 2,117 2,537 6,960 9,497
At 31 December 2016 R=E-"E¥+=-B=t-H 123,370 152,033 275,403 123,528 398,931
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-F—LET-A=+—ALFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AAFAEEREARE
Non-
controlling
Share capital Reserves interests  Total equity
RA& 1 @3 FERES B
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
3 FET -2 FET A7 A7
At 1 January 2017 RZE-t&£-f-H 123,370 152,033 275,403 123,528 398,931
Comprehensive income/(loss) 2EkE/ (F1R)
Loss for the year FEBER - (223,760) (223,760) 658 (223,102)
Other comprehensive income/(loss)  Eft2mbzE/ (BiE)
Foreign exchange differences EHER - 14,572 14,572 81 14,653
Change in value of available- AtHESHEREL
for-sale financial assets EEEE
21 - (125) (125) - (125)
Realisation of equity instrument LEARLESHER
reserve upon disposal of FERERTARE
available-for-sale financial
assets 188 — (604) (604) — (604)
Other comprehensive income FREMZEKE (BHE)
for the year, net of tax — 13,843 13,843 81 13,924
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FEZANE/(BR)4E
for the year - (209,917) (209,917) 739 (209,178)
Transactions with equity holders BERBEAZRS
Issue of shares BIRD 21,600 170,856 192,456 - 192,456
Share-based compensation IR 2 8 - 10,880 10,880 - 10,880
Lapse of share options BIRIER - (879) (879) - (879)
Shares acquired for share BRHREEEIRE 2
award scheme fin - (4,269) (4,269) - (4,269)
21,600 176,588 198,188 - 198,188
At 31 December 2017 R=F-tF+=-A=+-H 144,970 118,704 263,674 124,267 387,941
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT-OF CASH FLOWS
fa = EE! % )\ﬁl % % ‘g

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HIEFE

2017 2016
—E—tE ZT—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaE FET FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RELETFH 2
ACTIVITIES HERE
Cash used in operations EEMAZERS 35 (118,380) (161,788)
Income tax paid BT ATIS (654) (3,713)
Net cash used in operating activities &KL EEFTAZEEFE (119,034) (165,501)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ~ REREEEH >
ACTIVITIES HERE
Purchase of property, plant and BEYZE W REE
equipment 14 (10,052) (4,862)
Purchase of intangibles BEEFEE 15 (7,982) —
Proceeds from disposal of HEYE WBRZERS
property, plant and equipment KIE 35 25,729 11,763
Proceeds from disposal of assets HERFELEEE 2B
held for sale A 780 4,650
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of I EE KB A 7] (FORR B Uk BB
cash acquired RE) — 8,337
Acquisition of an associate I — KB A A (12,156) —
Loan to an associate M —REEE R AR E K (6,877) —
Increase in short-term bank deposits %2 Bi$R 1717 3L hn (379) —
Interest received B2 WF S 9,463 20,519
Proceeds from redemption of BOEHESREEZE
available-for-sale financial assets KIE 21 19 29
Net proceeds from disposal of HEAHEESREE MG
available-for-sale financial assets FKIBFEB 1,144 17,706
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash HEKBAF (KRB HE
disposed RE) 35 — (4,842)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEB(FR) FBEzHRe
investing activities FE (311) 53,300
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REMETBZ2REESRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid BEAFE (22,283) (20,461)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits B EIFRITERURD — 223,553
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash 2R #I3 &4/ (3 h0) 10,050 (7,765)
Purchase of shares for share award &%) 22E 512188 & i (D
scheme (4,269) (7,848)
Proceeds from exercise of share TR AR FT 1S SRR
options — 4,073
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRID TS 5B 192,456 —
Repayment of bank loans ERRITER (153,705) (220,921)
Repayment of other loans EEHMER (301) —
Drawdown of bank loans REURTTER 112,875 5,181
Repayment of capital element of BERMERE 2 ERHMH
finance leases (21,666) (15,002)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEEE (TR Z
financing activities e FE 113,157 (39,190)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-F—tE+-AS+—HILEE

2017 2016
—E—tF AN
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Hat FHET FET
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERASEEY2ZRHD
CASH EQUIVALENTS EE (6,188) (151,391)
Cash and cash equivalents at FzReRREEEY
beginning of the year 68,144 223,365
Exchange differences FE W Z 58 3,272 (3,830)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZESRBESEEY
AT END OF THE YEAR 25 65,228 68,144
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FiN

GENERAL INFORMATION

Frontier Services Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of
its principal place of business is Suite 3902, 39th Floor, Far
East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong
Kong. The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of aviation
and logistics services and the provision of online financial
market information. The Company is listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved
for issue by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the
Company on 26 March 2018.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), a collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). These consolidated financial
statements comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of Preparation (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by (i) the revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets and derivative financial instruments,
which are carried at fair value and (ii) the assets held
for sale which are measured at fair value less cost of
disposal. The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

Going concern

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group reported a loss of HK$223,102,000 (2016:
HK$209,486,000) and recorded net cash used
in operating activities of HK$119,034,000 (2016:
HK$165,501,000). As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s
cash and cash equivalents amounted to HK$65,228,000
(2016: HK$68,144,000).

The Group is developing its service offerings in security,
logistics and insurance services in Africa, South East
Asia and the Middle East. The steps undertaken by the
Group to achieve the above objective includes, amongst
others, setting up a global security center in Dubai,
United Arab Emirates; investing in training facilities
and purchasing security equipment and vehicles; and
actively pursuing new opportunities in these service
offerings with new customers. Whilst the continual
expansion of the Group’s service offerings is expected
to generate income in the future, the Group would
require considerable capital investments and working
capital for these developments of which the required
funding are yet to be secured.

2

TEETHBRBE )

2.1

mBEE(F)

RERAVBRERBIEBE LKA
E (A& () EfHIR AR BESIRZ AT
TESMEERTES R T E K (i)
BARBERLEKANTEZIFE
PEEEBIGRR - REFEED
MBREENZREMBEHRETE
FRETHRSTEHE  TREE
BEECRBASBE SRR ZBRE
AR B ET o P RZEVED E % HE
REREEE  SBRERMEE
HRAEMBREMEBEZE2HEBER
Mz 4 3R -

HE-_Z—tHF+=-A=+—H1L
FE - AEBE S E18 223,102,000
BIL(ZZ — /N F : 209,486,000 7%
L) RBBIREFESHAZESF
f5119,034,000/8 L(=ZF — /< 4F :
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED.FIN
CLE R e

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued)
Going concern (continued)

In view of these circumstances, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity and development of the Group’s businesses
and its available sources of financing to assess whether
the Group will have sufficient funds to fulfill its financial
obligations to continue as a going concern. The Group
has taken the following measures to improve the
Group'’s financial position, which include but not limited
to the followings:

(i On 9 January 2018, Mr. Erik D. Prince, the
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company, has exercised 50,000,000 share
options at an exercise price of HK$1.5 per share
to subscribe for 50,000,000 new shares. Total
proceeds for the exercise of options amounted to
HK$75,000,000 were received;

(i) On 2 March 2018, the Company announced that
it has entered into three subscription agreements
with three subscribers (the “Subscribers”),
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to allot and issue to the Subscribers,
and the Subscribers have agreed to subscribe
for up to 640,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at the price of HK$1.30 each (the “Share
Subscription”). One of the Subscribers, a company
that is ultimately controlled by a state-owned
enterprise in the PRC, is a substantial shareholder
of the Company; whilst another subscriber is a
current shareholder of the Company. Total gross
proceeds for this Share Subscription amounted
to approximately HK$832,000,000 and the
completion of the subscription is subject to the
approval at the Company’s upcoming special
general meeting and the Listing Committee of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited having
granted the dealing of and permission to deal in
the subscribed shares;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of Preparation (continued)
Going concern (continued)

(iii)  As at 31 December 2017, the Group had unutilized
banking facilities of approximately HK$31,000,000.
The Group has communicated continuously with
the principal banks on the Group’s performance
to ensure the existing banking facilities, which
are fully secured by the Group’s pledged bank
deposits amounted to HK$184,816,000, to be
continuously available to the Group. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that such
banking facilities will be renewed upon expiry in
2018 and continue to be available to the Group for
the next twelve months from 31 December 2017;
and

(iv) Implementing measures to improve profitability
and cost containment measures to reduce capital
and operational expenditures.

The management has prepared cash flow projections
covering a period of 12 months from 31 December
2017. The cash flow projections has taken into
account the anticipated cash flows generated from the
Group’s operations, possible changes in its operating
performance, the successful completion of the Share
Subscription and the continuous availability of the
Group’s existing banking facilities. These assumptions
about future events and conditions are subject to
inherent estimation and uncertainties. The directors,
after making due enquiries and considering the basis
of management’s projections described above, believe
that there will be sufficient financial resources to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due
in the coming 12 months from 31 December 2017.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of Preparation (continued)

Impact of new, amended and revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the
following standards and amendments for the first time
for the accounting period beginning on 1 January 2017:

HKAS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiatives

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Recagnition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

As part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 - 2016 Cycle

HKFRS 12 (Amendments)

The adoption of these amendments does not have any
material impact on the Group’s financial statements for
the year.

The amendments to HKAS 7 require disclosure of
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
see Note 28(e) for details.

The following new and amended HKFRSs have been
issued, but are not effective for the Group’s accounting
period beginning on 1 January 2017 and have not been
adopted early:
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBEBMESE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued) 21 wBEEEE)
Impact of new, amended and revised HKFRSs el » 16T RAGIEGTE B BHRE
(continued) R CHE(E)
HKAS 28 Measuring an Associate or Joint 1 January 2018 BEHEN  RANEBEHEZE —T-N\F
(Amendments) Venture at Fair Value %ZBFFZP} ERAgARRA —A-H
HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property 1 January 2018 BbEER  ERRENE —E)N\E
(Amendments) F40% 2 B3] —R-H
HKFRS 1 Deletion of Short-Term 1 January 2018 ERUBHREEN WREARAEZE Z2-)\&
(Amendments) Exemptions for First-Time F1RZET ik —R-H
Adopters
HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement 1 January 2018 BRUHRLEEN DROAERHIN ZF-N\E
(Amendments) of Share-Based Payment FoS 2B RP2HERkHE —A-H
Transactions
HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial 1 January 2018 BAUBREEN ERBEAUBREE —EN\F
(Amendments) Instruments with HKFRS 4 FA%zEET  AE4%RBAR  —F-H
Insurance Contracts ERBANBRE
EAIZOREHT
2
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018 REMBREEL 2BIA —Z-N\&
595 —F—H
HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets 1 January 2018 BEMBREEN REFHARENR —5-\F
(Amendments) between an Investor and its F10%2BITR HEERAZEZ —A-R
and HKAS 28 Assoclate or Joint Venture AEEHEAE AELEIIE
(Amendments) 282 ET
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 1 January 2018 REMBREER RARPAHZMA Z3-N\F
Customers F15%; —A-A
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019 REMBREEN HE —E-NE
£16% =
HK (IFRIC) Int-22  Foreign Currency Transactions 1 January 2018 B (BRHERE MERFRERE Z5-\&
and Advance Consideration REZEE)RE —F—H
F22 5
HK (IFRIC) Int-23  Uncertainty Over Income Tax 1 January 2019 BR(ARMBRE MER2 BRI, 2314
Treatments REZEL)RE RE -B—H
F23 5
The adoption of HKAS 28 (Amendments), HKAS 40 BB G ERFE 285 2 BT
(Amendments), HKFRS 1 (Amendments), HKFRS 2 ARG ERE A0 2185] - B
(Amendments), HKFRS 4 (Amendments), HKFRS 10 WS MEERFE 1R 21E5] - BAY
(Amendments), HK (IFRIC) Int-22 and HK (IFRIC) Int-23 B EERIFE 255 2 B5] - BAME
would not have any significant impact on the Group’s ig&?']%ﬂﬁZf 5] - BAMB®
results of operations and financial position. HRIE105R 2 85T « B (BB

ﬁ%#& REZE)REBE22HRE
BRERVEHRERBERES)RE
FERFRIEH AR 2ELEER
MBEHRREREAERTE -
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of Preparation (continued)

Impact of new, amended and revised HKFRSs
(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” replaces the whole
of HKAS 39. HKFRS 9 has three financial asset
classification categories for investments in debt
instruments: amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) and fair value through
profit or loss. Classification is driven by the entity’s
business model for managing the debt instruments and
their contractual cash flow characteristics.

Investments in equity instruments are always measured
at fair value. However, management can make an
irrevocable election to present changes in fair value
in OCI, provided the instrument is not held for trading.
If the equity instrument is held for trading, changes in
fair value are presented in profit or loss. For financial
liabilities there are two classification categories:
amortised cost and fair value through profit or loss.
Where non-derivative financial liabilities are designated
at fair value through profit or loss, the changes in the
fair value due to changes in the liability’s own credit risk
are recognised in OCI, unless such changes in fair value
would create an accounting mismatch in profit or loss,
in which case, all fair value movements are recognised
in profit or loss. There is no subsequent recycling of the
amounts in OCI to profit or loss. For financial liabilities
held for trading (including derivative financial liabilities),
all changes in fair value are presented in profit or loss.

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and
liabilities and expects that the Group’s financial asset
that is currently classified as available-for-sale (“AFS”)
will satisfy the conditions for classification as at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)
and hence there will be no change to the accounting
for these assets. Accordingly, the Group does not
expect the new guidance to affect the classification and
measurement of these financial assets.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of Preparation (continued)

Impact of new, amended and revised HKFRSs
(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

HKFRS 9 also introduces a new model for the
recognition of impairment losses — the expected credit
losses (“ECL”) model, which constitutes a change
from the incurred loss model in HKAS 39. HKFRS 9
contains a “three stage” approach, which is based on
the change in credit quality of financial assets since
initial recognition. Assets move through the three stages
as credit quality changes and the stages dictate how
an entity measures impairment losses and applies the
effective interest rate method. The new rules mean that
on initial recognition of a non-credit impaired financial
asset carried at amortised cost, a day-1 loss equal to
the 12-month ECL is recognised in profit or loss. In the
case of accounts receivables, this day-1 loss will be
equal to their lifetime ECL.

Where there is a significant increase in credit risk,
impairment is measured using lifetime ECL rather than
12-month ECL.

The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on ECL rather than only
incurred credit losses as is the case under HKAS 39.
It applies to financial assets classified at amortised
cost, debt instruments at FVOCI, contract assets under
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
lease receivables, loan commitments and certain
financial guarantee contracts. The historical credit
losses are immaterial.

Based on the historical experience of the Group, the
default rates of the outstanding balances with customers
and related parties are low. Hence, the directors of the
Company do not expect that the application of HKFRS
9 would result in a significant impact on the Group’s
impairment provisions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of Preparation (continued)

Impact of new, amended and revised HKFRSs
(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These
are expected to change the nature and extent of the
Group’s disclosures about its financial instruments
particularly in the year of the adoption of the new
standard. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the application of HKFRS 9 would not have a material
impact on the Group’s financial position and results of
operations. HKFRS 9 must be applied for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
— This new standard replaces the previous revenue
standards: HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS 11
“Construction Contracts”, and the related Interpretations
on revenue recognition. HKFRS 15 establishes a
comprehensive framework for determining when to
recognise revenue and how much revenue to recognise
through a 5-step approach:

(1) Identify the contract(s) with customer;

(2) Identify separate performance obligations in a
contract;

(8) Determine the transaction price;

(4) Allocate transaction price to performance
obligations; and

(5) Recognise revenue when performance obligation
is satisfied.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of Preparation (continued)

Impact of new, amended and revised HKFRSs
(continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(continued)

The core principle is that a company should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to the customer in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the company expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. It
moves away from a revenue recognition model based
on an “earnings processes” to an “asset liability”
approach based on transfer of control. HKFRS 15
provides specific guidance on capitalisation of contract
cost, license arrangements and principal versus
agent considerations. It also includes a cohesive set
of disclosure requirements about the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising
from the entity’'s contracts with customers. The major
revenue stream for the Group is provision of services,
the performance obligations of this revenue is currently
recognised when the related services are rendered.

Impact on the revenue recognition timing and amount
may arise when multiple performance obligations
are identified and satisfied. Transaction price should
be allocated to each distinct performance obligation
identified based on relative stand alone selling
prices, which is the price that is normally charged for
the individual good or services when they are sold
separately to customers. Incremental costs to obtain a
contract will be capitalised under HKFRS 15 if they are
expected to be recovered in long term. This could result
in additional deferred costs for certain contracts with
customers which incur a commission or agency cost
at the time of signing up a long term service contract.
However, such costs may be expensed as incurred as
a practical expedient if the amortisation period of the
asset is one year or less. The contracts with customers
entered into by the Group are normally for a term less
than one year. Management has performed preliminary
assessment on the implementation of HKFRS 15 and
the initial result indicated that it would not result in any
significant impact on the Group’s financial position
and results or operation other than changes on the
disclosure.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FTESHHEBRESE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued) 21 wBEEEE)

Impact of new, amended and revised HKFRSs
(continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(continued)

Meanwhile, there will be additional disclosure
requirement under HKFRS 15 upon its adoption. HKFRS
15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 and earlier application is permitted.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16, “Leases” addresses the definition of a lease,
recognition and measurement of leases. The standard
replaces HKAS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations.
The Group is a lessee of office premises, which are
currently classified as operating leases. The Group’s
future operating lease commitments, which are not
reflected in the consolidated statement of financial
position, under non-cancellable operating lease of
HK$113,957,000 as at 31 December 2017, is set out in
Note 36(b).
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of Preparation (continued)

Impact of new, amended and revised HKFRSs
(continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

HKFRS 16 provides new provisions for the accounting
treatment of leases and will in the future no longer
allow lessees to recognise certain leases outside of the
consolidated statement of financial position. Instead,
all non-current leases must be recognised in the
form of an asset (for the right of use) and a financial
liability (for the payment obligation). Thus each lease
will be mapped in Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position. Short-term leases of less than twelve
months and leases of low-value assets are exempt
from the reporting obligation. The new standard will
therefore result in an increase in right-of-use asset and
an increase in financial liability in the consolidated
statement of financial position. This will affect related
ratios, such as increase in debt to capital ratio. In the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
leases will be recognised in the future as depreciation
and amortisation and will no longer be recorded as
property rental and related expenses. Interest expense
on the lease liability will be presented separately from
depreciation and amortisation under finance costs.
As a result, the property rental and related expenses
under otherwise identical circumstances will decrease,
while depreciation and amortisation and the interest
expense will increase. The combination of a straight-line
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and the effective
interest rate method applied to the lease liability will
result in a higher total charge to profit or loss in the
initial year of the lease, and decreasing expenses during
the latter part of the lease term. The new standard is
not expected to apply until the financial year beginning
on or after 1 January 2019, including the adjustment of
prior years. It is expected that certain portion of these
lease commitments will be required to be recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position as right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of Preparation (continued)

Impact of new, amended and revised HKFRSs
(continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

The Group has disclosed its non-cancellable operating
lease commitments in Note 36(b). As a result of the
adoption of the new standard, there will be no operating
lease commitment.

Nevertheless, it is expected that there will be no material
impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group as the total expenses to be recognised by
us over the entire lease period and our total net profit
over the lease period is not expected to be materially
affected. The adoption of HKFRS 16 would not affect our
total cash flows in respect of the leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

We are continuing to assess the specific magnitude
of the adoption of HKFRS 16 to the relevant financial
statement areas and will conduct a more detailed
assessment on the impact as information become
available closer to the planned initial date of the
adoption of 1 January 2019.

There are no other new, amended or revised standards
that are not yet effective that are expected to have any
impact on the Group in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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NOTES T0 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has the rights to, variable
returns from its investment with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date
that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. ldentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest's proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. If the business combination is
achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying
amount of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FiN

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not re-measured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income
and expenses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Profits and losses
resulting from inter-company transactions that
are recognised in assets are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment losses (Note 2.8). Cost
includes direct attributable cost of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners.
The difference between the fair value of any
consideration paid/received and the relevant
share of the carrying amount of net assets of the
subsidiary acquired/disposed of is recorded in
equity.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e UK

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequent accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are recognised in profit or
loss.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
or the Company has significant influence, but
not control or joint control, over its management,
including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting and are initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after
the date of acquisition. The Group’s investments
in associates include goodwill identified on
acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment
loss (Note 2.8). Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for
as goodwill.

The carrying amount of the investments in
associates is tested for impairment in accordance
with the policy described in Note 2.8.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FiN
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Associates (continued)

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.
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NOTES T0 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEGHBESERE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued) 22 #ZE(E)
(c) Goodwill (c) EE
Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of EERYIREZENRE - Uk
the consideration transferred, the amount of any B 2 EMEERERSRE L
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the EARISE AT EE 75 2 AR A HE
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity mRBBEZ AR BESRAT
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the WEAIRIFEEAREBEZ
identified net assets acquired. ZHEE ©
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill RERFEME @ 54 0T
acquired in a business combination is allocated BEzEmEesE2EHAIX
to each of cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or HmRAEMHHBRBMENSHRESE
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from EBN([REEEEMN])HR
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or CELBMAER - mEMOR
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated S B EMARREEA
represents the lowest level within the entity MABEEENMERFERN
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal ®IEER - B TREE 5B
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at [ERAEITEERR o
the operating segment level.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken EEGFETRER © HE
annually or more frequently if events or changes BEHHIR B RN EERA]
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. BEHHIRRER - (EEE AR
The carrying amount of goodwill is compared to e MEREEHENKE SR
the recoverable amount, which is the higher of {ELLES » AT & 58 A BB
value in use and the fair value less costs to sell. BEEQA R BERESKAAER
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an =& o EARER R #ER A H
expense and is not subsequently reversed. % - BEE A eHEE -
2.3 Segment Reporting 2.3 AU®E
Operating segments are reported in a manner BESMZREANBEAEEHZ
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the FTEEREBAREERB AL RSE
chief operating decision-maker of the Group. The Zﬁfﬁ—ﬁ ° T’Eﬂj'ﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁ’|§5§%ﬁ2$
chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for NAEE DEERKEE H
allocating resources and assessing performance of the EE%EEQE&&%A B EbZ &
operating segments, has been identified as the Board of I o

the Company that makes strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IFESHHEHES)
POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Foreign Currency Translation 24 HNEELR
(a) Functional and presentation currency (a) ZEERIIEREK
ltems included in the financial statements of each EEEEB 2 MEwERMTIE
of the group entities are measured using the BN EREEMETER
currency of the primary economic environment BREZEB([HEEEE )
in which the entity operates (the “functional FTE o #RE M E R LA TS
currency”). The consolidated financial statements iR MABTAARRRIZNEE
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s MR KER 7 25|58 o
functional currency and the Group’s presentation
currency.
(b) Transactions and balances (b) XZRAEE
Foreign currency transactions are translated SN ZZ 5 THERR R 5 B HAskIE
into the functional currency using the exchange BEFHEEACERRER
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions ML B’ - FENERFE
or valuation where items are re-measured. A2 BB RS RS AN ETHE
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting ZEEMBENE EIRFRER
from the settlement of such transactions and MEMEELZERBETERE
from the translation at year-end exchange rates WS RIER o
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate HERBHEIELBEREGE
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated W RINEAIBERA] o BT
income statement within “finance costs”. All other BHME R BEBERGRE RER
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented HIBR Al HneEE& A -
in the consolidated income statement within “other
operating expenses”.
Foreign exchange differences on non-monetary FEEHEeMEEWHER
financial assets, such as equities classified AHHEZRE)ZER =5
as available for sale, are included in other sFAEMEmURES -

comprehensive income.

90 Frontier Services Group Limited %t 2 fR7S 4 AR A Al



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

TEETHBRBE )

2.4 HNEER(E)

2.4 Foreign Currency Translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the financial position
date;

(i)  Income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rate (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the

(c)

E S AT}

B S ETIBREETR
ZEBER(ETLEHRER
IRECES 2 B ) 2 EEME
BARRIRIA T 7R B E RS BR
ﬂam_

(i) FME/Rz2SHBARILE
Rz EEMEBIRITHE
AAOR B 2 W E X %
g

(i) Hh=mEA KA KRR
TR T E R E (BRI
I BE =W FE AR 5 A HAR
TEXZ Rt 226
BAH ERHERT

transaction dates, in which case income and WZIEH Ew&% HEZ
expenses are translated at the dates of the MESRMMET)

transactions); and

(iiiy  All resulting exchange differences are

(i) FIEBERLEECZERE

recognised in other comprehensive income. FH A H 2 W s P B

R o
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the FH&%?W?%H#WEEZW
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets M AR BEARDIEAZS

and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Foreign exchange differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation), all
of the foreign exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the equity holders of the Company are recognised
in profit or loss.

WELEEZﬁE&ﬁTﬁJ@ﬁ R
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FiN

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4

2.5

Foreign Currency Translation (continued)
(c) Group companies (continued)

In the case of a partial disposal that does not
result in the Group losing control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated foreign exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.

For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions
in the Group’s ownership interest in associates
or joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated foreign
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or
loss.

Property, Plant and Equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES T0 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2:5

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, which
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their costs to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, is provided at the following annual rates:

Leasehold properties Over the remaining life of the lease
(45 years commencing 2004)

Over the shorter of the term of the lease
(45 years commencing 2004) and

the estimated useful life

Leasehold improvements

Hangars 2.5%

Aircraft and aviation equipment 5% to 10%
Plant, machinery and tooling 10% to 38%
Trucks, trailers and containers 8% to 20%
Motor vehicles 18% to 20%
Office equipment 12.5% 10 33%
Furniture and fixtures 12.5% 10 25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial
position date. An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals of property, plant and
equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are recognised within
“other income and other gains” in the consolidated
income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

Other Intangibles

Other intangibles with finite useful lives are carried
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Other intangibles with
indefinite useful lives are not amortised.

Amortisation of other intangibles, which is calculated
using straight-line method to allocate their costs over
their estimated useful lives, is provided at the following
basis:

Operating certificates and ~ Over the estimated useful lives of 9 - 15 years

trademark
Non-compete agreements  Over the non-compete periods of 4 - 6 years
Other rights Over the estimated useful lives of 1-2 years

Management reviews the expected useful live at each
financial position date based on the estimated period
over which future economic benefits will be received
by the Group and takes into account the level of future
competition, the risk of technological or functional
obsolescence of the assets, and the expected changes
in the market.

Other intangibles are derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of other intangibles are measured at the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the assets and are recognised with
“other income and other gains” in the consolidated
income statement in the period when the assets are
derecognised.

Non-Current Prepayments

Prepayments for engine overhaul and maintenance costs
of aircraft are recorded as noncurrent prepayments as it
is not expected to be utilised within twelve months and
management has discretion over whether or not these
costs have to be incurred. Upon consumption, these
prepayments are charged to the consolidated income
statement.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets, Interests in
Subsidiaries and Associates

Non-financial assets which have an indefinite useful life
— for example, goodwill or intangible asset not ready to
use — are not subject to amortisation but are tested for
impairment annually or whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. Non-financial assets which are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each financial position
date.

Impairment testing of the interests in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

The Group determines at each financial position date
whether there is any objective evidence that the interest
in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the
associate and its carrying amount and recognises the
amount in the profit or loss.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9

Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when
their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction and a sale is considered
highly probable. The non-current assets are stated at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than interests in
subsidiaries and associates) and investment properties,
which are classified as held for sale, would continue to
be measured in accordance with the policies set out
elsewhere in Note 2.

An impairment loss is recognized for any initial or
subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value less
costs to sell. A gain is recognized for any subsequent
increase in fair value less costs to sell of an asset,
but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss
previously recognized. A gain or loss not previously
recognized by the date of the sale of the non-current
asset is recognized at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are
presented separately from the other assets in the
statement of financial position. Non-current assets are
not depreciated or amortised while they are classified
as held for sale.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTBEBRESE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Financial Assets 210 eREE
(a) Classification (a) #H¥E
The Group classifies its financial assets in the $%l%%ﬂﬁ§ﬁiﬁ%%?%

following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, and available for
sale. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

CRARBENAERE &
&Jﬂ& RIE R A E S
ﬁ? DERTBAZESH
BEZBENMmME - BEENY
iﬁgu«uﬁ‘f%ﬂiﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁz/ﬁ\
#H o

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit () HBAIREBFTAEZZ
or loss THEE
Financial assets at fair value through profit BARBEFABRZ
or loss are financial assets held for trading. TREEABFEEE L
A financial asset is classified in this category THEE - WERMEE
if acquired principally for the purpose of FTEAERHEE - A
selling in the short term. Derivatives are also FIAULER R o BRIEDT A
categorised as held for trading unless they TABHWEEIELHA
are designated as hedges. Assets in this B BRI EAFEE
category are classified as current assets if S Th FEHRER T+
expected to be settled within twelve months; EARNEE  ZENE
otherwise, they are classified as noncurrent. ENBARDEE &

BID M RIERBEE °

(i) Loans and receivables (i) B REKZE
Loans and receivables are non-derivative EREEWRIEREE
financial assets with fixed or determinable E‘Eﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ( Bt
payments that are not quoted in an active P E BB T 3% & 2 IEDT
market. They are included in current assets, EeREBEE - %ZZHEE
except for those with maturities greater than TR R MBEE - HER
twelve months after the financial position U3 O = I - e [
date classified as non-current assets. The NEA RN EE DB AIE
Group’s loans and receivables comprise MBEE - A&EBzE
trade receivables, deposits and other AR EWRIEBESRE
receivables, and cash and bank balances MBMRARZE ZER
in the consolidated statement of financial %&ZIE e K H b fE U
position. HIBLA RIR & RIRITA

% .
(iii)  Available-for-sale financial assets (i) AHRHERHEE

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets that are either
designated in this category or not classified
in any of other categories. They are included
in non-current assets unless the financial
asset matures or management intends to
dispose of it within twelve months after the
financial position date.
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JE 5 A L 2R Bl 3K 3 4
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BN B &+ — @A
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial Assets (continued)

(b)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” category are presented in
the consolidated income statement within “other
income and other gains/(losses), net” in the period
in which they arise. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
as part of “other income and other gains/(losses),
net” when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial Assets (continued)

(b)

(c)

Recognition and measurement (continued)

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the consolidated income statement as”’gains on
disposal of available-for-sale financial assets”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part
of “other income and other gains/(losses), net”.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of “other income and other
gains/(losses), net” when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the company or the counterparty.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part
of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial asset have
expired or have been legally transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FiN

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11

Impairment of Financial Assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
loss event) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or a group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that
there is objective evidence of an impairment loss
include:

(i) Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
obligor;

(i) A breach of contract, such as default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

(iiiy  The Group, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
granting to the borrower a concession that
the lender would not otherwise consider;

(iv) It becomes probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

(v)  The disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

TEETHBRBE )

211 eRMEEREBEE)
(a) HEEBEHAEAS ke EE &)

2.11 Impairment of Financial Assets (continued)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

(vi) Observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of financial
assets since the initial recognition of those
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets

(vi) TBRHBBRTEDA
EEHABVTHR
& HEfAFARKBER
BHBAAEZHE -
HE B BER IR i R BE X AR
A E R & B A E N

in the portfolio, including: Bl BIE

0 adverse changes in the payment . ,,EAEF‘%%}(/\Z%
status of borrowers in the portfolio; SR S 3R ) 2
and @J P &

o national or local economic conditions . HZEE TR
that correlate with defaults on the REEMRBEZ 2
assets in the portfolio. B 5k b, 7 1t 4% 7% 4k

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the

RERREWKIENS - BB
SRDOREBEEREERZS
BAEERERNERR 2 A5
AERRERETBEHKRE
EZRREREBER)ZREM
EZERETE - BEREER
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impairment loss decreases and the decrease Frk >+ T sz e 4> 7] % 280 4 B
can be related objectively to an event occurring MERBERIEE ZEHE
after the impairment was recognised (such as an BHEAZERTREMNRE)

improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Impairment testing of trade and other receivables
is described in Note 2.14.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11

Impairment of Financial Assets (continued)

(b)

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. For debt securities, the Group uses
the criteria set out in Note 2.10(a) above. In the
case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is
also evidence that the assets are impaired. If
any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss, measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss, is removed from equity and
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are
not reversed through the consolidated income
statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair
value of a debt instrument classified as available
for sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial Liabilities

(a)

(b)

(c)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. The Group’s financial liabilities
include trade payables, other payables and
accruals, borrowings and other financial liabilities.

Recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value, in the case of a
financial liability not at fair value through profit
or loss, less transaction costs that are directly

attributable to the issue of the financial liability.
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expired.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amount is recognised in the profit or loss.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories,

mainly represent spare parts and

consumables for aircraft maintenance, are stated at

the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is

determined using the weighted average cost method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the

ordinary course of business,

less applicable variable

selling expenses.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. Trade and other receivables are
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They
are classified as current assets, except for those with
maturities greater than twelve months after the financial
position date are classified as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of the receivables. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the receivables’ carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the receivables is reduced through
the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement
within “other operating expenses”. When a trade
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against other operating expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16

217

Share Capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

Where the company’s shares are acquired from
the market by the Employee Share Trust under the
employee share scheme, the total consideration of
shares acquired from the market (including any directly
attributable incremental costs) is presented as shares
held for employee share scheme and deducted from
total equity. Upon vesting, the related costs of the
vested shares for employee share scheme purchased
from the market are credited to shares held for
employee share scheme, with a corresponding decrease
in employee share-based compensation reserve for
employee share scheme.

Trade and other Payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer) after the financial position
date. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IFESHHEHES)
POLICIES (continued)
2.18 Borrowings 2.18 EX

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any differences between
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings, using the
effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the end of
the financial position date.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

TEETHBRBE )

2.19 BVARIRIEFR 1S5

2.19 Current and Deferred Income Tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. The current
income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the financial
position date in the countries where the Group’s
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
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amounts in the consolidated financial statements. TR EEERER . A BELR

However, deferred income tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the financial position date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19

2.20

Current and Deferred Income Tax (continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally,
the Group is unable to control the reversal of the
temporary difference for associates. Only when there is
an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability
to control the reversal of the temporary difference in
the foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation
to taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

Employee Benefits
(a) Pension obligations

The Group participates in several defined
contribution plans, under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into separate entities.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due and are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in future payments is
available.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Employee Benefits (continued)

(b)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employees’
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted, including any
market performance conditions (for example, an
entity’s share price) and excluding the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets). Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected
to vest. At each financial position date, the
Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the option issuer
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and
share premium.

The Group recognises the effects of modifications
that increase the total fair value of the share-
based compensation arrangement or are
otherwise beneficial to the employees. The Group
shall include the incremental fair value granted
in the measurement of the amount recognised for
services received as consideration for the equity
instruments granted. If the modification occurs
during the vesting period, the incremental fair
value granted is included in the measurement of
the amount recognised for services received over
the period from the modification date until the
date when the modified equity instruments vest,
in addition to the amount based on the grant date
fair value of the original equity instruments, which
is recognised over the remainder of the original
vesting period.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Employee Benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

Share-based compensation (continued)

If the Group cancels or settles a grant of equity
instruments during the vesting period, the Group
should treat this as an acceleration of vesting and
recognise immediately the amount that otherwise
would have been recognised for services received
over the remainder of the vesting period.

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of the
subsidiaries in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period
as an increase to interests in subsidiaries, with a
corresponding credit to the Company’s equity.

Share award scheme

The fair value of the share awards granted to
employees or directors is recognised as an
expense with a corresponding increase in credit to
share-based compensation reserve. The fair value
is measured with reference to the Company’s
share price at grant date taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the share
awards are granted. Where the vesting conditions
are met before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the share awards, the total estimated fair value
of the share awards is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that the
share awards will be vested.

During the vesting period, the number of share
awards which are expected to be vested is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative far value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the consolidated income
statement for the year of the review.

Upon vesting, the amount recognised as an
expense is credited to shares held for share
award scheme and debited to share-based
compensation reserve.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Employee Benefits (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(")

Share award scheme (continued)

When the share award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it were vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award
is recognised immediately.

Employee leave entitlement and long service
payment

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service payment are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service payment as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on performance and takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or where
there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before the
normal retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates:
(a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits; and (b) when the Group
recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

(a)

(b)

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the pre-tax expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of
an outflow occurs so that an outflow is probable, it
will then be recognised as a provision.
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NOTES T0 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ZESHEEBESE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Revenue Recognition 2.22 W ARER
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the WABEAEBNEEEEHREE
consideration received or receivable for the sales EmEkRBEmMEKKERREZA

of goods and services in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added
tax and discounts, and after eliminating sales within the
Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and when specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Rendering of services

Service fee income in relation to the provision of
aviation and logistics services, freight forwarding,
ground logistics and warehousing services, and
aircraft management services is recognised in
the accounting period in which the services are
rendered and revenue can be reliably measured.

Maintenance income arises from the provision
of aircraft maintenance services, which include
repairs of aircraft, periodic servicing and painting
work. Income is recognised in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered
by reference to the stage of completion of
the specific transaction, based on the actual
maintenance work performed and spare parts
consumed.

Service fee income in relation to the provision of
financial market information is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the service
contract.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Revenue Recognition (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have been transferred to
the customer.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Rental income

Rental income from leasing of the Group’s
leasehold properties is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Leasing income

Revenue from the leasing of aircraft is recognised
in accordance with the respective agreements
over the period the services are rendered.

Reimbursement income

Reimbursement income of disbursement recharge
is recognised when the service is performed and
purchase invoices are received from respective
supplier.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23

2.24

Borrowing Costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which they are incurred.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

(a) Prepaid land lease payments under operating
leases

Leasehold interests in land are up-front payments
to acquire the land use rights. The payments are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated
on the straight-line basis to amortise the up-front
payments over the lease terms.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Leases (continued)

(b)

(c)

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Rentals
payable under operating leases are charged to
the consolidated income statement on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive
to enter into an operating lease are recognised as
a reduction of rental expense over the lease term
on a straight-line basis.

Leases of property, plant and equipment where
the Group has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Property, plant and equipment held under
finance leases are recognised as assets of the
Group at fair values at inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated
over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and
the lease term. The corresponding liability to the
lessor is included in the consolidated statement
of financial position as a finance lease obligation.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges
are charged directly to the consolidated income
statement.
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NOTES T0 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Related Parties

2.26

A person or entity is considered to be related to the
Group if:

(a)

a person or a close member of that person’s family
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (ii)
has significant influence over the Group; or (iii) is
a member of the key management personnel of
the Group;

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group, which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member;

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); or

a person identified in (a) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity or of a parent
of the entity.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair values with
resulting gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial Risk Factors

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks
which result from its operating, investing and financing
activities. Management periodically analyses and
reviews measures to manage the Group’s exposure to
market risk (including foreign currency risk, cash flow
and fair value interest rate risk, equity price risk and
fuel price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Generally,
the Group employs a conservative strategy regarding its
risk management and has not used any derivatives or
other instruments for hedging purposes.

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s financial instruments
mainly consisted of trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, cash and bank balances, bank loans,
finance lease payables, other loan, trade payables,
other payables and accruals, and available-for-sale
financial assets.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group currently operates mainly in
Hong Kong, Africa, Malta and mainland
China.

For operations in Hong Kong, most of the
transactions are denominated in HK$ and
United States dollars (“US$”). The exchange
rate of US$ against HK$ is relatively stable
and the related currency exchange risk is
considered minimal.

For operations in Africa, most of the
transactions are denominated in USS$,
Kenyan Shillings (“KES”) and South African
Rand (“ZAR”). No financial instrument was
used for hedging purposes for the year
due to the prohibitive cost of available
hedging opportunities. The Group is closely
monitoring the currency exchange risk of
KES and ZAR and will consider the use of
financial instrument for hedging purposes, if
necessary.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial Risk Factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

For operations in Malta, most of the
transactions are denominated in Euro
(“EUR”) and US$. No financial instrument
was used for hedging purposes for the
year. The Group is closely monitoring the
currency exchange risk of EUR and will
consider the use of financial instrument for
hedging purposes, if necessary.

For operations in mainland China, most
of the transactions are denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”). The conversion of RMB
into foreign currencies is subject to the rules
and regulations of the foreign exchange
controls promulgated by the Chinese
government. The exchange rate of RMB has
devalued since August 2015. No financial
instrument was used for hedging purposes
for the year. The Group is closely monitoring
the currency exchange risk of RMB and is
looking for any opportunities to mitigate the
currency exchange risk of RMB.

At 31 December 2017, if KES had
weakened/strengthened by 2% (2016:
2%) against HK$ with other variables
held constant, the Group’s loss after tax
and accumulated losses would have
been approximately HK$754,000 (2016:
HK$1,099,000) higher/lower.

At 31 December 2017, if ZAR had
weakened/strengthened by 10% (2016:
10%) against HK$ with other variables
held constant, the Group’s loss after tax
and accumulated losses would have
been approximately HK$372,000 (2016:
HK$478,000) higher/lower.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial Risk Factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

At 31 December 2017, if EUR had
weakened/strengthened by 3% (2016:
3%) against HK$ with other variables
held constant, the Group’s loss after tax
and accumulated losses would have
been approximately HK$70,000 (2016:
HK$123,000) higher/lower.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk arises from bank balances
and deposits and borrowings. Borrowings
obtained at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk which
is partially offset by bank balances and
deposits held at variable rates. Borrowings
obtained at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s
borrowings were denominated in HK$, US$,
EUR and ZAR (2016: US$, EUR and ZAR).
The Group has not used any derivative
financial instruments to hedge its cash flow
and fair value interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2017, if interest rate had
increased/decreased by 100 basis points
(2016: 50 basis points) with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s loss
after tax and accumulated losses would
have been approximately HK$1,963,000
lower/higher (2016: HK$263,000 higher/
lower).
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NOTES T0 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial Risk Factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(continued)

The sensitivity analysis above had been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the financial
position date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date,
and that all other variables had remained
constant. The stated increase/decrease
represented management’s assessment of
reasonably possible changes in interest
rates over the period until the next annual
financial position date. The analysis was
performed on the same basis for 2016.

Securities price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk for the listed equity investment
held by the Group which is classified as
available-for-sale financial assets (Note 21).

At 31 December 2017, the Group is not
materially exposed to the securities price
risk because the group disposed all Hong
Kong listed equity investment during the
year. At 31 December 2016, if equity
price of the respective equity investments
had increased/decreased by 10% with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s
equity instrument reserve would have been
approximately HK$128,000 higher/lower.

Fuel price risk

The Group is not materially exposed to
market price risk from the procurement of
fuels for the aircraft and truck fleet because
it is not a major cost component to the
Group’s operating expenses.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial Risk Factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amounts of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the respective notes to the
consolidated financial statements. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk is mainly related to its
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables,
and cash and bank balances.

Trade receivables are presented net of the
provision for impairment. Credit risks and
exposures are controlled and monitored on an
ongoing basis by performing individual credit
evaluations for all customers. These evaluations
focus on the customer’'s past history of making
payments when due and the current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. In
addition, management reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt regularly
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
recognised for irrecoverable amounts.

Majority of bank balances of the Group is
generally placed in short to medium term deposits
and investments with reputable banks.
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NOTES T0 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial Risk Factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

The Group implements a prudent liquidity risk
management to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements for maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and long term.

Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, the Group aims to maintain flexibility
in funding by keeping committed credit facilities
available from various banks if necessary. The
liquidity risk of the Group is primarily attributable
to trade payables, other payables and accruals,
bank loans, obligations under finance leases and
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other loan. ZEBRAEMET
The amounts of the contractual undiscounted cash CRABZAENARTRESK
flows of the financial liabilities were summarised ESBMENT :
as follow:
More than
1 year but
Within less than
On demand 1 year 5 years
BE-F
RER —ER BOREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 31 December 2017 R=ZB—tF+=A=t-H
Trade payables B SRR 116,254 - - 116,254
Other payables and HiERRER
accruals g - 47,609 - 47,609
Borrowings B - 202,558 65,656 268,214
Other long-term liabilities HittRHBEE — — 7,546 7,546
116,254 250,167 73,202 439,623
At 31 December 2016 —R"EtZA=t-H
Trade payables B SRR 79,134 — — 79,134
Other payables and HEAFIER
accruals st &R 36,811 — 36,811
Borrowings -0 197,919 140,147 338,066
Other long-term liabilities HiRHBE — 6,963 6,963
79,134 234,730 147,110 460,974
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

Capital Management

The Group regards its total equity as capital. The
primary objective of the Group’s capital management is
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders to support the Group’s
sustainable growth and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group reviews and manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares, raise new debt financing or sell
assets to reduce debt. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
a total liabilities-to-total assets ratio, which shows the
proportion of the Group’s assets being financed through
debt. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group’s strategy was to maintain the total liabilities-to-
total assets ratio around 50% (2016: 50%). The total
liabilities-to-total assets ratio at 31 December 2017 was
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50% (ZZF—NF :50%) c R=Z
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as follows: ELLET ¢
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Total liabilities BfE8E 496,236 513,536
Total assets BEMAE 884,177 912,467

Total liabilities-to-total assets

ratio REEEELE 56% 56%
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

Fair Value Estimation

The different levels of financial instruments carried at
fair value have been defined as follows:

(a) Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1);

(b) Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2); and

(c) Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The fair value of the available-for-sale financial assets at
31 December 2017 with respect to the listed investments
amounting to HK$38,000 (2016: HK$1,338,000) is based
on the quoted market prices of the listed investments.
The instruments are included in level 1 at 31 December
2017 (2016: Same).

The fair value of the available-for-sale financial assets
at 31 December 2017 with respect to the unlisted
investments amounting to HK$4,000 (2016: HK$4,000)
which are not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an investment are observable, the investment
is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BXRREES)
3.3 Fair Value Estimation (continued) 3.3 AAKEEME(E)
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial Rerm T AEMGEZEEMER
instruments include: % :
3 Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar ° *EMIEl\Zm%—iﬁz{ KR 5H
instruments; and B
D Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow o EEM(nFRRERED
analysis, are used to determine fair value for the MEREEE#R TR I A
remaining financial instruments. ZAREE -
The fair value of the derivative financial liability at 31 R-ZE—+&FE+-_A=+—H " 5t
December 2017 included in other payables and accruals A H M FE B K e ET B A Z@TE
amounting to Nil (2016: HK$1,851,000) is determined eRMAGBZARBEZ(ZE R
using a discounted cash flow approach which is not & : 1,851 OOO;%TE)E@EFHI?E%
based on observable inputs. A change in fair value of RABRG AB RS RENRE
the derivative financial liability of HK$1,851,000 was ET - FRTESHEBEZANE
made during the year. The instruments are included in BE#8) /451,851,000 R
level 3 at 31 December 2017 (2016: Same). —tF+=-A=+—H ' %Z%5I1H
FTARZEH(ZZ—RF : H8R) °
During the year ended 31 December 2017, there were HE-ZT—tF+-A=+T—HIt
no transfers of financial instruments between levels 1, 2 FE - F— ZER=ERHLE
and 3 (2016: Same). EH e T AEER(ZZ—/F : i
@) -
4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 BRETHERARK
JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are HERABEHEFET G UWRERATL
based on historical experience and other factors, including BRAMEMEARETE  BEEFRABER
expectations of future events that are believed to be THEAREZHARREH ZTEN -
reasonable under the circumstances.
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the $E@E¢$I#ﬂﬂ5ﬁﬁ#&ﬁj aX
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, LB EERER — $§”$ﬁwﬁ’3ﬁ@§i
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and RER BERNT —VHREEHEER
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material BEREEEEANFHRE 2GR KRR 2G5
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities RARRDS T Xt i ©

within the next financial year are discussed below.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1

Impairment of Goodwill

The Group conducts reviews annually whether goodwill
has suffered any impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amounts of CGUs have been determined based on
value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs
These calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates. Management judgement
is required in the area of asset impairment particularly
in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that
may indicate that the related asset values may not be

of disposal.

recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying amount of an
asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset in
the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management in assessing
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of operations.

Details of the key assumptions selected by management
in assessing impairment of goodwill are stated in Note
15.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.2

4.3

Impairment of Intangible Assets and Property, Plant
and Equipment

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or change
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on the higher of value-in-use
calculations or fair value less costs to sell calculations.

The calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates. Management judgement is required in the
area of asset impairment particularly in assessing:
(i) whether an event has occurred that may indicate
that the related asset values may not be recoverable;
(ii) whether the carrying amount of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher
of fair value less costs to sell and net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management
in assessing impairment, including the discount
rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could affect the net present value used in
the impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s
financial position and results of operations.

Impairment of Trade Receivables

The policy for impairment assessment for trade
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectibility and aging analysis of trade receivables,
and judgement of management. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the realisation of
these receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer. If the
financial conditions of the customers of the Group were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to make payments, provision for impairment might be
required.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.4

4.5

Fair Value Estimates on Acquisition of Subsidiaries

The initial accounting on the acquisition of subsidiaries
involves identifying and determining the fair value of the
consideration and the fair values to be assigned to the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the acquired entities. Any changes in the assumptions
used and estimates made in determining the fair values,
and management’'s ability to measure reliably the
contingent liabilities of the acquired entities will impact
the carrying amounts of goodwill and the identifiable
assets and liabilities.

Income Taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations, including
the aircraft leasing arrangement between the group
companies that are structured on an arm’s length basis,
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues, if any, based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, including the tax position of those intra-group
transactions, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all
unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses
can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred income
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies.

4

RESEERAME )

4.4

4.5

WEHE AR A AEEMGE

WIEM B DR 2 IR gt ERIE Y R
Hpl R ERE R AT EEZEK
BERBNAEMNEE  BEBERIA
BENAAREBE - EEFAAEE
7 PT 158 P B fRR 2R % 1 1 A9 il & HH ER
EET—J EM&E}EF@éETsEﬁE
HEBERZIABE  HEYHE
%ﬁT%HéE&%E%%E@%
%2

FRiE®

AEBEEZEREERBNE
ﬁ°§i%ﬁ%@ﬁ2%ﬁﬁ%g
EMERHE - BE TEHUESE
%%ﬁﬁZ’S‘Z%&E‘I‘%??%(@%%@
ARIEEAFELET Y 2 REBE
ZHE) o REBRIEE DKL IREFEI
FE S B 18 2 {h 5 T e sR TR HR B 75 2%
ZEBWMB)MELEZBE - M
EEEZRETGER BV IR T8
Z2EBIAR(BEZEEEERS 2
MM ZEERBEERGE
EHAZ N REERMEHEER
BE -

FE 7] B8 AT A e BR A O A A DA 3 85
BEZBRERN - ELAA H AN B
ZRBEEEERRLERSHEE
EFEEEBEHEANAE AR
R OR &R B A 2 7] BE B ] Ko K
”’%é*%ﬂﬁ¥ﬂﬁﬁvuﬁ
EAERELEREEL SR °

Annual Report 2017 &R

129



,4:-"":::,: ==

S eEEE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ll"_\ é E\ZI- i% $E % M;J- %I 3 :

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 BRETEERAEHE)

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.5 Income Taxes (continued) 4.5 FiEH(E&)
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised in respect HRAPEAMB AR ST+
of the unremitted earnings of subsidiaries in mainland FHZA=+—HABELERIEMNK
China generated subsequent to 31 December 2007 |8 A 7 2 7 [ 2 F fE i SRR R P
and Africa, except to the extent that the parent is able SHRAEE HESAFRIENEREE
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary HoBORHE mMEREZEENE
difference and it is probable that the temporary BEASRB AN B AR - B
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. SEEEEELDENAE - ZRR
Significant management judgement is required to BOIR 2 st fE - LA E & T i
determine the amount of deferred income tax liabilities RZIBLEMISHAR S5 -

to be recognised, which is based upon the estimated
timing of dividend distribution.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as
the Board of the Company. Management has determined the
operating segments based on the internal reports reviewed
by the Board of the Company that are used to assess
performance and allocate resources. The Group’s operating
segments are structured and managed separately according
to the services provided by different strategic business units,
and the services offered are subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of the other operating segments. The
business under each operating segments are summarised as
follows:

(i) Aviation and Logistics Business (“AL Business”) —
Provision of aviation and logistics services;

(i) Financial Market Information Business (“FMI Business”)
— Provision of online financial market information; and

(iii) Direct Investments — Other direct investments,
including interests in associates and available-for-sale
financial assets.

Others include corporate income and expenses and others.

The Board of the Company assesses segment performance
based on reportable operating loss.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
nV_\éE\ZI-iy%iﬁ%M{tH ‘%i

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 DEER(E)
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, results and certain assets, AERHZ -_TE—+tF+-_A=+—HIt
liabilities and expenditure information for the year ended 31 FEZWA - XERETEE - BERHA
December 2017 by operating segments is as follows: S ERILEED O ¢
AL FMI Direct
Business Business Investments Others
BRER LRHE
MRER BMER EERE il
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
A% AT FEx FA% FAET
Revenue (from external customers) WA CREEIEE) 704,587 19,827 - - 724,414
Depreciation nE 28,849 69 - 235 29,153
Amortisation B 6,222 - - - 6,222
Provision for impairment of HERAMELEEL
goodwill and other intangibles RiERE 9,000 - - - 9,000
Provision for impairment of nE  BERRENR
property, plant and equipment RELEEEL
and assets held for sale, net HERE 78 23,633 - - - 23,633
Operating loss BERE (161,987) (219) (5,875) (53,367) (221,448)
Interest income FISMA 9,463
Finance costs BEMAK (18,213)
Share of loss of associates [ NG (2,859)
Loss before income tax BRETEHABE (233,057)
Income tax credit FEhE% 9,955
Loss for the year FEBR (223,102)
Total assets BERE 857,007 4,010 8,012 15,148 884,177
Total assets include: BEAERSE
Interests in associates iNA=UNGIPR 5o 7,759 - 2,089 - 9,848
Total liabilities BERE 348,575 6,895 12,304 128,462 496,236
Capital expenditure BRFAX 25,464 43 - 35 25,542
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATE
mEMBRRME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 ZSWMERE)

ARERE-FAF+-A=+—BL
FEZBA  FERETAE  BERH
XEREBER BT

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, results and certain assets,
liabilities and expenditure information for the year ended 31
December 2016 by operating segments is as follows:

AL FMI Direct
Business Business Investments Others Total
mzEk Ea-k
MinEH L BRRE Hity @z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE7 FET T FET T
Revenue (from external customers) WA (REHHZEF) 555,462 21,427 — — 576,889
Depreciation ik 30,707 210 — 304 31,221
Amortisation By 2,894 — - - 2,894
Provision for impairment of BERANENEE
goodwill and other intangibles ZHERE 9,970 = = - 9,970
Provision for impairment of nE  BERRENR
property, plant and equipment FEHEEEY
and assets held for sale, net mEkE FE 17,362 = = — 17,362
Operating profit/(oss) BEH/ (BB) (126,960) (1,387) 10,712 (80,898) (198,533)
Interest income FIEBMA 13,857
Finance costs BERA (23,339)
Share of loss of associates [ NG (561)
Loss before income tax BRETEHAEE (208,576)
Income tax expenses RS (910)
Loss for the year FEER (209,486)
Total assets BEBE 875,051 5,561 13,312 18,543 912,467
Total assets include: BEBERE:
Interests in associates REE AR 2 R — — 7,185 — 7,185
Total liabilities BERE 483,974 7,890 8,813 12,859 513,536
Capital expenditure BARFAX 22,093 51 — 29 22,173
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ll"_\ é E\ZI- i% $E % M;J- %I 3 :

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 PEWER(E)
The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The Group's RRARMRES - REBERBEHINEF 2
revenue from external customers by geographical regions is W AR RSB D a0 ¢
as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Africa FEM 536,436 456,505
Europe B 143,757 98,958
The People’s Republic of China iE ARAMB(THE])
(“PRC”)
mainland China ==NEiNvNpii] 24,394 —
Hong Kong B 13,772 15,225
Others HAith 6,055 6,201
724,414 576,889
Revenue derived from external customers with amounts equal REHIINEEZWARERS SR AEE
to or above 10% of the Group’s revenue is as follows: WA10% 2 FIBIAT
Operating
segment HK$’000
Fed—bagid FT
Customer A AL Business 217,017
BER finZe R Y E 15
2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
FAET
Customer A AL Business 179,891
ZPH RIS LN
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 oIERE)
A reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments’ assets AERHBEELERAEEEELEZ
to the Group’s total assets is as follows: IR -
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Total assets for reportable segments  AI 23R D B E ELE 869,029 893,924
Corporate assets HEEE 15,148 18,543
Total assets of the Group AEBEELE 884,177 912,467
The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments REMTARBEMSHEEIINZIERD
and deferred income tax assets by geographical regions is as BEREROERESIT
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Africa JEM 242,151 312,322
Europe BOM 81,604 87,512
PRC G
mainland China [ ;A 3 11,393 7,883
Hong Kong B8 1,732 1,914
Others HAh 2,867 350
339,747 409,981
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6 REVENUE 6 WA
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA «
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FETL
Revenue from provision of aviation R B Rz R IR 7S 2 WA
and logistics services 704,587 555,462
Revenue from provision of online REREZR-ERMBEENZ
financial market information WA 19,827 21,427
724,414 576,889
7 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 7 EERAREAX
An analysis of employee benefit expenses, including directors’ BERINAX (BEEEME) ST :
emoluments, is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Salaries and bonuses e RIEA 138,826 120,524
Share-based compensation LARR 9 21+ 2 #i (8 10,880 21,477
Pension costs — defined contribution EHREMRAN — EEEHREE
plans 4,435 3,782
Termination benefits BEEL R A 6,698 1,807
Unutilised annual leave REAFR 526 1,297
Other benefits H b 17,247 17,242
178,612 166,129
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7 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued) 7 EERABEX (&)
(a) Directors’ Emoluments (a) E=EM<
Details of directors’ emoluments are as follows: EEMEFREHIET ¢
Contributions
Termination fopension ~ Share-hased Other
Name of director Salaries Bonuses benefits schemes  compensation benefits
Bike Wi
£1:54 fié g il BREA ittt 3Pk
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000
i i fi#r 7&i i &1 i i
Note (i
Year ended 31 December 2017 BECE-tF12f
Zt-ALEE
M. Erlk D. Prince Erk D, Prince & - 3m 1,782 - - 161 1,178 6,193
M. Ko Chun Shun, Jofingon BhERE 120 - - - - - - 120
M. Luo Ning Bt - - - - - - - -
Dr. Hua Dongyi ER-f1 - 434 2110 - % 8,163 ] 14,744
M. Hu Qinggeng byt - 1593 % - 1 185 110 2155
Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry EH 545 - - - - - - 545
Professor Leg Hau Leung AR 545 - - - - - - 545
Dr. Harold 0. Demuren Harold 0. Demuren 545 - - - - - - 545
Total i 1,75 9,011 3,985 - 149 8,509 1,438 2847

Year ended 31 December 2016 BECE-NETR

St-RLER

M. Erlk D. Prince Erk . Prince £ = 8 = = - 6,781 1,087 793

Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnon SR 12 = = = = - = 12

M. Luo Ning BEnt - - - - - - - -

Dr. Hua Dongyi ER-Bf - 1511 - - - 253 - 4084

M. Gregg H. Smih (Note i) Gregg H. Smith 55

i) - 1,367 1732 93 m 126 176 11,561

Mr. Hu Qinggang HEAE = 1508 13 = 5 0 il 229

Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry ik 543 = = = = = = 543

Professor Lee Hau Leung AR 543 - - = - = - 543

Mr, Wiliam J. Fallon (Note (i) Willam J. Falon 22

(1) 181 - - - - - - 18

Dr. Harold . Demuren Harold 0. Demuren 543 = - - - - - 543

Total L5} 1,930 4581 1,865 93 132 16,962 1374 .82

Notes: Wt -

(i) Other benefits include medical insurance, travel (i) HEEMN e ERmR - IRERR R
insurance and other statutory welfare contributions. H A ERFEK -

(i)  Mr. Gregg H. Smith resigned as an executive director (i)  Gregg H. Smith e £ BT AR A
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company with TEFRFOBEE  R_T—RFh
effect from 1 May 2016. A—B&ERK-

(iii) Mr. William J. Fallon resigned as an independent non- (iif) Vl/illiam/_J. Falloqﬁﬁiﬁﬁéﬁiéﬁ
executive director of the Company with effect from 30 VERTES  R-F—RFAA

April 2016. =+HEM-
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Directors’ Retirement Benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
director during the year ended 31 December 2017 in
respect of services as a director of the Company and its
subsidiary undertakings or in respect of other services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company or its subsidiary undertakings (2016: Nil).

Directors’ Termination Benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2016, a termination
payment of HK$963,000 was made by the Group to
Mr. Gregg H. Smith in relation to his resignation as an
executive director and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with effect from 1 May 2016.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other payments
made to or receivable by any director during the year
ended 31 December 2017 in respect of the loss of office
as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary
undertakings, or the loss of other office in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or
its subsidiary undertakings.

Consideration Provided to Third Parties for Making
Available Directors’ Services

No consideration was provided to or receivable by third
parties for making available directors’ services during
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Information about Loans, Quasi-Loans and Other
Dealings Entered Into by the Company or Its
Subsidiary Undertakings, Where Applicable, in
Favour of Directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in
favour of directors, their controlled bodies corporate and
connected parties during the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: Nil).

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

There were no significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: Nil).
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)

(9)

Five Highest Paid Individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include Two (2016: three)
directors, whose emoluments are reflected in Note 7(a).
The emoluments payable to the remaining three (2016:
two) individuals during the year are as follows:

EEEFFEZ)
(9) ERUBEHFAL

FAREBLURSHFALEBE®
f(ZFB—RF: =6)EF - A
TR E7(a) ARER - FAEN T
EHB =M (ZZF—RF: M)A L
ZEEmT

2017 2016
—E—+fF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Basic salaries, other allowances and EA#H 4 « E)EaL K&
benefits in kind EWF = 9,200 7,292
Bonuses 14T 203 1,548
Share-based compensation LARR 9 21+ 2 Fi (8 1,583 2,008
Contributions to pension schemes RIREGETEI K 60 137
11,046 10,985

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Emolument bands MEEE
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T —
3,000,000 /& 7T
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 87T —
4,000,000 78 7T
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 /87T —
5,000,000 /% 7T
HK$6,000,001 — HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 87T —
6,500,000 /8 7T

e FTIEE

Number of individuals

AE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
1 _
1 J—
1 1
— 1
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7 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued) 7 REEEFMBEX#E)
(h) Remunerations of Senior Management (h) EREEASEHM
Details of the emoluments payable to the members of BEERIIZEREEAERHNEIE
the senior management other than Directors by band for EBEDZARFEEMEFBAOT :

the year are set out below:

Number of individuals

A

Emolument bands MEEE 2016
—E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
HK$1 — HK$500,000 17875 — 500,000/8 7T 1 —
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001 7T —
1,000,000 & 7T 3 —
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /87T -
1,500,000 78 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /& 7T -
2,000,000 78 7T 1 2
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T —
3,000,000 78 7T 1 1
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7T —
5,000,000 7% 7T 1 —
HK$6,000,001 — HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 57T —
6,500,000 T _ 1
8 FINANCE COSTS 8 BhE 5 2
2017 2016
—2—tF —TRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interests on: THEBEZFE :
Bank loans RITE R 8,647 11,410
Finance leases REHE 7,216 7,806
Other loan HaER 61 2
Financing arrangement fee MEZHER 1,831 4,111
Net exchange losses on borrowings BERZENERFE 458 10
18,213 23,339
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EUMBHRRME

9 INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSES) 9 Ff8RiERE, (BAxX)
2017 2016
-t =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Current income tax BVERFR 1S B
Outside Hong Kong BB LASN [E
Provision for the year ANE E (317) (15,251)
Adjustment in respect of prior BEFEFAE
years (40) (401)
(357) (15,652)
Deferred income tax BEFTISTE
Hong Kong &5 _ 17
Outside Hong Kong BB LA R 10,312 14,725
9,955 (910)
Taxation on profits has been calculated on the estimated F A F 2 THIB B IR (A 5T 8 SR A i F1 LA AR
assessable profits for the year at the applicable rates of ESEEBMEBRR thhH ZETEAR
taxation prevailing in the countries/places in which the Group = HRERITED - RERESmEE -

operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.
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9 INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSES) (continued) 9 FiBBER (FX)#)

FAREBERABRATBERZAEHER
/(AR ENBERRERRNERRZAE
TRERZBEAEEE ZAEHER,(F

The reconciliation between the income tax credit/(expenses)
on the Group’s loss before income tax and the theoretical
amount of income tax credit/(expenses) that would arise

using the domestic tax rate applicable to each of the group F)ZEMmE B HIRAT ¢
companies for the year is as follows:
2017 2016
—EB—t& —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F&T
Loss before income tax KR Fr S i AT &S 18 (233,057) (208,576)
Tax calculated at the rates applicable AABBRERZHRFE 2
in the countries concerned 1A 30,057 5,137
Tax effects of: AR B IBERIELE
Income not subject to tax BARB 2 A 902 2,349
Expenses not deductible for tax DRMEHRBIIE 2
purposes (18,592) (17,944)
Utilisation of previously 2 2 B AR TR 2 HiITEE1E
unrecognised tax losses 278 351
Reversal of previously recognised ZAEREMER 2D
timing differences — (1,281)
Tax losses not recognised KRR 2 TIE R (2,862) (3,546)
Withholding tax, net TR 212 14,425
Adjustment in respect of prior years B EE (40) (401)
Income tax credit/(expenses) FrigRiEe,/ (Fx) 9,955 (910)

142 Frontier Services Group Limited 5t 2 ARIEE B AR A 7



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATE

v

10

BB HRMEE

~=
—

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOSS FOR THE YEAR 10 FEBIE
The Group’s loss for the year is arrived at after charging/ REBEEBEEDHNER (GTA) Ti&
(crediting): 15 :
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FAET
Cost of direct materials and job BEEVMHERRI(ERAX
expenses (Note (i)) (Htaz (i) 131,705 130,697
Depreciation (Note 14) e Wiz 14) 29,153 31,221
Amortisation of intangibles (Note 15) & E RS (H17 15) 6,180 2,850
Amortisation of prepaid operating TR A SR A TE 2 51
lease rentals (Note 20) (BtzE20) 42 44
Engine overhaul cost (Note 19) SIS (K2 19) 8,214 11,570
Operating lease rentals on land and T REFZELHOHES
buildings 17,619 17,779
Operating lease rentals on equipment R ZELHEHHESL 4,558 —
Operating lease rentals on motor MEZREHEOEE
vehicle 235 235
Other operating expenses including, HZEBRABEEPBRE) :
inter alia:
Professional and consultancy fee HXNEMER 19,762 31,321
Travelling expenses ZIRE A 13,140 14,507
Net exchange gains ME 5, W e 5 (5,846) (3,558)
Acquisition-related costs L B 4B R R AR — 4,779
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME BBERREZ
plant and equipment EtE 55 4,348 3,631
Net loss on disposal of assets held HERIELEEEY
for sales BB 118 =
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN &
Audit services EZRB 2,945 2,685
Non-audit services HEZIRTE 501 1,114
Provision for impairment of trade B 5 R YGKIE 2 R BB
receivables (Note 23) (K17#23) 1,020 638
Provision for impairment of AR~ e REMEIRGRIE
prepayments, deposits and other LRERE (K7 24)
receivables (Note 24) 8,359 215
Provision for inventories (Note 22) GFERENZ22) 56 1,597
Other income and other (gains)/ H U AR E A (W) E5iE
losses, net including, inter alia: FREAE(EPaE)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries S M B A Rz W
(Note 35) (H1a35) — (16,968)
Warehouse income BERA (3,260) (1,895)
Provision for impairment of R—REERRZ'EZ
investment in an associate WERE (KT 17)
(Note 17) 3,228 —
Change in fair value of derivative MESRABBZANEESE
financial liability (Note 27) (HiaF27) (1,851) —
Net refund from court case for RE HEH B AR Z ARG
disposal of subsidiaries ZIRFOFEE (2,517) —
Note: et -
(i) The cost of direct materials and job expenses includes, inter (i) BEEMBERARIERSZ2E(EFRaRE)R

alia, parts for aircraft maintenance services, fuel cost, take-
off, landing and depot charges, crew cost, toll cost and custom

clearing cost.

B IRY 2 T - PR ~ B - EfE
RRBEER - IEABKA - BITRAR
BRER -
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11

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share for the year is
based on the Group’s loss attributable to the equity holders of
the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year less the weighted average
number of ordinary shares held for share award scheme
during the year.

The calculation of the diluted loss per share for the year is
based on the Group’s loss attributable to the equity holders of
the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year less the weighted average
number of ordinary shares held for share award scheme
during the year assuming the conversion of the exchangeable
preference shares and the exercise of the outstanding
share options, the dilutive potential ordinary shares of the
Company. A calculation is made to determine the number
of ordinary shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average market share price of the
Company’s ordinary shares over the year) based on the
monetary values of the exchange price of the exchangeable
preference shares and the subscription rights attached to the
outstanding share options.

The basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2017 were the same because the effect of the
assumed conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding during the year was anti-dilutive.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year less the weighted average number of ordinary
shares held for share award scheme during the year for the
calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is set out
as follows:

B ———

11

NGIAL STATEMENTS
éﬂﬂi%iﬁ%pﬁg} \

BRER
AEEFREABRIIBBEA DR RER
BARGASREBERARFACETER
P 2 D <7 25 BURIN F M #F 1E R D 2R Rh &t
2 BB EFHBGTE -

AERFREEERDBIEAR R RER
BABEAEEBEARFABRETER
P 2 D4 7 9 ORI F AR E R D BBt
82 BER 2 T E - A RERA R
B SIS IR K R TT{E 2 A 1T
& RNARAIREERTEASESER 2T BR
FHE o RARRIEA HRE LR Z HIRE
R ARITEBREMNABE2EEE
B BEURAABERFALRRALE
Iz FHTSRERRE)BE 2 EBKREE

N
Aars ©

BRFERMABITEILREE(ER 2 E
EERARAERRERERAR REENE -

BHBE—T—tFt+t-_A=+—BLLF
B2 BIRERLEEEEAR -

REEHESREARBEER 2 FAB R
17 & B A N 15 ORI F R 1R AR {82
BIET 82 BB ARSI T

2017 2016
—B—+t% —2-x

Weighted average number of ordinary £ 217 & @M% 2 i F15 25
shares in issue
Less: Weighted average number of
ordinary shares held for share
award scheme

B - SRR SREDFT 8 2 Eim AR
Z InkEF 8

1,414,787,935

(1,891,150)

1,233,125,352

(3,535,531)

1,412,896,785

1,229,589,821

Group’s loss attributable to the equity ZNA RIS A A FE(S
holders of the Company AEEEE

HK$°000
FET

(223,760)

HK$'000
FET

(209,816)
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13

DIVIDENDS

The Board of the Company does not recommend the payment
of any dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
Nil).

BUSINESS COMBINATION
Acquisition of Maleth Aero Limited (“Maleth”)

On 3 February 2016, Frontier Services Limited (“FSL”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
conditional investment agreement for the acquisition of 51%
equity interest in Maleth, a company through its subsidiary,
Maleth Aero AOC Limited, principally engaged in the provision
of aircraft management services, for a consideration of
approximately EUR1,002,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$8,963,000). On the same date, FSL also entered into
a symmetrical put and call option agreement, pursuant to
which FSL has the right to purchase and the seller has the
right to sell the remaining 49% equity interest in Maleth
at an option price equal to the higher of EUR1,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$8,190,000) and 4.5 multiplied
by the average consolidated earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation of Maleth for the prior two
financial years preceding the exercise of the put option or the
call option, which is capped at EUR10,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$81,895,000). The acquisition of 51%
equity interest in Maleth was completed on 6 July 2016. The
acquisition immediately enabled the Group to strengthen
the Group’s presence in the Mediterranean region, further
connecting the Group’s logistics operations in Africa to
Europe, the Middle East and the One Belt One Road region of
central Asia.

12

13

RS
ARAESFETERRNBE_T—tF
T_A=Zt—RALEEZEARS(ZE

—NEF ) e

E A gt
I B Maleth Aero Limited ([ Maleth ])

MRZZE—XRE-_A=H KRB Z2&M
B2 T Frontier Services Limited ([FSL])
I B IE R E R - AUEE Maleth (—
R % 8 H [t B A FlMaleth Aero AOC
Limited E EX FIRHRBERRBE 22
7)) 2 51% kA= - K{E44A 1,002,000
B 7T (#8 % 12 498,963,000 7 ) - A H -
FSLINET 3 — 17 4 78 52 0 K 3R B 27 4 1
Z B FSLEEKBEME S ARELE
Maleth 82 T~ 49% lx AN #Ez - EAEEEER
LRAER 28 &% : 1,000,0008 7T (8
£ 74 498,190,000 7t ) B2 4.5 F€ LA Maleth
FAAT {58 520 HA 4 ok 57 8 HA 4 B 2 AR B B K
FEZBRAE - HIE - EREHATZF
B4R A B F| (&= 410,000,000 BT (15
50%781,895,000‘}%7_5» o U B Maleth 2
51% A= E, T—RNFtANHRE
BX o iR IR EE (1S $%@Eﬂﬂﬂm%§7ﬁﬁ\
AR A ERIRE - WIRARNERR
;HE?J‘IZ%E%ME@ BN - AR R A
PEH IR 2 B o
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13 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 13 ¥KE6t)
Acquisition of Maleth Aero Limited (“Maleth”) (continued) Iz 8% Maleth Aero Limited ([ Maleth ])
(&)
The following table summarised the consideration paid for the TRBAMEBITRAI M ZRE - WiE
issued share capital, the acquisition-related costs, the analysis HEKAN « WEEBHEESFRAZONT R
of the net cash inflow from the acquisition, and the amounts of RINEBRRERZKNBEERFIAERE
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed recognised at the ZERE

date of acquisition.

2016
—E—RE
HK$'000
FET
Purchase consideration g2 K E
Cash paid BEfNEE 8,963
Acquisition-related costs, included in other WHEABRER AR @ st AR EEER
operating expenses
Legal and professional fees and other expenses JARNMRBEEHA N EMER 4,497
Outflow of cash to acquire business, net of cash WEXBHE L RE (HBRFAKERS)
acquired
Cash consideration RERE (8,963)
Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiaries B AR RIS EEY
acquired 17,300
Net cash inflow from acquisition WHEEEIR 25 mA 8,337
Property, plant and equipment (ER - LIS S 1,416
Deferred income tax assets BEMBHEE 2,513
Intangibles M AE 5,938
Receivables (a) FEMFRIA (a) 40,605
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRESEEY 17,300
Payables FETFRIA (561,158)
Borrowings BX (715)
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFMEHARE (2,078)
Total identifiable net assets AR FEEARE 13,821
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR 2 (6,960)
6,861
Goodwill on acquisition (b) s =18 2 752 (b) 2,102
8,963
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13 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Acquisition of Maleth Aero Limited (“Maleth”) (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Acquired receivables

The fair value and the gross contractual amounts
of receivables are approximately HK$40,605,000
which include trade receivables with a fair value of
approximately HK$21,151,000. The fair values of trade
and other receivables approximate their carrying
amounts. There is no contractual cash flow from
the acquired receivables that are expected to be
uncollected.

Goodwill on acquisition

The Group recognised goodwill of approximately
HK$2,102,000 in the consolidated statement of financial
position, which was primarily attributable to the
consideration that was mutually agreed between the
parties, with reference to the carrying amount of the
identifiable net assets of approximately HK$13,821,000
as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill is primarily attributable to the anticipated
profitability and net cash inflows of the acquired
business.

Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business contributed a revenue of
approximately HK$54,658,000 and a net profit after
tax of approximately HK$369,000 to the Group for
the period from 6 July 2016 (date of acquisition) to
31 December 2016. Had the acquisition occurred on
1 January 2016, the acquired business would have
contributed a revenue of approximately HK$132,466,000
and a net loss after tax of approximately HK$1,445,000
to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Symmetrical put and call option

The symmetrical put and call option was recognised as
a financial liability at its present value of HK$6,963,000
as at 31 December 2016.

13 ¥XKS6t8)
I8 Maleth Aero Limited ([ Maleth )

(%)
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

P g FE W 5k T

BWHREBEZ AR BERBENESTE
49 4 40,605,000/87C © BIFEARLE
fE#%721,151,0008 L 2 & 5 fE I 5k
He B REMBEWHRIEBEZARE
BEHEARTERES - BIERE MK
BREURBZAARESAEEHT
REUR D] o

UEBRZEE

AEERGAVBRRKRERHE
#12,102,00078 7T * EEARFIAITT
—HRAEBEZREMRR ERABET
S2EREBERARAIEEFE K
EfE#) 13,821,000 BILEE ©

BEDTEREMEBEEORE
BREENRBEZFRA -

WA Kz Fi &t

FTMBEBERA S —~FLtAX
BUkER ) RBEE —ZE— R F+ =
A=+—HIEHMALREE TR K
A 454,658,000 7T & B i 1% i
%IJ%%E%@ssg 0004 7T ° i fE =
HR—_ZE—"F—HA—H%L A
Mﬁzﬁ%%ﬁ%%zi_? NE+ZA
=t HBHLEFESAAEETRK
A #)132,466,0007% 7T & B Tl 12 15
FBIRFAA) 1,445,000 BT °

HERERBIER

W-E—XE+=-BA=+-8"
HERERRBHERERE
6.963 000 B TR AL MAH -
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 14 %  BBRERENBFIELEEE
ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Leasehold Aircraft Plan, Trucks,
mprovements and aviafion machinery {railers and Motor Office Furniture
and hangars equipment and fooling containgrs veficles equipment and fixures Total
HEMRRE i B3 BN e
RA#E Rhzke Lt REER hi #OEHE KiihzE i3
HKS 000 HKk§0o0 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKk§0o0 HKS 000 HK§000 HK§'000
i T - i i i3 i3 i
Nots (i
s
At January 2016 H=5-RE-5-A
Cost 7 9,169 454,852 9563 20848 5503 8042 2741 510,718
Accumulated depreciation and ZifERAE
mpairment (3.499) (81,001) (2,056) (708) (2657) (4330) (769) (95,016)
Net carrying amount FERE 5670 373,851 1507 20,140 2846 3712 1976 45702
Year ended 31 December 2016 BEZE-RE12R
St-ALEE
Opening net carrying amount FIETSE 5670 373 851 7501 PART 2846 312 1976 415,102
Additions HE 469 2,066 1197 - a7 49 RIS 4862
Requistion of subsidares KEHBDA 1)

(Note 13) = = 1074 - 161 154 ) 1416
Disposals (Note 35) WEHEw) (239) (11,095) (1) (750) (133) (462) (490) (16,304
impaiment W = (13570 - (37%) - - - (173)
Deprciaion (ot 10) &) (1) (172) %) (356 (112) ) (%) (3121
Transfer fo assets el for sale BRBRHERE

(Mot i) () - (23499 - - - - - (23499
Other transfer HhEg - (13) - - - (345) 38 -
Exchange differences ENEE 2 T4 716 1610 (1n 52 89 3204
Closing net crying amount FUEERE 3001 306,791 74% 13845 208 2688 1870 337,728

At 31 December 2016 HZE-AET2R
Sl
Cost ik 6,083 383,339 12412 21,606 5748 1645 3092 440,72
Accumlated depreciation and EifERHE

impeiment (36%) (7654 (4317 (1761 (3710 (4957 (122 (102997)

Net carrying amount FERE 3,001 306,791 4% 13,84 2038 2,688 1870 3317128
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 14 YE EERRKBIBFLEEE
ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (continued) (#&)
Leasghold Aircraft Plant, Trucks,
improvements and aviation machinery trailers and Motor Office Furniture
and hangars equipment and tooling containers vehicles equipment and fixtures
BEDRER FAR #2 8h LER
it 23k RI& RE&E 7 HAERE GiRzE
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000
i i fEr i i i i/ fir
Note (i
W
Year ended 31 December 2017 BEZE-tE12R
St-ALEE
(Opening net carrying amount EERSE 3,001 306,791 149 13,045 2038 2,608 1470 878
Addtons #E 1,790 - 264 2,484 288 1,666 966 10,082
Disposals (Note 35) L&) (51) (21.289) - (24m) - %) (202) (300m)
Ipaiment (Note (i) REE ) - (19,551) - - - - - (19,551)
Depreciafion (Note 10) &) (577) (20,107) (239) (3,709) (1,029) (924) (414) (28,153)
Other transfer EfEd - - - - U] (18) % -
Evchange differences Eizg [ 1,663 699 1,102 75 o7 4 3738
Closing net canying amount EfEmSE 4,206 241,563 6,065 11,5 3,959 3,405 2,309 MR
At 31 December 2017 Ho8-tEt2f
-
Cost i3 5,8%9 266,389 13,809 18572 8,003 930 3,467 348,202
Accumlated depreciation ang EifERHE
impairment (1,639) (46,826) (1744) (1377) (4,840) (5.919) (1,159) (75,450)
Net carrying amount REE 4,206 241,563 £,065 11,245 3,959 3,405 2,309 78
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (continued)

Notes:

(0]

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

150 Frontier Services Group Limited 5t 2 ARIE =B AR A 7

The Group leases various aircraft under non-cancellable finance
lease arrangements. The lease terms are between 5 and 10
years and the ownership of the aircraft lies within the Group.
The net carrying amount of the aircraft under finance leases at

31 December 2017 is as follows:

14 YR BERRENFFLEERE

(&)

(i) AEERBEIARHERERELHEESZ R
M o HEAN FE5FEE10F - M R %
ERGAKERAE -R-_ZE—tF+_-A
=+—H REEETREZERFEN
-

Aircraft

s
2016

—E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Cost — capitalised finance leases A - BEXREBMERE 130,639 145,383
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 27 & EiRE (28,274) (21,372)
Net carrying amount BREVFE 102,365 124,011

The provision for impairment of property, plant and equipment,
net of HK$17,362,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016

represents:

(a) a reversal of provision of HK$10,844,000 taken against
two highly modified survey aircraft due to subsequent
disposals during the year ended 31 December 2016;

(b) a provision of HK$24,414,000 charged to the carrying
amounts of six aircraft to reflect their market values; and

(c) a provision of HK$3,792,000 charged to the carrying
amounts of certain trucks and trailers to reflect their

market values.

The provision for impairment of property, plant and equipment,
net of HK$19,531,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017
represents a provision of HK$19,531,000 charged to the
carrying amounts of seven aircraft to reflect their market values.

Property, plant and equipment reclassified as assets held for

sales

During the year, the Group disposed one aircraft classified
as assets held for sale with a carrying amount of HK$898,000
for a net proceed of US$100,000 (equivalent to approximately

HK$780,000).

As of 31 December 2017, the Group has committed to and
has been actively locating a buyer for one idle helicopter in
Kenya with net carrying amount of HK$19,556,000 (2016:
HK$24,374,000). In addition, a provision of impairment of
HK$4,102,000 was charged to the carrying amount of the
helicopter to reflect its market value during the year ended 31
December 2017. This helicopter was transferred to assets held

for sale under current assets in 2016.

(iy HEZZ—A"F+-A=1+—BLEEZYD
¥ - M KRR E 2 ME R T EE 17,362,000
PSTTHE ¢
(a) HBREBEE-T—A~"F+-A=t+—8

EFEAHEMBLERBEREZ
AR FREME - AU B H A 2 B A
10,844,000 /87T

(b) BMARREZEmMEELZEE
24,414,000/ 7T © ARBEHE
K

(c) HMETEBREEZEMEELZE
3,792,000/ + ARBREM(E °

(i) HEZZ—tF+-_A=+—"HLEFED
¥ - WIS RERE 2R E R EFEE 19,531,000
B EEAALRREEEEZ & E
19,531,000/ 7T * AR ZERE 2 THE °

(iv) DERFELEBEZYE  HERR

FA - AEE HE—ZRAREE % 898,000 7T
B BARIIELEEEZRE « FISIEF
85 100,000 7T (A5 747 780,000 % 7T ) °

HE-Z—t+t&+=-A=+—8 &%E
—BEREEBEAHENRERET —EEAEA
19,556,000 7 7. (= Z — 7N £ © 24,374,000
BLIZHEEARNEER « I - 2R
B 7+ # Bk [ B B 30 5RO B # # 4,102,000
BT WRMERBE-_T—+F+=A
=St—HIEFEZNE - RZT— X "FZE
EAREERERDEETZHELESR
Eo
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15 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES 15 BERHMEREE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Other Other
Goodwill intangibles Goodwill intangibles Total
HE HUBVEE HE EHEVAE @it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Note (i) Note (ii) Note (i) Note (ii)
B (i) B & (i) B &% (i) K& (i)
At 1 January ®-A-H
Cost S 107,047 38,475 145,522 104,926 32,537 137,463
Accumulated amortisation and 2B ERAE
impairment (104,945) (5,250) (110,195) (94,975) (2,400) (97,375)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,102 33,225 35,327 9,951 30,137 40,088
Year ended 31 December BE+t-A=1-H
LEE
Opening net carrying amount FHREFE 2,102 33,225 35,327 9,951 30,137 40,088
Additions RE - 7,982 7,982 - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENBAR
(Note 13) (M 13) - - - 2,102 5,938 8,040
Amortisation (Note 10) B 10) - (6,180) (6,180) - (2,850) (2,850)
Impairment (Note (i) and (i) B2 R (i) - (9,000) (9,000) (9,970) . (9.970)
Exchange differences EREE - (8) (8) 19 — 19
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 2,102 26,019 28,121 2,102 33,225 35,327
At 31 December BW+=B=t-AH
Cost KR 107,047 46,457 153,504 107,047 38,475 145,522
Accumulated amortisation and 2B RAE
impairment (104,945) (20,438)  (125,383) |  (104,945) (5250)  (110,195)
Net carrying amount REHE 2,102 26,019 28,121 2,102 33,225 35,327
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15 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES

(conti

Notes:

(i)

nued)

Goodwill is monitored by management at the CGU level within
an operating segment level with reference to the business
performance based on geography and type of business. A
summary of the allocation of goodwill to the identified CGUs of
the Group is as follows:

15 BEREMELEE®)

EE

() PHEHEEEREEIDERRREELSE
RIKTEITER RS - W E E M R AR P
BHZEBRE - AREREESEZE &
AREEEBMZBENT

2017 2016
“E-tE BN
Accumulated Net carrying Accumulated Net carrying
Gross impairment amount Gross impairment amount
ag ZitRE REFE &% ZiTRfE REE
FSL FSL 94,975 (94,975) - 94,975 (94,975) —
Phoenix Aviation Limited (‘PAL") EEfZE 6,730 (6,730) - 6,730 (6,730) —
Cheetah Logistics SARL Cheetah Logistics SARL
(“Cheetah’) ([Cheetah]) 1,772 (1,772) - 1772 (1,772) —
Transit Freight Forwarding Transit Freight Forwarding
Proprietary Limited (“TFF") Proprietary Limited
([TFF)) 1,468 (1,468) - 1,468 (1,468) —
Maleth Maleth 2,102 - 2,102 2,102 — 2,102
107,047 (104,945) 2,102 107,047 (104,945) 2,102

During the year ended 31 December 2017, management
considered the actual results of Maleth for the year was
comparable to the forecast. Therefore, management considered
that no provision for impairment on the goodwill arising from the
acquisition of Maleth was necessary.

The provision for impairment of goodwill of HK$9,970,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2016 represented the impairment of
goodwill arising from the acquisitions of PAL, Cheetah and TFF
in 2014 and 2015. The decision to take a full impairment charge
against the goodwill was following a careful internal operation
review in the context of the respective CGUs’ historical
performance and market expectation by the management. In
recognition of this, the goodwill was fully impaired and absorbed
into the Group’s reported consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2016.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

15 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(if)

(iii)

Other intangibles mainly represent operating certificates,
trademark, customer base and non-compete agreements
derived from the acquisition of various subsidiaries.

The provision for impairment of other intangibles of
HK$9,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017
represented impairment of operating certificates and trademark
arising from the acquisitions of PAL in 2014. The decision to
take an impairment charge against the other intangibles was
due to the scale down of maintenance business and following a
careful internal operation review in the context of the respective
CGUs’ historical performance and market expectation by the
management. In recognition of this, the other intangibles were
impaired and absorbed into the Group’s reported consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The recoverable amount is determined based on value-in-use
calculation. This calculation is made with the use of discounted
cash flow model, based on financial budget approved by
management covering a 5-year period. Cash flow beyond the
5-year period is extrapolated using the key assumptions stated

below:

15

BAERHEMELEE#)

Hiat : (&)

(if)

(iii)

HitmAETERKBZRNBARESL
MKERE B BPERTEFHE -

HE_Z—+tF+_A=+—HIEFEZ
E fth 4 77 & 2 R (B % £ 9,000,000 78 TTHE 7Y
—E-NFREREMEMEE KEEE
RERRE - AREEEBRER - BERE
REeEFEUZBARBARERE TSR
Hy - REBEEERFENANIPEERTE
REREMEFLEENRREZ L - BER
It - BB EERELRE - Wi ARE
l§1_7 +tFEFZA=t+—HLEFEZ
HaR A EIREA -

FIUREl & R A BB ER E A E © bhah
HDERNEERFHYRSEEEMEZ
BBREDRRERNTRESRERNE
He AFHBRNESREBEATINZER
RERHEH

2016
—Z2—+t5F —E—RF

Annual Long-term Discount Annual Long-term Discount

growth rate growth rate rate growth rate growth rate rate

ERRE REBRE ik FRRE RAERE R

PAL EBmz 10% 3% 17% 1% - 3% 3% 17%
Chegtah Cheetah NATRER NATER NATER 3% 3% 23%
TFF TFF 4% — 6% 4% 16.5% 4% - 6% 4% 16.5%
Maleth Maleth 2% — 5% 3% 17% 2% - 5% 3% 17%
No impairment indicator was identified for Maleth as its actual AR Maleth REE-T—+F+—A=+—

result was comparable to management forecast during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Other key assumptions included estimated gross margin,
applicable corporate income tax rate and capital expenditure
for repairs and maintenance. Management determines estimated
growth rates and gross margin based on past performance
and its expectation of market development. The discount rates

BULEFEZERF*EEEEERAANEL
8 AR Maleth BBIEARETR -

Hih FBERRBEM[EFNE BRAOLE
FISHEREERRENEARRS - EEE
ENBERBREHRN M5B ERNEHET
AEHEREREME - FrREDHRZ EIAH
DEHEREKERERREMZ T ERBRKRE

are determined with reference to specific risks relating to the TE °
relevant segments and countries in which they operate.
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15 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

Impact of possible changes on key assumptions

For PAL, if the annual growth rate used in the value-in-use
calculation had been 1% lower than management’s estimation
or the pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
had been 1% higher than management’s estimation, the Group
would have resulted in a further provision for impairment of other
intangibles of HK$7,975,000 and HK$4,670,000 respectively.

For TFF, the recoverable amount of TFF is estimated to exceed
the carrying amount of the other intangibles at 31 December
2017. The directors and management have considered
and assessed reasonably possible changes for other key
assumptions and have not identified any instances that could
cause the carrying amount of the other intangibles of TFF to
exceed its recoverable amount.

For Maleth, if the annual growth rate used in the value-in-use
calculation had been 1% lower than management’s estimation
or the pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
had been 1% higher than management’s estimation, the Group
would have resulted in a further provision for impairment of
goodwill and other intangibles of HK$5,975,000 and HK$257,000
respectively.
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BAEREMETLEE @)

Hiat - (&)
(iv) TERRKEEEH FE
RERMEMS - MERBEESEMAZ

FERRRENEEEBM1% KRR E
FERFAZRBRAITEESRERE M
1% AEBBHBIE—FIEREMERE
EE R (B & #87,975,000 7% 7T K 4,670,000 7
ﬁ o

BTFFM S - TFF Z (45T AT 4 B < 58 8 1B R
—E—+tF A+ A=t AHMEFEEZ
RHAE ZESNEREECDERRTEHEME
BEREZAEECEE  BWEZRH A
B TFF H i 8 712 4 72 AR T B B L AT i [B]
S RELF -

HMaleth s -+ fHfEREEFEMAZFH
EREREEEMG 1% B R=7E8
FTRAZBRAMELESRERE T 1%
REEEDRE—SIELEEREMERLE
EER{E % 5,975,000 7 7T & 257,000 87T °



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

16

SUBSIDIARIES

The table below lists out the subsidiaries of the Company

which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected

the results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

Name

L

FSL

FSG Aviation Limited

PAL
BBz

Frontier Logistics Consultancy
DMCC

Frontier Services Group East
Africa Limited

Cheetah

Place of
incorporation
or
registration/
operation

Bl A
B/ REhY

Bermuda
BRE

Bermuda
BRE

Kenya
BREE:

United Arab
Emirates

Bl {REE &
BRE

Kenya
ARE

Democratic
Republic of
the Congo

RIREEH£A
B

Nominal value of
issued ordinary
shares/preference
shares/paid-up capital/
registered capital

RITEBR/BER/
Eﬁﬂﬁ$@ﬁ/ﬁ%ﬁ$

US$1,000 common
1,000 .2 & Ak

US$1 common

1ET LR

KES550,488,000 ordinary
550,488,000 5 EE L5
L

Emirati Dirham 50,000
ordinary

50,000 FAlEt 28 3 7 459
M

KES3,311,700 ordinary

3,311,700 5e LS 2 LR

&

US$100,000 ordinary
100,000 £t 2 L@

16 KEAF

EERR - TRILEHREAFRERA
BREIBFESEAEBABNEEFE
ZERBMBAR - RBREMBRITT
R ESERBRBAIHLEMCHEBARZHF

I

Percentage of
attributable equity
interest held by
the Company

Directly Indirectly
AR FEERER D
=k &

100% —

100% —
— 100%

100% —
— 100%
— 100%

Principal activities

TREH

Investment holding and
provision of aviation
and Iogistics services

REERRRERZE DR
R

Aircraft holding and
provision of aviation
and logistics services

sz R Rz R DR
R

Provision of aviation and
logistics services
REMZ KR RS

Provision of aviation and
logistics services

REtHZ R RRS

Provision of administrative
and management
services

RETRREERE

Provision of transport
logistics services

REEGMRRTE
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16 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16 KMIBAT(#)

Place of Nominal value of

incorporation
or
registration/

issued ordinary
shares/preference
shares/paid-up capital/

Percentage of
attributable equity
interest held by

Name operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
Directly  Indirectly
MR L BRITLER BER/
a7 R/ EEnd CHREAEE/ZMEXR APRfIGEEREEIE TEEH
H# ok
TFF South Africa ZAR100 ordinary = 100% Provision of freight
s 100 F 3R 2 L AR forwarding services
RESERERY
Transit Freight Co-ordinators Zambia Zambian Kwacha (“ZMW") = 50% Provision of freight
Limited B D 10,000 ordinary forwarding services
10,0008t TR RE([RE REEERERS
&)z Lk
Maleth Malta EUR1,030,613 ordinary — 51% Investment holding
SEAM 1,030,613 BA T2 L AR BB
Maleth Aero AOC Limited Malta EUR545,200 ordinary = 47% Provision of aircraft
SEA 545,200 BUT 2 & B % management services
REREER R
Frontier Xinda Security Mainland RMB100,000,000 paid-up = 100% Investment holding and
Consulting (Beijing) Company China* capital provision of aviation
Limited® (Formerly known R A3 > AR 100,000,000 TE&R and logistics related
as Frontier Pan-Africa AR consultancy services
Investment Development REBRRRERZ R
(Beijing) Company Limited) T8 AR
EgEER2BROtR)BRAR
(AIfBEE R EFALR)
BRAR)
Frontier Logistics (Shanghai) Mainland US$10,000,000 registered = 100% Provision of logistics
Company Limited" China* capital related services
weyn( ) ERAR F Bl A 3 * 10,000,000 %72 # & A REMTAARBRL
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16 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Place of
incorporation
or
registration/
Name operation
TR BL L B
£ B/ EE
DVN (Group) Limited British Virgin
Islands
RBRUHS
Data Source Technology Limited Hong Kong
mREBE SRR AR AR B
Dynamic Network Limited British Virgin
Islands
RBRUEE
Telequote Data International Hong Kong
Limited BB

BEMERERAR

*

liability under the PRC law

For identification purposes only

Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprise with limited

16 KMIEAT#E)

Nominal value of
issued ordinary
shares/preference
shares/paid-up capital/
registered capital

Percentage of
attributable equity
interest held by
the Company
Directly Indirectly
BRTEER BER/
EHREAEE HMER AREFEEARER DL
HE &
US$10 ordinary 100%
US$15,000,000
preference

10ETZ EBRK
15,000,000 % T 2 Bk

HK$5,000,000 ordinary
5,000,000 47T 2 L @&

100%

US$1 ordinary 100%

1 X2 LBk

HK$10,000 ordinary 100%

10,0008 702 & Bk

AR]

! (EXES2 031

Principal activities

TERH

Investment holding and
management

REZRRER

Provision of administrative
and management
services

RETRREEE RS

Investment holding and
management

REERRER

Provision of online
financial market
information

Rt LERTISEM

* REFBEEREMAIIBBECXEREME
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17 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 17 RBERT 2R
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January R—A—H 7,185 8,462
Acquisition of an associate g S NN 12,156 —
Share of loss of associates FE(RE = QAR (2,859) (561)
Impairment (Note 10) BB (K15 10) (3,228) —
Value for the purchase options in an ~ R—REE QR ZEREZEE
associate (Note 24) (Kiiz24) (4,187) —
Exchange differences & =5 781 (716)
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—8 9,848 7,185
Details of the associates as at 31 December 2017 are as R-_ZE—+tF+—-_A=+—H ' BEAQq
follows: ZEEBMT
Place of incorporation
Name or registration/operation Interest held Principal activities
8 EMRLRERE, L fisEs FEER
Shanghai Boyojoy Network Technology Mainland China 45% Inactive
Company Limited” (“Boyojoy”)
LEERgRRERD A (1) R A Lg%
Chinese Online Corporation Limited (“COL") Hong Kong 20% Inactive
EXERBRAR([EXEL]) B e
Ninhao Chinese Corporation Limited® Mainland China* 20% Inactive
K ZEX ()RR AR AR A > TEa
Huacheng Interactive (Beijing) Media Company  Mainland China 10%A  Distribution of films and TV
Limited® R Ayt programmes
EZREH (I R)FREEERAA BYRIRHEEN
Beijing Tongfang Technology Company Limited® Mainland China 5.1%A Development, operation and provision
(formerly known as Dongfang Huanlu B A of related services of interactive
Technology Company Limited) TV media systems
ERAFHBRAERD A RIBRFERRRER A DYERFRAR FE - BERRER
al) TR AR
Xinyang Liliang Security Consulting Company Mainland China 25% Provision of private security training
Limited® (“ISDC”) FE A courses
EHENE(R)R2ERERARA(TERZEMHE REFLAZRZIRE
2 1)
* Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprise with limited L BEPBEEEFMAINEBECEERET
liability under the PRC law NG
# For identification purposes only # R
A Although the Group holds less than 20% of voting power of the A BEREE AR ETREEDR20% *

investees, the Group demonstrates significant influences on the
investees through the board’s representation in participating in
financial and operating policy decisions.

AEEEBEFERRBZEPBEREFERE
MR E T REEEATZEN

158 Frontier Services Group Limited 4t LRS54 B AR A 7]



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

17

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

In April 2011, the Group entered into an investment agreement
with Boyojoy, pursuant to which the Group is entitled to
acquire an ultimate shareholding of 35% by four stages
based on the performance criteria by Boyojoy as defined
in the investment agreement. Upon the achievement of the
performance criteria by Boyojoy in the first three stages, the
Group’s shareholding in Boyojoy was increased to 45% in
August 2013. Pursuant to the investment agreement, upon the
achievement of performance criteria of the fourth stage by
Boyojoy, the Group has to dispose of 10% of its investment in
Boyojoy without consideration, a derivative financial liability
was recognised with respect to the arrangement (Note 27).
At 31 December 2017, the performance criteria of the fourth
stage still has not yet been achieved (2016: Same).

During the year, the management of Boyojoy has decided to
arrange upon a shareholder meeting to cease its business and
liquidate Boyojoy. Therefore, a full provision for impairment of
HK$3,228,000 and change in fair value of derivative financial
liability for the fourth stage of HK$1,851,000 was made. In
addition, the Group made a provision of HK$5,267,000 for its
share of the liquidation costs for the year ended 31 December
2017.

On 28 April 2017, the Group entered into a conditional
investment agreement for the acquisition of 25% equity
interest in ISDC, The acquisition was completed on 7 July
2017.

There were no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
interests in associates at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Summarised financial information of all associates, which are
not individually material to the Group, is set out below:

17 RBEQRT RS E)

RZZT——FMA @ REBBEBFIN—
BIRE WS Bt - AEBBERBRE
1h 3 R IE 2 18 hE 2 4B U 2E -+ o P L Py
BB % R - RFENFERE =
ERE 2 EIEER  RZTE—=FN
A $%@Fﬁﬁ2k%%i%% BRI
K& FEFERENBRERZE
% $%@M%Eﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁm%z&
Z ERNEETERRATECRA B (T
27) e R=ZZE—+tF+=_A=+—8 1)
RIMARZER B ER 2 BERZE(ZF—R
& MER) °

FR - BHEEEEBRAELTHERITREKXR
FUARIEHEEBREERESE - Bt -
B {E 2 BUR B 5 3,228,000 78 7T & 5
MR ZITESmBEZ AN BEEZ S
1,851,000 7T  thoh + AREEE gt H AT
EEE-_ZE—+tE+-_A=t—HILEE
BB A #5 5,267,000 8 T ©

R-B—+EmMA=-+/N\B NEBEFK
BER L 2R E0 2 25% IRAER] M A 1§
&z 2 RBEFEER=ZT—+tF
+A+BAZEK -

RZB-—RFE+-_A=1+—8" Mﬁﬁ@
AEERBERRZ#Em I KARE(Z
N E) o

BRI S HAEBTBEAZAARER
Az BEREEHIIMT

2017 2016
—g—+f —FRE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Loss after income tax MR PT1SHi 18 B 18 (7,663) (3,613)

Group's share of loss for the year AEERGEFEEBE (2,859) (561)
Group's share of other comprehensive 785 Bl & (5 H th 2 [ 515

loss 781 (716)
Group’s share of total comprehensive AN&EEML 2 EEEERE

loss (2,078) (1,277)
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18 DEFERRED TAXATION 18 EZERIE
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when i1 A E 1T HER| A5 BN HA %1 18 & 7= 2 B 2
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets HEAEHEMWMECHSEHREEREE
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income DHER-HBEREE - BIFRTEMEH
tax assets and liabilities relate to the same tax authority. The BENBEHH KEHERB ZELERETH
deferred income tax assets and liabilities after offsetting are BEKAEBEWT :
as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+fF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Deferred income tax assets BEFSHEE 7,249 5,345
Deferred income tax liabilities BREAMSH ARG (52,775) (60,455)
(45,526) (55,110)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities FRREEMEREERBECRT RAER
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting ISR AR 4B Y ) 2 8T -
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:
Deferred income tax assets EEFBHEE

Non-current Unrealised exchange

Tax losses prepayments differences
HEEE FEHMBANR AELEREH
2016 2016
—T-RF —T-RE
HK$°000 | HK$'000 | HK$'000 | HK$'000 | HK$'000 | HK$'000 | HKS$'000 | HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET

At 1 January W—A- 6,439 4,443 111 1,234 49 1,593 6,599 7,270
Acquisition of e
subsidiaries — 2,454 — — — — — 2,454
Credited/(charged) MR WRERA
to consolidated /(F1%)

income statement (61) (538) 1,691 (1,141) 154 | (1,558) 1,784 | (3,237)
Exchange differences [& i =58 770 80 476 18 1 14 1,247 112
At 31 December Wt=A=t-H 7,148 6,439 2,278 111 204 49 9,630 6,599
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EUMBHRRME

18

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)
Deferred income tax assets (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. At
31 December 2017, the Group did not recognise deferred
income tax assets of HK$28,175,000 (2016: HK$25,207,000)
in respect of unrecognised tax losses of HK$121,724,000
(2016: HK$112,470,000) that can be carried forward to offset
against future taxable income. The unrecognised tax losses
include an amount of approximately HK$46,361,000 (2016:
HK$49,297,000) arising in mainland China, Kenya and Zambia
which is due to expire within one to five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arise.

Deferred income tax liabilities

18

LB E ()

BIEFRSHERE(E)
EEFMBHEEAREBEEHABIEE

w' \EEZ"—?%%@%%HIEJEE%DATiEiE%X

= ti-f—fﬂ_-i— E $‘$I—JFH
L‘/{}ﬁﬁikiﬁ}féﬁﬁ%)\Z*ﬁEwﬁﬁlﬁl%

B2 5121,724,000/8 7T( =& — N &F ¢
112 ,470,00078 7T ) fm‘ﬁ*ﬁl%az*ﬁ&w

EEFTS T & E 5 28,175,000/8 L (=&

— /N4 1 25,207,000 70 ) © AR IE
EEREPEANM SEmREL TEL
2 % #4946,361,000/8 T(— T — /N F ¢
49,297,000/ 7L ) R —ZRAF A E
W AR SERBUE IR 2 A R R R ERF
Nl

EEFREHRAER

Accelerated tax ~ Withholding tax on Deferred

depreciation unremitted profits ~ Other intangibles income

MERERE RO ER 2 BNK EftENEE BEUA
2016
-z /\i St — 2 -+ £ el
HKS$'000| HK$000| HKS'000| HK$000| HKS$'000| HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000| HKS$'000| HK$'000
FEr| TEr| TEn| TEr| TAn| TEr| FEn| TEn| TEr| TEn
At 1 January R-F-H 2522 23834 5758| 20037| 9,720| 8497| 23,709| 26,608| 61,709| 78976
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHELA - (59) - — - 2078 - — - 2019

Charged/(credited) to consolidated RGARERMK/GtA)

income statement 4107)[  (1,252) (212)]  (14,608) (973) (855)]  (3,236)  (1,264)  (8,528) (17,979)
Exchange differences EizR 2 (1) 396 329 - —|  1,550| (1,635)] 1,975| (1,307)
At 31 December Rt=BA=1-H 18444 | 22522 5942| 5758 8747 9720| 22,023 23709| 55156| 61,709

Annual Report 2017 &R

161



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED .FIN

18

BB HRRME

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)
Deferred income tax liabilities (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applied to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a
tax treaty between mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding tax on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.
At 31 December 2017, the Group has recognised deferred
income tax liabilities in respect of temporary differences
relating to the withholding tax of HK$5,942,000 (2016:
HK$5,758,000) on the unremitted profits of a subsidiary
in mainland China amounting to HK$59,416,000 (2016:
HK$57,578,000) as the Company may intend to have
dividends declared by this subsidiary in the foreseeable
future.

Pursuant to the Kenyan Income Tax Act, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to nonresidents from the
enterprises established in Kenya. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Kenya and the
jurisdiction of the non-residents. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding tax
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Kenya.

At 31 December 2017, the Group did not recognise deferred
income tax liabilities in respect of temporary differences
relating to the withholding tax of HK$3,305,000 (2016:
HK$3,702,000) on the unremitted profits of subsidiaries in
Kenya amounting to HK$33,046,000 (2016: HK$37,021,000),
that would be payable on the distribution of these retained
profits, as the Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it is probable that these profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future. Therefore, the related
temporary difference will not be reversed and will not be
taxable in the foreseeable future.
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EFEBLIR ()
EEFREHAREGE)

BIEFBEEMSRE - KRB R
VZHNECEREIINEEESTREEZA
Z10% BB - WBEH=ZFTT N
F—A—HREM WEBR=-_ZTZTLF
TZA=F+—BBZABF - MR BEAU
HINEIREE 2R ERE R EFTABR
BihE - BrEAREKZBINBE - 5t
AEBME BAMELR10% - At
RNEEE G B E R R B A A S 2 5% EHKT
BRER-_ZETN\F—A—BHEEAZR
FET DR Z R BHATENR - RZF—+
F+-A=1+—8 BRARAHERAR
RRWDMEFA—RPEAMMERARE
MZRE  AEEERUEKBARZE
7% S F1) 59,416,000 8 T (= F — /N 4F ¢
57,578,000% 7T ) 2 T8 10 £ 5,942,000 7%
TT(=Z — /5% : 5,758,000/8 7T ) HE 2
TR EERRELEMEHRARS -

BIESRDFERE  REERKRMY Z 1
XRIFEEREIRKEBEIZ10%BUTEN
oA ERHEEERZAIEEERFE]
BB HE M ERAREKZENR
Ko AEEME  MATELE10% - B
b AEEBEERRBERKRILZZE
MiE R R IK 2 IR BB FENE -

RZE—+ttF+=ZA=+—H ' &%
BT ERNBEREEME AR XD IR
i 733,046,000 (= T — 7N F
37,021,000% 7T ) 2 78 0 # 3,305,000 /%
TL(=Z— /N4 : 3,702,000 7T ) B R <
TRy EERRELEMEHAEGRE/RR
DIRZERBAFEZR) F?_IXE$
AEHZENB AR Z R EHE

i A 7E A 78 R 8 2R Al A zT@}Eﬁﬁ/JL’E I
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19 NON-CURRENT PREPAYMENTS 19 FEEMHATE(IR

2017 2016
—Z-tf NS
Engine Other Engine Other
overhaul deposits overhaul deposits Total
oI BR1E Hitik e S E k& Hipize e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January K-—BA—H 26,440 1,908 28,348 30,144 1,907 32,051
Additions NE 7,508 - 7,508 7,855 — 7,855
Charged to consolidated FAGAWERS]
income statement as engine  {E3|EMm{EM A
overhaul cost (Note 10) (K1 10) (8,214) — (8,214) (11,570) — (11,570)
Exchange differences EREE 18 15 33 1 1 12
At 31 December Rt=B=t+-H 25,752 1,923 27,675 26,440 1,908 28,348

The non-current prepayments for engine overhaul represent
the engine overhaul cost prepaid to aircraft manufacturers
but the engines are not yet overhauled and are not expected

5| E e 2 FERNVITA I SIS TR TR S
ERZSIERERA - ARSI ERARE
T ARG A SR B MBS B R

to be utilised within twelve months from the financial position

date.

20

TEARGER -

PREPAID OPERATING LEASE RENTALS 20 FEFLKEHENES
2017 2016
—E—tE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January R—B—H
Cost DN 1,502 1,503
Accumulated amortisation R (109) (65)
Net carrying amount BRI FE 1,393 1,438
Year ended 31 December BE+-A=+—HLEFE
Opening net carrying amount FRREFE 1,393 1,438
Amortisation (Note 10) Bt 10) (42) (44)
Exchange differences ME X = — (1)
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 1,351 1,393
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H
Cost (DN 1,502 1,502
Accumulated amortisation R (151) (109)
Net carrying amount BREFE 1,351 1,393
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20 PREPAID OPERATING LEASE RENTALS 20 EMKEHELEES#®E)
(continued)
The prepaid operating lease rentals represent the premium B &EEHOESEREMZE RSB D
paid by PAL for the land leased from the Kenya Airports WsEREREEL (B =TT WMFENA—
Authority for the terms of 45 years from 1 June 2004 HARRE 45 F ) T2 T 2 H(E »

21 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 21 AtHESREE

2017 2016
Z3-tf e 3

Hong Kong  Overseas  Overseas Overseas  Overseas

listed listed unlisted Hong Kong listed unlisted

equity security security listed equity security security
investment investment  investment investment investment  investment Total

BhLmz  EhLmz EMELEZ BhELie  Bhkmz EMELTZ
hERE  BERE  RERE E kiEgkg  EHRE  EHRE &;

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr FEr TEr FEr 1 AT 1 A1

(Note (i) (Note(ii)  (Note (iii)) (Note (i) (Note(ii) — (Note (iii))

() e ) (zn) e (W)

At 1 January R-F-H 1,281 57 4 1,342 31,000 86 4 31,090

Change in value (Note 33) EERE (Wi 3) (125) - - (125) (11,815) - = (11,815)

Redemptions EE - (19) - (19) - (29) = (29)

Disposals e (1,156) - — (86| (17900 - — (1790

Exchange differences EXER - - - - = = = =

At 31 December Rt=B=1-H - 38 4 42 1,281 57 4 1,342

Less: current portion 7 G - - - - (1,081) = = (1,281)

Non-current portion L) - 38 4 4 - 57 4 61

Notes: Hiat -

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company (i) BE_Z—tHF+-_A=+—HILFE"
disposed of 230,000 shares (2016: 2,914,000 shares) of ARARRME LHEZRCHERFRA
Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (“YFGL”) in the market for an AI([E % & E ]) 2 230,000 & (==
aggregate gross consideration of approximately HK$1,156,000 — N 2,914,000k %) BRELH A
(2016: HK$17,904,000) and a gain on disposal of available- 1,156,000 7o(= T — 75 4 : 17,904,000
for-sale financial assets of approximately HK$592,000 (2016: L) RARE M E T E S AR Y 2k

HK$10,712,000) was recorded. At 31 December 2016, the
fair value of the listed equity investment of approximately
HK$1,281,000 was based on quoted market price of the YFGL’s

#7592,0007% T(= = — 7 : 10,712,000
BIL)  c R=ZT—RE+=-A=+—8" £t
MR E 2 A BEA1,281,000% 7T T3

shares.
REEREERGD 2 THMERERE -
(i) It represents listed corporate bond. (if) Hig EmARIES -
(iiiy It represents unlisted equity securities. (i) HIEE LA o
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22 INVENTORIES 22 7FE&
2017 2016
—EB—tE ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Aircraft spare parts and consumables FRHEEZ 2044 & 741 10,753 5,772
Packaging materials AR 534 411
11,287 6,183
During the year ended 31 December 2017, a provision for HE-ZT—+F+_A=+—HBILFE -
inventories amounting to HK$56,000 (2016: HK$1,597,000) PR TR Z 205 M FE M 17 B 445 56,000 75
on obsolete aircraft spare parts and consumables was JTL(ZZF — 73 : 1,597,0008 7T ) B R 4r
recognised in other operating expenses in the consolidated almEk  Hi BB R NER -
income statement.
23 TRADE RECEIVABLES 23 EBESEWFIE
2017 2016
—E—tE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Trade receivables B 5 YRR 122,155 88,181
Less: Provision for impairment A RI=E (1,721) (701)
120,434 87,480
The fair value of trade receivables approximates its carrying BHRMFEZ AR BEREREERES
amount.
Credit terms of one month from invoice date are generally RNEFH —MBETTIEXFPAEEZR®LE—F
granted to major customers. The Group seeks to maintain B2 EH] o 7N& B 15 4 48 BR A% 12 I E 1
strict control over its outstanding receivables. The Group RWE Z FEWTRIE - REFBHHETPIHE
performs ongoing credit evaluation of its customers and ETEAREE  IRKRFHTSEMB(INE
makes frequent contact with its customers, if necessary. E)o

Annual Report 2017 3% 165



,4:-"":::,: ==

S eEEE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED E'NQN@T- STATEMENTS
e B R R M A N 1

23 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aging analysis, based on the invoice date, of the trade
receivables as at the financial position date is as follows:

23

B EBWREE)

RPN A - B 5 RWKIRE 2 Rk T
(ERBERA)AT :

2017 2016

—s—t% e

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Within 1 month —@AA 77,821 48,926
1 — 2 months —ZmEA 16,616 17,654
2 — 3 months ME=1EA 16,785 3,977
Over 3 months BiB=18A 10,933 17,624
122,155 88,181

Less: Provision for impairment B BB (1,721) (701)
120,434 87,480

At 31 December 2017, trade receivables of HK$26,106,000
(2016: HK$28,336,000) relating to a number of independent
customers were past due. After considering their
creditworthiness, past collection history and settlement after
the financial position date, these overdue trade receivables
were not considered impaired. The past due aging analysis of
these trade receivables without provision made is as follows:

R-_ZBE—+F+-_A=+—H EBETH
N BPF A2 E S EWEIE 26,106,000 8
Jo(= =& — /X £ : 28,336,000/ 7t ) B #l
HoRERRP 28 - BAZ B4
KRR BB EE  ZEafB R
WHRIETERE - ZSREREZESIE
WskIE 2 SRR ER AT AR T

2017 2016
—E—tF kAN

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within 1 month —EAR 1,069 9,522
1 — 2 months —Z/MEA 11,703 1,244
Over 2 months B A & A 13,334 17,570
26,106 28,336
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23 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23 ESEWRIEE)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are REBEZBZEBGRIEZEEENL NIE
denominated in the following currencies: KEEHE -

2017 2016

—3—t5 —T—xF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FETT

US$ ETT 44,698 27,023

ZAR I SER AT 63,166 54,272

EUR BT 4,502 414

KES BRHES 2,720 3,059

Others HAh 5,348 2,712

120,434 87,480

- ——
—

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the financial position
date is the fair value of trade receivables mentioned above.

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

RPBRRE - FERRZEHEERS L
MEHEWHIBZ AREE -

B RWFIR BERBREEHIT

2017 2016

—E—tF —T—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 January n—HA—H 701 63
Provision for the year (Note 10) NEEEE K7 10) 1,020 638
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H 1,721 701

During the year ended 31 December 2017, a provision for

HEZZT—+FT_A=+—RHLFE -

impairment of HK$1,020,000 (2016: HK$638,000) on trade ke B REWIE A B E - @mHE
receivables which have been overdue for more than 60 days R oT @ FER AL - EFtEEEE

was made after considering the collectibility, overdue aging 60K 2 & 5 FEWFIAEH 1,020,000 7 T
analysis and past collection history of the trade receivables. (ZZE—73% : 638,000/87T) ZWERERE -
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24 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24 FERR - BRERHAMEWRRIE
RECEIVABLES
2017 2016
—EB—t&F —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Deposits and other receivables, net of &4 & H i fE U 5k 18 (FNR B4 )
provision 33,402 32,177
Current account with an associate B —REE QR 2 ERERE 5,922 4,846
Loan to an associate m—REE QR RIREER 6,877 =
Value for the purchase options in an R —HKEE AR 2 BREZ(EE
associate (Note 17) (M1 17) 4,187 —
Prepayments AN 19,490 18,260
Interest receivables FEUF B 10,029 21,887
Value-added tax receivables FEWOE EH 2,993 244
82,900 77,414
The fair values of prepayments, deposits and other B Re REMERHKIBZ AR EE
receivables approximate their carrying amounts. B EBREEAESE ©
Movements in the provision for impairment of certain BETREMAR - B REAEKREIE (B R
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, which were BE)ZRERESHUT
financial assets, are as follows:
2017 2016
—EB—tE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FAET
At 1 January Hn—HB—H 14,754 14,539
Provision for the year (Note 10) KNEZRE (Kt 10) 8,359 215
At 31 December Rt=A=+—H 23,113 14,754
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25

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 25 HERBPITERE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFET
Restricted cash (Note (i)) SR HIIRE (A (i)
Non-current portion JERNERER D — 5,045
Current portion BNHEAES 1 5,085 9,991
5,085 15,036
Pledged bank deposits (Note 28) B IRITIF R (M7 7F 28)
Non-current portion FEBNERER 7 — 66,070
Current portion BVEAES 1 231,365 150,138
231,365 216,208
Short-term bank deposits RERITER
Bank deposits with original REIBFEBA=REANEZ
maturities of more than three RITIFH
months 379 —
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY
Cash at banks and on hand RITEERFHERS 59,007 31,085
Bank deposits with original REHBA=EAKATZ
maturities of three months or less RITFER 6,221 37,059
65,228 68,144
Total cash and bank balances A RIRTTEF AR 302,057 299,388
Maximum exposure to credit risk EERBRZ&SREE 298,423 296,089
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25 CAS

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

H AND BANK BALANCES (continued)

At 31 December 2017, restricted cash represented deposits
held by a bank as top-up securities for bank loans borrowed
by one wholly-owned subsidiary (2016: two wholly-owned
subsidiaries).

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Pledged bank deposits and short-term bank
deposits earn interest at the respective deposit rates.

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances are
denominated in the following currencies:

25

(if)

(iii)

2017
i e

RERBITERE)

RZE—tF+ZA=+—H XRHIHL
E-HRTHEBEER—RXEEMBARMG
ABITERZHMABERR2ER(ZE—R
FMREEMBEAR) -

RITBFRE B RITZEFKF X REF
B BEMRTERRERRITEADIRE
B 2R R BREFS, o

ReRRITHEFIREABNTIIERE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

RMB NG 246,180 254,372
Uss$ E 37,796 27,361
HK$ BT 10,370 9,708
EUR BT 2,782 4,246
ZAR SRR 716 398
KES BREELES 1,944 1,807
Others Hit 2,269 1,496
302,057 299,388

The cash and bank balances of the Group denominated in RMB
are not freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business in the PRC.

The fair values of all bank balances approximate their carrying
amounts.
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(iv)

(v)

FEBMUAREHEZRES RRITHEFTA
HEMEB RIS - AW - RIEPEINE
ERVER AR  SERNEETERE A
SEE TS REBERE R ETINERES
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EUMBHRRME

26 TRADE PAYABLES 26 EZENFNE
An aging analysis, based on the invoice date, of the trade REIRR B - B 5 B RIE 2 RE 51T

payables as at the financial position date is as follows: (ERBEH)WT :
2017 2016
—EB—tF —E—RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 month —@AR 57,621 50,027
1 — 2 months —Z=/MEA 28,106 20,410
2 — 3 months MZE=1EAH 9,936 3,915
Over 3 months Him=1E A 20,591 4,782
116,254 79,134

Notes: et -

(i) The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in the

following currencies:

(i) BSRNRAZREEA T EBEHE

2017 2016

—E—tF —T—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

F#ET F#T

EUR BT 15,616 7,586

ZAR [EZEEGES 65,314 53,238

Uss eI 28,706 13,445

KES BRHES 221 570

HK$ BIT 50 398

Others Hbtb 6,347 3,897

116,254 79,134

(i)  The fair value of trade payables approximates its carrying (i) EBZEMREBEZAABEEEKREEMES °
amount.
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27 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 27 HttENRERESER

2017 2016

—EB—t&F —T—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Accrued expenses FEsT &R 24,555 19,628

Investment payables (Note (i) & FRIE (A2 (1) 7,036 7,213
Derivative financial liabilities PTESRE BN ()

(Note (ii)) _ 1 851
Receipts in advance TEUFRIB 18,360 12,924
Others HAity 16,018 8,119

65,969 49,735
Notes: Hiaz -
(i) At 31 December 2017, the investment payables include the (i) R-_TE—F+F+-_A=+—8 BEEN

consideration payable to COL of US$900,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,036,000) (2016: US$900,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$6,980,000)). At 31 December 2016, the
investment payables also included the consideration payable
to Boyojoy for the second stage of subscription of US$30,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$233,000)).

FNIE B ¥E FE 4 3 SO FE 4R 2 R B 900,000 % 7T
(B R 47,036,000 70 ) (=T — N &F
900,000 % 7T (AH 70 476,980,000 & 7T ) ) °
RZZE—RE+-A=+—08 KREENM
REEREE _MBRIABEMSEN 2RE
30,000 =TT (R 4) 233,000/ 7T) °

(i) During the year, the management of Boyojoy has decided to (i)
arrange upon a shareholder meeting to cease its business and
liguidate Boyojoy. Therefore a change in fair value of derivative
financial liability for the forth stage of HK$1,851,000 was made.

FR - BEZERBERERENBRREAS R
M IEEEBREEIEER - Bt 25t

1,851,000 87T °
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28 BORROWINGS 28 B
2017 2016
—E—tF NS
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current portion FERNERZR 17
Bank loans RITER — 66,971
Finance leases RERE 58,905 63,351
Other loan HbER — 161
58,905 130,483
Facility arrangement fees MELZHER — (1,380)
58,905 129,103
Current portion BRERER 1
Bank loans RITER 184,816 156,424
Finance leases mMEMRE 14,169 30,739
Other loan HMER 457 518
199,442 187,681
Facility arrangement fees mELHE R (4,788) —
194,654 187,681
Total borrowings BB 253,559 316,784
The fair values of the borrowings approximate their carrying ERzAnBEELRAEEHES - JERIE
amounts. The fair value of the non-current borrowings are EXZARBEIBREMSEHRENIES R
based on market quotes or estimates using discounted cash SR EEITHET - WITREARBREEE
flow calculations based upon the Group’s current incremental RER 7 REBIRITEISERFNRIERE -

borrowing rates for similar types of borrowings.
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28 BORROWINGS (continued)
(a) Bank Loans

The bank loans are repayable as follows:

28 ERX
(a)

K (#&)
RITER
RITEREENT :

2017 2016
—2—tF —ERF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Within 1 year —F R 184,816 156,424

After 1 year but within 2 years —FEERMER — 66,971

184,816 223,395

Facility arrangement fees MELZHER (4,788) (1,380)

Less: Current portion O - BNERER (D (180,028) (156,424)

Non-current portion JERNEREB 1D — 65,591
Bank loans denominated in: RITERA T EESIE -

Uss$ E7T 67,506 218,214

HK$ BT 112,875 —

ZAR ek 4,435 5,181

184,816 223,395

The bank loans denominated in US$ bear interests at
London Interbank Offered Rate plus margins ranging
from 2.8% to 3.0% per annum (2016: same) with due
dates in 2018. The bank loans are secured by pledged
bank deposits of approximately RMB59,100,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$70,702,000) (2016:
RMB193,400,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$216,208,000)) and total restricted bank deposits of
US$650,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,085,000)
(2016: US$1,939,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$15,036,000)). During the year ended 31 December
2017, bank loans of US$19,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$152,451,000) (2016: US$28,504,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$220,921,000)) had
been settled.
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NETIEZRITERZ2ERA
WMITRIZEFEFEMN F2.8%F
3.0%(:;?—/—\¢' HR)ZF
BEFBE RZE—NFEHH-
EETT%*%’JEEE%EEﬁfEﬁﬁ,TMﬁ
A E #59,100,000T(# & R 4
70,702,000/ T )(=Z & — /X F ¢
A R #193,400,0007T(# & »
#9216,208,0007% 7T )) K % BB #l
iﬂﬁrfké/\%oooo%x(m
7 #75,085,0005% T )(— T —
% :1,939,000% (HH F RN ,%'9
15,036,000/8 L)) fEHE R - B EZ
Tt FE+-A=+—HBIEE "
B {8 & 8 17 B 519,500,000 % JT
(BSR4 152,451,000 L) (==
— N4 ¢ 28,504,000 T (FHERL
220,921,000 7)) °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

(a)

(b)

28 BORROWINGS (continued) 28 BXR#E)
Bank Loans (continued) (a) MRITERE)
The bank loans denominated in HK$ bear interests B THENRITERZRERS
at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus margins AT A FEF BN E N1.45% (=
1.45% per annum (2016: Nil). The bank loans are T—RF EBI)ZFEEFE - Z
secured by pledged bank deposits of approximately ERTEFHEDEARITERLD
RMB134,300,000 (equivalent to approximately A R #134,300,000 7T (F & R 4
HK$160,663,000) (2016: Nil) and with no restricted bank 160,663,000/ 7T ) (= & — /X F
deposits pledged. )RR R R R AR GIRTE
.
The bank loans denominated in ZAR bear interests R ESEZRITERZR
at South African Prime Rate ranging from 10.25% to EFEEERENENF10.25%
10.5% per annum (2016: 10%) and are repayable 3 ;.:10 5% (= & — ;X F:10%) =t
months after the respective drawdown dates. At 31 B \B’\%E?EHXEIHQ{% @A R
December 2017, these bank loans are secured by ERE -R_T—tF+t=-_A=+—
certain trade receivables of ZAR18,376,000 (equivalent B &%fﬂﬁ% AR ETESE
to approximately HK$11,682,000) (2016: ZAR16,460,000 U X TE18,376,000 7 JE I & (AE &
(equivalent to approximately HK$9,366,000)) and are 7 4911,682,000/ 7T )(= & — /X
guaranteed by an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of £ : 16,460,000 7 3E B (8 & R
the Company to the maximum extent of ZAR14,000,000 #99,366,0007%8 7t )) fE#H # & B &
(equivalent to approximately HK$8,900,000) (2016: NAlZ —RKEEEZEWB QAT
ZAR14,000,000 (equivalent to approximately 5 = 14,000,000 FE & (M F R
HK$7,966,000)). During the year ended 31 December #98,900,000% T )(ZF — /N F ¢
2017, bank loans of ZAR2,130,000 (equivalent to 14,000,0007 7F B H(HE & R &
approximately HK$1,254,000) (2016: Nil) had been 7,966,000 7)) Z &R - B E =
settled. E—tF+_A=F+—HIEEFE"
B 8 & R 17 B 52,130,000 7 FF B
Fr(FH 2 7 491,254,000 70 ) (ZF
—NEFfE) e
Finance Leases (b) WMEMHE
2017 2016
—s—+% ——A%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRET F&T
Future payments SEERRETN 85,210 110,460
Future finance charges on BEREZ RRBEEA
finance leases (12,136) (16,370)
Present value of finance lease FIEHEAEBEZIRE
liabilities 73,074 94,090
Less: Current portion J& - BNERER (D (14,169) (30,739)
Non-current portion FERNHEA &R 19 58,905 63,351
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28 BORROWINGS (continued) 28 ER#E)
(b) Finance Leases (continued) (b) WMEHEE(E)
The present value of finance lease liabilities is repayable MEHEEECREGENT ¢
as follows:
2017 2016
—EB—tfF ==
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Within 1 year —FR 14,169 30,739
After 1 year but within 2 years —FR&RENXWFEA 15,027 18,281
After 2 years but within 5 years MEFRENRAEFA 43,878 45,070
73,074 94,090
The finance leases are denominated in US$ and interest MEEENETSE MRiEHEE
rates underlying the obligations under finance leases BHNHEABEITZIRIRFEERA
are fixed at their respective rates ranging from 4.03% to 2 R E E NFEEHF403%F
9.77% per annum (2016: 3.48% to 9.77% per annum). 9.77% (—ZFE—NFE : BF3.48% =%
9.77%) °
Certain aircraft are pledged for the finance leases. ETREGEVE TR E I o
The net carrying amount of the aircraft under finance RZE—tEtF+=_A=+—8"
leases as at 31 December 2017 amounted to & é%ﬁ’glﬁ"l’m&%z,ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁz%
HK$102,365,000 (2016: HK$124,011,000). 102,365,000% 7L(= & — 78 £ :

124,011,000/ 7T) °
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28 BORROWINGS (continued) 28 EX#E)
(c) Other Loan (c) HMER
The other loan is repayable as follows: HihEREEWAT ¢
2017 2016
—e—t% —T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Within 1 year —FR 457 518
After 1 year but within 2 years  —FR&RERMFR — 161
457 679
Less: Current portion Jat - BVERER 1A (457) (518)
Non-current portion FEBNERER 17 — 161
The other loan is denominated in EUR, unsecured and HERABTEE - SR RIZ
bears interest at the rate of 10% per annum (2016: 10% FREA0%(ZZF—RNF : FFI =
per annum) with due date in 2018. 10%)5HE  WRZF— )\FH|H -
(d) Effective Interest Rates (d) BEFH=
The effective annual interest rates incurred on EREENERFRERNOT :

borrowings are as follows:

2016

—E—RF
Bank loans RITER 2.41% — 10.50% |2.64% — 10.00%
Finance leases BERE 4.09% — 9.91% | 3.53% — 9.91%
Other loan HEMER 10.00% 10.00%
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28 BORROWINGS (continued) 28 EBEX#E)
(e) Liabilities arising from financial activities (e) HKEBELZAE
The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial WEEEE 2 BEHERAT ¢

activities is as follows:

Finance
Bank loan leases Other loan
BITER MERE HitEX
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2017 R-ZB—tF
—HA—H 222,015 94,090 679 316,784
Changes from financing cash BEREHZ 8
flows:
Drawdown of bank loans RRRITER 112,875 - - 112,875
Repayment of bank loans BRBITER (153,705) - - (153,705)
Repayment of capital element [EEREMEZEALH
of finance lease — (21,666) — (21,666)
Repayment of other loans EBREMER - - (301) (301)
Total changes from financing BEL &Rz @%
cash flows (40,830) (21,666) (301) (62,797)
Other changes Hith# 5
Facility arrangement fees MERHER (3,408) - - (3,408)
Foreign exchange difference  SNEZH 2,251 650 79 2,980
Total other changes Hingges (1,157) 650 79 (428)
At 31 December 2017 R=B-tF
+=A=1-8 180,028 73,074 457 253,559
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29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 29 RERSESZ2EMIE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loans and receivables B W RIE

Trade receivables (Note 23) B 5 rWGRIE (M2 23) 120,434 87,480
Deposits and other receivables Be RE MR GKIE 60,417 58,910
Cash and bank balances (Note 25) Re RRITETF (B 25) 302,057 299,388
482,908 445,778

Available-for-sale financial assets AHESREEHZE21)
(Note 21) 42 1,342
482,950 447,120

Other financial liabilities at amortised REHEK AT E 2 EEmEE

costs
Trade payables (Note 26) B S ENFIA (T 26) 116,254 79,134
Other payables and accruals E e I8 R EE & R 47,609 34,960
Borrowings (Note 28) ER(KaE28) 253,559 316,784
417,422 430,878
Derivative financial liabilities TESREBEME27)
(Note 27) — 1,851
Other long-term liabilities HEMREBEE 7,546 6,963
424,968 439,692
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30 SHARE CAPITAL 30 BAX

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
FR0.10BTZER

Number of shares HK$'000
(SRR Q=] FET
Authorised EE
At 31 December 2016 and 2017 RZE—RNFRZT—tF
+=-—A=+—H 3,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid EBRTREHE
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—XRF—H—AH 1,229,503,003 122,950
Issuance of shares under exercise of W-Z—xE—HA+MWHA—A
share options on 14 January, +HE - ZAMABEAA+Z=
15 January, 4 February and HABREEITEZITRG
12 May 2016 (Notes 31 and (i) (K731 % (i) 4,200,000 420
At 31 December 2016 R=ZT—R"F+=-A=+—H 1,233,703,003 123,370
Issuance of shares on 13 March 2017 R-Z—+F=H+=HEFTK
(Note (ii)) 9 (B & (i) 216,000,000 21,600
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=-A=+—H 1,449,703,003 144,970
Notes: Vo
(i) The proceeds of the above issues of shares were utilised as (i) iR EIT 2B RIEE AIEARER 258
additional working capital of the Group. INEBEER ©
(ii) On 13 March 2017, the Company issued 216,000,000 new (ii) R-ZZE—tF=ZA+=8" ' ARG EES
shares at an issue price of HK$0.90 each, raising net proceeds fi% # 77 {8 0.90% 7T % 17 216,000,000 A% %7
of HK$192,456,000. f&1n - BB E TS FIEF 5 192,456,000 7%

JT °©
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31

SHARE OPTIONS

(a)

Share Option Schemes

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old
Scheme”) on 26 June 2002. On 28 March 2012, the Old
Scheme was terminated and a new share option scheme
(the “New Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. The
New Scheme continues to recognise and acknowledge
the contributions of the Eligible Participants (as defined
in the New Scheme) to the Group. The New Scheme
is also designed to provide incentives and help the
Group in retaining its existing employees and recruiting
additional employees.

The New Scheme is valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing from 28 March 2012, the date
of the approval of the New Scheme. Subscription price
in relation to each option pursuant to the New Scheme
shall not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the date on which the option is
offered to an Eligible Participant; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares. The options are exercisable
within the option period as determined by the Board of
the Company.

Pursuant to the New Scheme, the Company can grant
options to Eligible Participants for a consideration of
HK$1 for each grant payable by the Eligible Participants
to the Company. The total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of options granted to each
Eligible Participant (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any twelve-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the shares then in issue. During
the year ended 31 December 2017, 14,497,030 share
options were granted under the New Scheme (2016:
24,632,060). At the financial position date, the total
number of options that can be granted was 67,601,710
(2016: 82,098,740).

31

B
(a) HEMRHESTEl
RRARIRZ=ZZEZE=_FA=+7<H

R —EERETEI((EE ) -

R—ZZT——F=A=-+NB: ' AQ
AR I E R BN R A —TE 3RS A
TEI(T#ET 8] - St 8 EES T
RRUEGER2EE(ER LA
ENHAEEEDL 2 BB o #FarEI78
EERHEERR BB ASEEEEE
RERERBEFTLES -

FetE g HEMEZB - ——F
—AZ+N\BRBRHBXHAREI0F -

EEBEFFERE 2 SBREY
RIBETS ﬁﬁTﬂ?m%()m
EEWRSHEERTERE AR

g A RERES 2 KO THE :

(i) BEFE B AESEBBR
Fr & B REREHI 2 &k HmFH Uk m
8+ R (i) ROEME - BRERAA
AEEgErCEREARAN T
1TE -

RiFFE KRR AIAAEBIRS

HERTERE SHEREZR
BARI1BIT AEEK2HEEIH
FARF o REM+ @A HH -

ERETEAERSHEE ZERE
(BREETE  CaEkERiTE
ZHERE)ETERBEITRET
BAOZBRDBAETSEEERE R
TERHZ21% - RBE-T—tF
+TZA=+—HILFE ARAFER
¥ F1 at 81 1% HH 14,497,030 17 B8 A%
(== — /X : 24,632,06017 ) °
R AR B - A% o 2 08 R
48 8167,601,7101 (=& — /N &F :
82,098,7401p) o
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31 SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 31 BRESE)
(a) Share Option Schemes (continued) (a) HBRESTEI(E)
Pursuant to the Board resolutions passed on 24 August BRESHIR-_ZE—tFNAZT+T
2017, the following share options were granted under ABBcEETEREER - THER
the New Scheme with fair value using the Binomial BB EEL EAREE
option pricing model with the following input variables: AR EETEEER A TSR]
BB -
Expected Closing price
Exercise Exercise dividend of shares
Number of price per period of Date of  Fair value Risk-free yield per Expected  before the
Date of grant options option share options  appraisal ~ per option Interest rate share volatility ~date of grant Expected life
SHERE BRE ShHERE SREH Rt BHA
RLAH BREHA 2R rEsm JERSE  2DAEE  EERAE RE% BRE ZROUTE BHES
HKS$ HK$ HKS$
BT AT AT
24/08/2017 14,497,030 1410 24/08/2018  24/08/2017 0.7015 1.295% 0% 75% 1270 24/08/2017
“5-tE o “E-tE o
NA=tmA 23/08/2022 N\A=1mA 23/08/2022
—E-\% 5tk
NB=tEA NAZTEA
E S
—E-CF —E-CF
NA=tZH JAV; i
Movements in the number of outstanding share options HAITEBRESE 228k E B NE
and their related weighted average exercise prices were FHTEEEAT
as follows:
2017 2016
“B-tf ZI-RF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of
per share options per share options
it £ MEFEH
SRTEE BEREZA BROEE fEiRES A
HKS HK$
AT BT
0ld Scheme Batal
At 1 January it d=! - 1,000,000 1.990 1,000,000
Lapsed BEM 1,990 (1,000,000) —
At 31 December Rt=A=t-H - 1.424 1,000,000
New Scheme st al
At 1 January ®—A—AH 1.424 132,949,888 1.460 115,477,828
Granted B 1.410 14,497,030 1.177 24,632,060
Exercised BT - 0.970 (4,200,000)
Lapsed BAH 0.970 (1,400,000) 1.265 (2,960,000)
At 31 December “+=A=+-AH 146,046,918 1.424 132,949,888
Total @it 146,046,918 133,949,888

182 Frontier Services Group Limited 5t ZARTEE B AR A 7



- ——
—

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\l_\éﬂ\zri%iﬁ% M‘T%I

31 SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 31 HBREE)
(a) Share Option Schemes (continued) (a) HBRESE(E)
Out of the 146,046,918 outstanding options as at 31 RZE—tF+=RA=+—8"
December 2017 (2016: 133,949,888), 131,549,888 146,046,918 (= T — X -
options were exercisable (2016: 87,426,915). No share 133,949,888 17 ) it AR 1T 2 R A 1
options were exercised during the year ended 31 H 131,549,888 (= F — /)N F -
December 2017 (2016: 4,200,000). 87,426,91517 ) BB IR #E A] T 17(F ©

HE_ZT—tH&+_-_A=+—8L
FE - BEBREETE(CZZ X
£ : 4,200,0001) °

Share options outstanding at the financial position date REF AR B 8 R TT BB 2 5
have the following expiry dates and exercise prices: HA MITEEMT
Exercise price
per share Number of options
BRITHE BREHE
Expiry date )i HK$ 2016
V- “E-t+E ZRE
0ld Scheme B d
11 February 2017 “ZT—+tfE-fA+-H 1.990 - 1,000,000
New Scheme Hatal
9 January 2018 “F-\5-ANA 1.500 102,557,828 102,557,828
28 April 2019 “E-NEEAZTNR 1.254 12,295,030 12,295,030
7 April 2020 —Z-FEMALA 0.970 2,800,000 4,200,000
17 September 2020 ZZZFENATLA 1.530 1,560,000 1,560,000
21 August 2021 “Z-#)\A=1+-AH 1.100 12,337,030 12,337,030
23 August 2022 “Z--#)\A=+=AH 1.410 14,497,030 —
146,046,918 132,949,888
146,046,918 133,949,888
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31 SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 31 BRESE)
(a) Share Option Schemes (continued) (a) BREE(E)
The details of movements of the outstanding share HMARTEZERERERN S EF
options during the year are as follows: B -
Weighted
average
Outstanding Options Options Options Outstanding closing
options at granted exercised lapsed options at price before
1 January during during during 31 December dates of
2017 the year the year the year 2017 exercise
RIF-tE RZ-tE RERAZ
-R-A ERRE ERIR EpgH TSA=1-H nE%S
HATEZBRE ZBRE LBRE JBRE  HAORZERE G
HKS
AT
0ld Scheme it
Date of grant RtiRY 12 February 2007
RRLECATCIR
Exercise price per option ShighiEnfEe HK$1.990
1990#7T
Exercise period e 12 August 2007 -
11 February 2017
ZERtENATZR
EIE-tEA1-H
Held by a service provider H- 2 RBHERRE
In aggregate (Note (i) BE ) 500,000 = = (500,000) = =
Date of grant RHAS 12 February 2007
“ERLECATCR
Exercise price per option BHERENRE HK$1.990
199037
Exercise period s 12 February 2008 -
11 February 2017
Z2T)\fA1ZA
ECR-tE-A1-H
Held by a service provider H-ZRBEEERE
In aggregate (Note (i) BE(IE) 500,000 - - (500,000) - -
New Scheme i |
Date of grant REAS 10 January 2014
“3-MmE-At1H
Exercise price per option BhERENRE HK$1.500
15007
Exercise period i 10 January 2015 -
9 January 2018
“E-15-A1H
Z22%-/\§-ANB
Held by a director H-2EE5E
Mr. Erik D. Prince Erk D. Prince £ 34,185,942 = = - 34,185,942 -
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31 SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 31 BREE)
(a) Share Option Schemes (continued) (a) BREE(E)
Weighted
average
Outstanding Options Options Options Outstanding closing
options at granted exercised lapsed options at price before
1 January during during during 31 December dates of
2017 the year the year the year 2017 exercise
R-%-tF RZB-t% Wir&RER
-R-H EREH ERGR EREN tZR=1-8 i 3321
HRTEZBRE BHE bl fiv JBRE  HAGEZBRE BHE
HKS
AT
Date of grant REAS 10 January 2014
“E-MmE-A1A
Exercise price per option ShiEkERE HK$1.500
150047
Exercise period s 10 January 2016 -
9 January 2018
Z-E-ATH
E2E-)\5-ANA
Held by a director H-2EERE
Mr. Erk D. Prince Erik D. Prince %4 34,185,943 - - - 34,185,943 -
Date of grant RHRH 10 January 2014
“Z-RE-ATH
Exercise price per opfion ShERENFE HK$1.500
1500%7
Exercise period e 10 January 2017 -
9 January 2018
E-t5-AtH
E22-\§-AnA
Held by a director H-2EERE
Mr. Erik D. Prince Erik D. Prince %4 34,185,943 = = = 34,185,943 -
Date of grant REAS 8 April 2014
Z5-MERANR
Exercise price per option BhEREARE HK$0.970
09705
Exercise period e 8 April 2015 -
7 April 2020
ZE-REMANR
ECRCRERACH
Held by directors HESHA
Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry Exfers 1,400,000 - - - 1,400,000
Held by employees HESHE
In aggregate g 2,800,000 - - (1,400,000) 1,400,000
4,200,000 - = (1,400,000) 2600000 -
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31 SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 31 BRESE)
(a) Share Option Schemes (continued) (a) BREE(E)
Weighted
average
Outstanding Options Options Options Outstanding closing
options at granted exercised lapsed options at price before
1 January during during during 31 December dates of
2017 the year the year the year 017 exercise
RZ%-tF R=%-tF RRAAZ
-B-8 ERRH ERAR EpgH TSAZt-B il 3321
HRTE BRE BRE ZBRE BRE  HAGRZERE BHE
HKS
AT
Date of grant RLAS 18 September 2014
ZE-REAATIA
Exercise price per option ShiEkEFE HK$1.530
15308
Exercise period i 18 September 2015 -
17 September 2020
ZE-TEAATAR
EIECREAATLA
Held by a service provider B-2EBHERRE
In aggregate B 780,000 - - = 780,000 =
Date of grant A% 24 September 2014
ZE-BEAAZTRE
Exercise price per option ShERENFE HK$1.530
153087
Exercise period it 18 September 2015 -
17 September 2020
ZE-RFAATAR
ECRCREARTLA
Held by a service provider H-2EREEERE
In aggregate 4% 780,000 - - - 780,000 -
Date of grant REAS 29 April 2016
ZE-7EMAZTAR
Exercise price per option BhERENRE HK$1.254
125487
Exercise period fifie 29 April 2016 -
28 April 2019
ZE-EMAZTAR
ECE-NEBAZTAR
Held by a service provider H-2ERHERRE
In aggregate 28 12,295,030 - - - 12,295,030 -
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31 SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(a) Share Option Schemes (continued)

31 BRE@)
(a) MBERRESEI(E)

Weighted
average
Outstanding Options Options Options Outstanding closing
options at granted exercised lapsed options at price before
1 January during during during 31 December dates of
2017 the year the year the year 017 exercise
RoB-tE HoB-tE WI&RARZ
-B-A ERRH ERAR EngH TSA=1-H &
W BRR ZBER ZBhR ZBRE  HAGEZERE LG
HKS
ET
Date of grant RHAS 22 August 2016
“E-RENAZTCR
Exercise price per opfion ShERENFEE HK$1.100
11007
Exercise period (it 22 August 2017 -
21 August 2021
“E-tENA=TZH
E-R--FN\A=1-A
Held by a director B-%ESHE
Dr. Hua Dongyi 58t 12,337,030 = = = 12,337,030 =
Date of grant RHAS 24 August 2017
“E-tENAZTHE
Exercise price per option BhEREARE HKS$1.410
HOET
Exercise period fies 24 August 2018 -
23 August 2022
“3-\§N\AZTEA
FF-FN\Azr=R
Held by a director B-2ESHE
Dr. Hua Dongyi E3 - 14,497,030 - - 14,497,030 -
Notes: Hist -
(i) The share options lapsed on 12 February 2017. 0) EEREIGR -_T—+t&-_A+-B%

>
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31 SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 31 BREE)
(b) Other Options (b) HEitEEmRE
The details of movements of the outstanding options of M 7N A B AR BB EL B B RE S 2 T RS 1T
the Company other than those issued by the Company E O ARD T AR ITE B R
under its share option schemes during the year ended BHE-_ZT—t+tF+A=+—HB1t
31 December 2017 are as follows: ERE BN
Weighted
Outstanding Options Options Options  OQutstanding average
options at granted exercised lapsed options at  closing price
1 January during during during 31 December  hbefore dates
2017 the year the year the period 2017 of exercise
RZB-t# RZB-t#
-A-H TZA=1-A

WAGE  FAREZ  ERTRZ  EARNZ WAE  RRRAZ
ZBRE BRE BRE BRE BRE METHUTE

HK$
BT
Mr. Erik D. Prince (Note (i) Brik D. Prince £ (22 () 205,115,657 - - — 205,115,657 =
Reorient Financial Market Limited RREBTAERAT
(“RFML") (Note (ii)) (REEBTRWE ) 22,790,628 = —  (22,790,628) - -
227,906,285 - — (22,790,628) 205,115,657

Notes: Hie# -

(i) These 205,115,657 options were issued on 3 December (i) 205,115,657 BEIRE IR =T —=4F
2013 and are exercisable for a five-year period from 3 +=-A=B%17 - E\Af?—:i‘f'fﬂ:ﬁ
December 2013 to 2 December 2018 at an exercise price 2T N\FE+_A_BHBEAUFIE A
2 SEHITE per enzre. HEE - FTEEASROTIBT -

(i) On 14 January 2014, option rights to subscribe up to (if) R-—E e A+mE . BEsEHE

22,790,628 new shares of the Company at an exercise
price of HK$0.80 per share were granted to RFML for the
settlement of the financial advisory service provided by
RFML with a fair value of HK$0.9003 per option. These

ERARTEESROBOEIRERS
22,790,628 [k AN A A ¥ AR 0 2 BE AR - 1F
AmREBMSMEHZ SRBRRE 2

option rights were lapsed on 14 January 2017. K- BOBEREZ QR EER0.9003%8
o ZEBREER T —tF—F1+WA

KA o
All outstanding other options were exercisable at 31 R=_ZE—tF+=_A=+—H FiEERX
December 2017 (2016: Same). No other options were TEZEMmEREST FIE(ZE—R
exercised during the year ended 31 December 2017 F AR BEZZE—tF+=-A=+—
(2016: Nil). BIEFE #SEHoBREETHECE

—NE fE) e
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32

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share award scheme on 10
December 2015. The share award scheme does not constitute
a share option scheme for the purpose of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules. The purposes and objectives of the share award
scheme are to recognise the contributions by Eligible Persons
(as defined in the share award scheme) and to provide
them with incentives in order to retain them for the continual
operation and development of the Group and to attract
personnel for further development of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, 1,137,000 shares
were granted to certain Eligible Persons under the share
award scheme (2016: 10,067,000 shares), 642,000 shares
were lapsed (2016: 857,000 shares) and 3,000,000 shares
were vested at 31 December 2017 (2016: 6,705,000 shares).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, based on the
recommendation of the Board of the Company, the trustee
of the share award scheme acquired 3,000,000 shares
(2016: 6,705,000 shares) of the Company in the market at an
aggregate amount of HK$4,269,000 (2016: HK$7,848,000)
for the share award scheme. At 31 December 2017, all these
3,000,000 shares (2016: 6,705,000 shares) were vested to the
Eligible Person and no share of the Company was held in trust
for the share award scheme by the trustee of the share award
scheme.

32 KROEBEE

ZIN/N —hAFtT-_ATHRA—
IEHM’J}ﬂ%EJJaJr%J RETRAUEI7TEM
5 B EEE A BB RS -
BOREFEZENRRENIAREAE
BRALT(EZ LR EBFE)MIEZE
Bl W TRENAREZEALRAEE
IRHBEEEREBERRN  TAREEZE
—FERESIAT -

REZE=FT—+tF+=-_A=+—HLHF
R *E}szﬂxfﬁﬁﬁba‘l‘%ﬂﬁ ST A E®K
A £ & H1,137,000(= & — %\E'
10,067,000 J&) %17 642,000 % (==

F 1 857,000/% ) I 15 B K%K &a,ooo,ooo
BROER=_FE—tF+=-—A=+—HE
B(=—Z—/ % : 6,705,000 f&P&D) -
HE - Z—+tF+-_F=+—HItF
EBEARARESTS2EBRES B
DERETEZZEARBKG ERBE R
5 A48 & %8 4,269,000/8 ;T (— T — /X
£ : 7,848,000/ Jt ) ¥ 153,000,000 A%
(ZZ — 7N % :6,705,0000% ) & R 7 %
HBeRZBE—+tF+=—A=+—8 " %%
3,000,000 & (=Z — 754 : 6,705,000 %)
ROEBHEBTEERALT  RIDEE
R B2 ZEARE BN SRR B2
ZEFEARFERRATRG °
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33 RESERVES 33 f#tE
Shares held Equity  Share-besed
Share forshare ~ Contributed ~ Exchange General instrument  compensation  Accumulated
premium  award scheme surplus Teserve feserve Teserve Teserve losses Total
HfekhER W%
REE  sEHZRR EaER EifE R ERIREE filEGE 2iiER it
HK$ 000 HK§'000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Fér 7AT 7AT FET Fér 7AT 7AT FET Fér
(Note (i)~ (Note 32) (Note (ii)) — (Note (i) (Note (iv)) (Note (v)) (ot (vi)
W) Wiz Wm) ) e W) (b))
At 1 January 2016 RZE-7~E-A-H 121,047 - 628,235 4,186 32,233 176,072 59,137 (617,115) 403,795
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - - (209816)  (209816)
Other comprehensive loss 2h2EEE
Foreign exchange differences Eiz8 - - - (21,338) - - - - (21,3%8)
Change Invalue of avaleble-for- ~ WtHEEREE,
sale financial assets (Note 21) BEER ) - - - = = (11,815) = = (11,815)
Realisation of equity instrument HETHLESHARK
reserve upon disposal of SRERTARR
avallable-for-sale financial
assets - - - - - (10910) - - (10910)
Other comprefensive loss for the year, EEEB2EER(RHE)
net o tax - - - ) - (m) - (M)
Total comprehensive loss for the year EE2AERESE - - - (21,338) - (22,725) - (209816)  (253879)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAA - = = (8.202) (19334) = = 19334 (8.202)
Transactions with equity holders ~ BEAEAALRS
Share-based compensation WA R - - - = = = 21477 = 21411
Exercise of share options fiRRE 5,583 = = = = = (1,880) = 365
Lapse of share opfions BRERH - - - - = = (1,863) 1,863 -
Shares acquired for share award ARG REAHEE 2R
scheme - (7.848) - - - - - - (7.848)
Vesting of shares under shere RERRERH2RERN
award scheme - 1,848 - - - - (7.810) (38) -
Symmetrical put and call option HRDERTELE = - - - = (6,963) = = (6,963)
5533 - - (8,202) (19,334) (6,963) 9,924 21,159 2117
At 31 December 2016 R-§-7E+ZR=1-A 126,580 - 626,235 (25,354) 12,699 146,384 69,061 (805,772) 162,033
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33 RESERVES (continued) 33 (&)

Shares held Equity  Share-based
Share for share ~ Contributed ~ Exchange General instrument compensation  Accumulated

premium award scheme surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses
iERf Whfrfiz
RiEE ERidoRf EdzH EXRA -fik  BEIERR ERER ZithE

HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
iz AL 7 -2 22 AL 7 -2 7AT
(Note (i)~ (Note 32) (Note (i)} (Note (i) (Note (iv)) (Note (v)) (ot (vi)
Wi W2z Wam ) E) mEy) (WEw)
At 1 January 2017 RZZ-tE-5-H 126,580 - 628,235 (25,354) 12,899 146,384 69,061 (805,772) 152,033
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - - (23760)  (223,760)
Other comprehensive incomeflloss) ~ Efi2EkE /(6%
Foreign exchange differences EiZE - - - 14,572 - - - - 14572
Change Invalue of avalleble-for- ~ WtHEEREE,
sale financial assets (Note 21) EEES (1) - - - - - (125) - - (125)
Realisation of equity instrument HETHLESHAEK
reserve upon disposal of BRRATAGR
avallable-for-sale financial
assets - - - - - (604) - - (604)
Other comprefensive incomef(loss) for £EEB2ENE/ (Ek)
the year, net of tax (B - - - 14572 - (729) - - 13843
Total comprehensive income(loss) for £E2ENE/ (B8
the yeer - - - um - 1) - T (g
Transfer to general reserves ERE-KRR - - - - 189 - - (189) -
Transactions with equity holders ~ EERERALRS
Issue of shares ikh 170,856 - - - - - - - 170,856
Share-based compensation WA zEE - - - - - - 10,880 - 10,880
Lapse of share options ElREXH - - - - - (20518) (1,50) 21,144 (879)
Shares acquired for share award ARG REAHEE 2R
scheme - (4,269) - - - - - - (4,269)
Vesting of shares under shere RERRERH2RERN
award scheme - 4,269 - - - - (3,096) (1173) -
Lapse of share award RiAEExN - - - - - - (425) 425 -
170856 - - - 9 @S S0 2T 1765
At 31 December 2017 it 5 e o 297,436 - 628,235 (10,782) 13,088 125,137 74915 (1,009,325) 118,704
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33 RESERVES (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The application of the share premium account is governed by
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

The contributed surplus of the Group arose from a scheme of
arrangement on 31 October 1989 and capital reorganisations
on 2 November 2001 and 18 December 2007. Pursuant to the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a company incorporated
in Bermuda is not permitted to pay dividends or make a
distribution out of the contributed surplus if there are reasonable
grounds for believing that the company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due;
or the realisable value of the company’s assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts.

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.4.

In accordance with the PRC regulations, each of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries is required to transfer not less than 10%
of its profit after tax, as determined in accordance with PRC
accounting standards and regulations, to the general reserve
until such reserve reaches 50% of its registered capital. The
quantum of the annual transfer is subject to the approval of the
board of directors of the PRC subsidiaries in accordance with
their articles of association.

The equity instrument reserve represents:

(a) the fair value of the option rights granted for the
acquisition of FSL on 3 December 2013;

(b) the fair value of the option rights granted to RFML on 14
January 2014 to subscribe up to 22,790,628 new shares
of the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.80 per
share for the settlement of the financial advisory service
provided by RFML; and

(c) the fair value of the right derived from the symmetrical
put and call option agreement amounted to HK$7,546,000
(2016: HK$6,963,000) signed by FSL on 3 February
2016 to purchase the remaining 49% equity interest in
Maleth at an option price ranging between EUR1,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$8,190,000) and
EUR10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$81,895,000). The respective liability was recorded in
other long-term liabilities on the consolidated statement
of financial position.

The share-based compensation reserve represents the fair
value of the unexercised share options granted under the
Company’s share option schemes and the fair value of the share
award granted under the Company’s share award scheme to
the eligible participants recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in Note 2.20(b).
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NCIAI AL STATEMENTS

33 i (4@)

wisz -

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

BmaERCERRBRE-NN—FA
EZER e

REBZEHBBTDE RN —NLNNE+
A=+ —BZREAE RN =TT —F+—
AZHM-ZZLE+-A+N\HZEFRE
AMEE - BEARE-NN\—FRAE
REREEMKLZ A BE TRIERTTF
IR EHE BHBRTIEL DK - AR
WEMBEARARARNKERB ARG EHA
BERBEERBIMAEY - HEMRRAEZA
BRESEWENEEE BEITBRARRE
DEBERZ B -

FER R EEERBIIEBM BRI EESL
ZHBEREZRE - ZREBIRBEME2.45H
S e R EIE -

BRETEER - AEBEXFEMER RS
DR 10% 2 B B 148 A (G B & 5+ 4 8
MEREE)BE—RER BEE%FHBL
REEEEMEARZ50% B - GFER
RBARARAZTHENBERAR < EFGIBRE
HAMSRAEAHAE -

T ARBRR
(a) R-ZE—=F+=-A=BAztMKEFSL

Rz gz AR EE

(b) R-ZE—MFE—A+HBAETHRS
BB A R ER0.808 T 2 1TEE
M\B%?yzzwoazsﬂxz:s Ik
NZEEZ AR EE  UXAHES
BB IRM 2 M BERREE &

(c) FSLR=ZZ—R"F-A=HFZH
BRAORREDEBRAANENR
1,000,000 X 7t (48 & 7 47 8,190,000
7 JT ) & 10,000,000 7T(M & R
#781,895,000 74 7T ) 2z Hf # (B UK &
Maleth # T 49% f% 75 # &5 & £ 2 %
Fl 2 RN # {B{E7,546,000/8 T( =&
— /N :6,963,000/8L)c BRIA
BERERE MBI R AEMRIE

f& o

PARS £33z 15 2 #8 (B % 8 45 1R BR P £ 2.20(b)
5| & 5t BURAR B 1 R HY BB IR M =T &) o R
RARD SRR B TR 2 A ER2E
EZARETEERERRDEBHZAAE
&
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34
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NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

34 FEKREDS

2017 2016

—E—tF —T— R

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

At 1 January Hn—HB—H 123,528 116,250
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 13)  WHEIE AR (f777 13) — 6,960
Share of results FE(EZ4E 658 330
Exchange differences EHER 81 (12)
At 31 December R+t=—A=+—H 124,267 123,528

Non-controlling interests include, inter alia, an amount of
US$15,000,000 (equivalent to HK$116,250,000) preference
shares issued by DVN (Group) Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, on 31 March 1999. The
preference shareholder has the right at any time starting from
1 July 2000 to exchange all (but not part) of the preference
shares into 31,250,000 ordinary shares of the Company at
an exchange price which has been subsequently adjusted to
HK$3.72 per share, pursuant to the Company’s announcement
dated 28 September 2006. The Company has the right, at its
discretion, to request the preference shareholder to exercise
his exchange right to exchange all (but not part) of the
preference shares into the Company’s ordinary shares at the
exchange price at any time from 1 July 2000, provided that
the average of the closing prices of the Company’s ordinary
shares for the 20 consecutive trading days ending on the
trading day immediately preceding the date of giving notice of
such compulsory exchange is not less than HK$10 per share.

FE1E R = B2 (A R B 1E) 15,000,000
FE T (M 116,250,000/ 7T) 2 AR
a2 BB AR DVN (Group) Limited A
—ANANE=ZA=1+—HRBTZEL
i e RZZTEZTF+ H— BIREMRER
BRI E A G2 (MIESDD)E LR
BB R IR A 7] 31,250,000 % B A%
(BEARAR=ZZEFEFNLA=F+/\AB
Tz A SBECREEAZRZER
372%TL)  c R_ZEZEZEFLA—HEME
AR - WARA Rz @Rz FHRME
REBEEB2EZHHBHIBBEZHIIRS
Altz20@BER S B NMERTR105B
T AREIBEREEREERBRTE
RIE - KR (MIERD)BELRIZR
BR|ARNRZ LB -
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35 CASH USED IN OPERATIONS

The reconciliation of loss for the year to cash used in

operations is as follows:

35 BEMAZEAE

FEPRRLEMAZRS ZHRET

2017 2016
—E—tE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Loss for the year FEEE (223,102) (209,486)
Adjustments for FHEIEH
Income tax (credit)/expenses FTie®i (Ee) Fx (9,955) 910
Interest expenses F B H 18,213 23,329
Depreciation e 29,153 31,221
Engine overhaul cost SIZRIEK A 8,214 11,570
Amortisation of prepaid operating FENEERORS REREE
lease rentals and intangibles g 6,222 2,894
Share-based compensation LARR 19 1+ 2 Fi (8 10,880 21,477
Provision for impairment of trade B 5 FE W R IE [ H fth fE W sk IE
receivables and other receivables SR 1B B 9,379 853
Provision for impairment of GFEZRERE
inventories 56 1,597
Provision for impairment of goodwill HEREMEREE
and other intangibles BB 9,000 9,970
Provision for impairment of Y% - B REREARFED
property, plant and equipment EEEZRERE  FH
and assets held for sale, net 23,633 17,362
Gain on disposal of available-for- HEAHREESMEE Z WS
sale financial assets (592) (10,712)
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME BEREREZ
plant and equipment (Note (i)) FEEAEE ) 4,348 3,631
Net loss on disposal of assets held HERELEEE 2 FER
for sales 118 —
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE M B A Rz W
(Note (iii)) (H1 2 (iii)) — (16,968)
Provision for impairment of interest R—REERNRZERZ
in an associate VIR L] 3,228 —
Change in fair value of derivative MESBMAREZ
financial liabilities AR EEEE (1,851)

Interest income F B A (9,463) (13,857)
Share of loss of associates FEAG B & N B 518 2,859 561
Exchange differences ] (5,165) (3,610)

Changes in working capital EEESEE
Inventories EE (5,160) 1,864
Trade receivables, prepayments, B S RYGRIE - ENR - Ee
deposits and other receivables T H At W SR IE (44,263) (28,822)
Trade payables, other payables B S RIE - HibERRIEAE
and accruals KM ERT & A 55,868 (5,572)
Cash used in operations LEMACZRE (118,380) (161,788)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

35 CASH USED IN OPERATIONS (continued) 35 EEMAZEE®E)
Notes: Bist
(i) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from (i) RIZABEERERT  HEWHE « BBERE
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise: B2 FRERIEA -
2017 2016
—B—tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net carrying amount (Note 14) BREDFE (Mt 14) 30,077 15,394
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HEWHE  KBERREL
and equipment (Note 10) FBE (K 10) (4,348) (3,631)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant H&E% - #28 KR ESHE
and equipment 25,729 11,763
(i) There were no major non-cash transaction for the years ended (i) BE-_Z—tFE_F—R"Ft+=-A=1+—

31 December 2017 and 2016. HIEFETEEMNEEFRERS -
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35 CASH USED IN OPERATIONS (continued) 35 EEfAZRE@)

Notes: (continued) B - (%)

(iii)  On 23 May 2016, the Group completed the disposal of the entire (i) RZZBE—R"FREA=+=8 ' xEEEZEX
interest in Amazing View Limited. The effect on the financial & Amazing View Limited 2 2 &z °
position, the total consideration received and gain on the BE-Z—ANE+=-A=+—HIEE ¥
disposal for the year ended 31 December 2016 were as follows: BRARR Y 2 - WEL Y AR E R E U2

T
2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
FAET
Consideration received, after settlement  EUWHRE @ MBKREERAE BERAEHARE
of cost, fees and expenses 250,009
Net assets disposed of: BHEEEFE :
Short-term deposit EEITF R 2,280
Prepayments, deposits and other FER R - RE R E MW FRIE
receivables 161,028
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 85,286
Other payables and accruals HEM A RIERETEA 2
248,592
Release of exchange reserves bE N E R 8,202
Reimbursement of expenses A 32 ¥R 88 7,349
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 10) H&EHM B R R 2 WAzt 10) 16,968
Tax expenses RIERA X (16,703)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net of tax & MTE R 72 Wz (BRE1Z) 265
Satisfied by: AT AR
Consideration received, after settlement  BWRE - MIREEKAE - BAKRAZE
of cost, fees and expenses 250,009
Liabilities released B aE (160,211)
Cash and cash equivalent disposed of HERERREEEY (85,286)
Tax paid BAHE (16,703)
Reimbursement of expenses 7 3 RN 7.349
Net cash outflow FRREME (4,842)
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36 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT 36 AERIREE
LIABILITIES
(a) Operating Lease Commitments as a Lessor (a) REBENELEUEREEAN)
The Group leases its leasehold properties and hangars 2N 5 [E AR 4R A A 8H 4 A 4D 1
under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. THEARSYERRE - HEAHG6
The lease terms are ranging from 6 to 35 years, and the FEIBFIE - REbHENHZEA
majority of the lease agreements are renewable at the AR ERfE R R T B AR AT o

end of the lease periods at market rate.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had total commitments RZE—+tF+=ZA=+—H' ' &
receivable under the non-cancellable operating leases SEREBETBELCEAOES 2
as follows: FEWAAIEBERLAT ¢
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Not later than 1 year DR—F 8 687
Later than 1 year but not later ~ —FLBERFURA
than 5 years 35 32
Later than 5 years HEAE 323 333
366 1,052
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36 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT 36 AERIAEE D)
LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Operating Lease Commitments as a Lessee (b) REBHNREUEREEAN)

AEERBREMENRHFERES
THRE BIBEERBARME -
RZZE—+F+=_A=+—H =K
SERBETARBELLHEOANK
X2 RIEHSEFENT ¢

2017 2016
—EB—tF —E—RF

The Group leases certain of its offices, staff quarters and
office equipment under operating lease arrangements.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases as follows:

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Land and buildings T3 RIEF
Not later than 1 year DR—F 24,649 16,278
Later than 1 year but not —FURBRERAFIURN
later than 5 years 62,260 44,770
Later than 5 years RFEAE 21,715 3,948
108,624 64,996
Office equipment WRRE
Not later than 1 year DR —F 1,841 739
Later than 1 year but not —FURBRERAFIUAR
later than 5 years 3,492 1,110
5,333 1,849
Total 5t
Not later than 1 year PR —F 26,490 17,017
Later than 1 year but not —FUARBRERAFIUR
later than 5 years 65,752 45,880
Later than 5 years AFEAE 21,715 3,948
113,957 66,845
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36 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Capital Expenditure Commitments

The Group’s material capital expenditure contracted for
as at 31 December 2017 but not yet incurred were as
follows:

36

EERBREE )
(c) EXREXZAERE
AEER-T—+tF+-A=+—

HETHWBHAEE 2BEABARH
SR UNNE

2016
—E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHETT FAET
Purchase of land-use-rights BB B i (F A 35,889 —
Financial Commitments (d) BIisAE
The Group did not have any significant financial AREER=ZZE—tF+-_A=+—
commitments at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil). A EERMEANRBEECEZ—N
F|) o
Contingent Liabilities (e) HAEE

The Group, in the ordinary course of its business, is
involved in various claims, suits, investigations, and
legal proceedings that arise from time to time. Although
the Group does not expect that the outcome in any of
these legal proceedings, individually or collectively,
will have a material adverse effect on its financial
position or results of operations, litigation is inherently
unpredictable. Therefore, the Group could incur
judgements or enter into settlements of claims that
could adversely affect its operating results or cash flows
in a particular period.

At 31 December 2017, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company has issued a fixed and
floating debenture on all the assets of this subsidiary
as securities for its banking facilities of US$3,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$23,454,000)
(2016: US$3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$23,268,000)) provided by a bank to a customer as
a guarantee against the subsidiary’s potential failure to
meet litigation to complete the services. At 31 December
2017, the bank has issued guarantees of US$1,322,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$10,335,000)
(2016: US$1,420,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$11,014,000)) under this arrangement.

AEBEEREXRBBREPTE SR
BEHEHR FA HERERE
Foe@BEARBEY NEREMZSE
EREFNER(ENNER) KBS
HEBBARIBEREEREKX
THFE  MHFRRERIEATRR
Sl $%@YAE£{ REHIRK
2 PR 155 % 1 T BE 3 H 4 E AR
Faﬁﬁ@%%%%%ﬁﬁiﬁ@iﬁ%iﬁﬁ$ﬂ

=7
=

EC_“*‘E¢+_H_+*EI VN

NElZ—REEZENBRARDH
ZHWBRAIZEMEERITTESR
&% B &% - £ 43,000,000 T

(F8 = % 4923,454,00058 7L ) (= =
— 7N £F 1 3,000,000 3 ST (#1 & R 4
23,268,000 7T )) Z RITHLE 2 &
R ZEREHHRITH— %%
BRI EAZRKBARH
BITERRG 2 EEZER-
T—+F+=—A=+—8" .:%Eﬂ
BRI B 2 BE B AR 1,322,000
7T (R % 10,335,000 7T) (=
T — N ¢ 1,420,000 T(HEER
#911,014,000387T)) °
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37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

37

(a) Transactions with Related Parties

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries,
which are related parties to the Company, have been
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in
this note. In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group entered into the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

Receipt of consultancy services
from
A company owned by a
director of the Company
(Note (i)
A company owned by
a director of certain
subsidiaries (Note (ii))
Payment of rental expenses of
leasehold property to
A company owned by 3
directors of a subsidiary
(Note (iii))
Receipt of rental income of
leaseholder property from
A company owned by 3
directors of a subsidiary
(Note (iii))

Provision of logistics services to

Companies owned by
a director of certain
subsidiaries (Note (iv))

B AT A R E 2 R RS

ARAR—REEZHEEZAT
(HtEE (i)

ETHEBARZ —REXHES
ZAE(HEE (i)

MATARSFZHENEZ
HeE&H
—SXMBRARZ=R2EFHEE

ZNa (K7 (i)

BUTARKEIZHEWMEZ
HE WA
— R BRRIZ=REEHE
Z AR (KB (i)

AETHEBARZ —2E=
BE2ZRARRER
AR (B2 (iv)

EXBBALRS

(a)

BEBALRS

AR EEME AR (RN R R
ALIZHAZRZFEREAERET A
HiH - BYERAMERE - R
ZEFAMBRREMM WEZ
RHREHIN FR AEEBE
TTATERBBALRS

2017 2016
—E—t% —EAE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHAT FHATE
1,557 5,950

70 1,428

597 1,097

9 16

618 2,462

All the transactions were negotiated with related parties
on normal commercial terms or in accordance with the
agreements governing those transactions.

Notes:

(i On 8 April 2014, FSL entered into a service agreement

with Frontier Opportunities Limited (“FOL”),

a company

wholly owned by Mr. Erik D. Prince, pursuant to which
FOL would provide FSL certain business development
services, strategic guidance, and project sourcing
and management services for a term of 3 years from 8
April 2014 to 7 April 2017. During the year ended 31
December 2017, service fee of US$200,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,557,000) (2016: US$757,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$5,950,000)) were
incurred to FOL in accordance with the terms of the
service agreement, which expired on 8 April 2017.
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HEBMALZAERS  HR—RK
BEGREN  IRBREZER
5 2 AT

Bt

(i) R=-—ZT— WM™ A/N\H - FSLE
Frontier Opportunities Limited
([FOLJ : Erik D. Princeft £ 2 &
HHZ AT MRS - KUt -
FOL # mFSL 1R & T % 75 3 & IR
% - SREEIE S| A R IA B HAE R E 12 ik
¥ BT NFNANARECZ
T +tFMNAEHIEAH=F &
E_ZT—+H+-_A=+—HBItE
E - IRIBERIS R 2 GRERFOL EAE
200,000 %7t (FH5 R 47 1,557,000 7
JL)(=ZF — 7 F : 757,000 7T (4
Z R #75,950,000870)) 2 IR7E &
ZREHER —_E—+tFMANBE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
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37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(a)

Transactions with Related Parties (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(iii)

This represents consultancy fee of US$9,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$70,000) (2016: US$184,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,428,000)) made by
the Group to D Barak Consulting Limited, a company
wholly owned by a director of certain subsidiaries,
for consultancy services provided to the Group in
accordance with the terms of the related consultancy
agreement.

Prior to the acquisition of PAL, PAL entered into a lease
agreement on 2 March 2014 with Quadco Two Hundred
and Seventy Seven Limited (“Quadco”, a company wholly
owned by three directors of PAL), pursuant to which PAL
would lease its leasehold property, Phoenix House, to
Quadco for a term of 35 years from 2 March 2014 to 31
May 2049 at an annual rent of (i) KES104,300 (equivalent
to approximately HK$9,000) for the period from 2 March
2014 to 1 June 2019; (ii) KES135,590 (equivalent to
approximately HK$12,000) for the period from 2 June
2019 to 1 June 2034; and (iii)) KES176,267 (equivalent
to approximately HK$16,000) for the period from 2 June
2034 to 31 May 2049.

On 2 March 2014, Quadco also entered into a sub-lease
agreement with PAL to sublease a portion of Phoenix
House to PAL for a term of 6 years from 1 May 2014 to 30
April 2020 at an annual rent of (i) US$72,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$558,000) for the period from 1
May 2014 to 30 April 2016; (i) US$75,600 (equivalent to
approximately HK$586,000) for the period from 1 May
2016 to 30 April 2018; and (iii) US$79,380 (equivalent to
approximately HK$616,000) for the period from 1 May
2018 to 30 April 2020.

37 EXBBALXREZ#)

(a)

BMALRS(#E)

Bt

(if)

(iii)

(%)

U AR R 55 B U AR $5 48 B R R 175
RFRIR M T AR & B 2 B RS AR 7% M 1w
D Barak Consulting Limited (—Z
HETHBRARIz —REZ2EHER
Z AR XAz R 9,000 % T (18
Z£R#70,0008 L) (ZF—RF :
184,000 & 7T (FHE X 49 1,428,000 &
L)) °

U BE Bl R A ZE AT B A 2R
—ET-WE=A=H EEiQuadco
Two Hundred and Seventy Seven
Limited ([Quadcol * — R B Bl &
MEZ=ZREZL2EHAZALA)
RIVHEERZE - Rt BREMER
i 78 H 7 & ¥ % Phoenix House ¥
Quadco * B —T—ME=/=
HEE-_ZMAFAA=+—HI
RESBF  FHER()ZT—NF=
AZBZE=ZZF—hF A —BHMH
104,300 5 /B 35 55 = (HHE R 499,000
BIL) (I =FE—NAFAAZHE=
T=MFA—HBHH 1355905 B
HELS(HEZERK12,0008E7T) i &
(i =F=WFEAZHE=ZMA
FRA=1+—HHRH 176,267 5B
2 (FFRH 16,000 7T) °

R=ZZ—MNF=A=H ' Quadco i
BB EMZET LB - AREER
fifl 2= 8 78 #f {9 Phoenix House ' B
—E-NEFRA-—HRBRE=-ZT=F
FHA=Z+BHIEREAFE FHA
() =FE—mMFRA—BE=ZZ—~
FM A=+ A/ 72,000 % T (HHE
R #1558,000# L) i (i) =T —"F
hA—HBEZZT— N\FHWA=+HEH
il 75,600 3 7T (48 % 1 41 586,000

7T R(i) —E—N\FRA—BE—
T _TFNA=+HEM79,380%
Tt (B #4)616,00087T) °
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sapRERmE N

37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(a) Transactions with Related Parties (continued)
Notes: (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, rental income
of KES104,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$9,000)
(2016: KES209,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$16,000)) was earned from Quadco and rental
expenses of US$76,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$597,000) (2016: US$141,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,097,000)) were incurred to Quadco
in accordance with the terms of the lease agreement and
the sub-lease agreement respectively.

(iv) It represents the provision of logistics services by TFF to
certain companies owned by a director of TFF during the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

(v) The related party transactions in respect of notes (i), (iii)
and (iv) above, also constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

(b) Details of Key Management Compensation of the
Group

37

EREBMALRES @)

(a)

(b)

BBMALRS (&)
Mt : ()

(iv)

HE-_T—tHF+-A=+—HL
FE REAEHEREARHZ
{& 3% # Quadco FT iR B 2 1 & W A
KB QuadcoFTELEZH S EA D
A A104,0005 fE 28 56 2 (FAE R 4
9,000/ 7t ) (= F — /X & : 209,000
BRREE<(EERL 16,0008 7T))
%2.76,000 % 7T (46 & 7 49 597,000 7%
TLI(ZZF — N4 : 141,000 7t (48
Z4491,097,000587T)) °

IREKRTFF REE-Z—+HER=-F
—ANF+ZA=+—BLEFERTFF
—ZEEHRAZETRARREDRR
f;g °

A B £ ST ) ~ (i) B (iv) 2 B8 B

AL R B IEK BER 5 5 B =
R (EHREMHRAUE14AE) ©

FEBETEEEASHEFE

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Short-term employee benefits EHEERT 21,265 18,591
Post-employment benefits BEE R R A 212 268
Share-based compensation VAR S 4+t 2 W (8 8,875 18,989
Termination benefits BB A2 A - 963
30,352 38,811

The directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief
Financial Officer and the Chief Operating Officer of
the Company are regarded as the key management
personnel of the Group.
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NOTES 70 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

37 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37 EXBEBMALRG(#E)
(continued)
(c) Year-End Balances Arising from Sales/Purchases (c) A#E RERREEBREMELZ
and Services Rendered FRER
2017 2016
—E—+t& —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEITL
Trade receivables Z 5 WG IE
A company owned by 3 —XMBRARIZ=REEHE
directors of a subsidiary Z—RAHE] — 18
Companies owned by ETHEBRRIZ —REEHE
a director of certain ZERRAT
subsidiaries 890 385
Trade payables 2 S ENHRIE
A company owned by 3 —ZXWBRARIZ=REEHR
directors of a subsidiary Z—KAA — 6
(d) Other Year-End Balances (d) EHEFRELR
2017 2016
—g—tf Bt S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Prepayments, deposits and AR~ e RHEMEIRIE
other receivables
Companies owned by ETHBARIZ —REEHER
a director of certain 2 %K AA]
subsidiaries — 7,559
An associate —REEE QA 12,799 4,846
Other payables and accruals H fth S R IE K FERT B A
A related company of a ARB—HEEHE 2 — K@
director of the Company NGH — 1,649
Associates Z R E N A 7,036 6,962
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38

EVENTS AFTER THE FINANCIAL POSITION
DATE

Exercise of Share Options

On 9 January 2018, Mr. Erik D. Prince, the chairman of the
Company, exercised his right to subscribe 50,000,000 share
options, out of his total share options of 102,557,828 at an
exercise price of HK$1.50 per share which were granted
to him on 10 January 2014 under the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 28 March 2012. The total
proceeds of approximately HK$75,000,000 resulted from the
exercise of share options were received by the Company.
The remaining unexercised share options of 52,557,828 at
an exercise price of HK$1.50 were subsequently expired and
lapsed on 10 January 2018.

Subscription of Shares

On 2 March 2018, the Company entered into three separate
subscription agreements with three subscribers, namely
Easy Flow Investment Limited (“Easy Flow”), Taiping
Trustees Limited and Trinity Gate Limited (together as
the “Subscribers”), pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to allot and issue to the Subscribers,
and the Subscribers has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for up to a total of 640,000,000 subscription shares at the
subscription price of HK$1.30 each, amounting to total gross
proceeds of no more than approximately HK$832 million. As
Easy Flow is a substantial shareholder of the Company and
a connected person of the Company. The subscription of
shares by Easy Flow constitutes a connected transaction for
the Company under the Listing Rules and is subject to the
reporting, announcement and Independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 2
March 2018 for more information.

Except as disclosed above and elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Group did not have any other material events
occurred subsequent to the financial position date.
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TREERE

R=ZZF—N\F—ANA ' NAQFEEErk
D. Prince t £ 1T E =K 1.508 T1T
FRBEARBDNR-_ZE——FE=F=+/\H
Rz BRETEN —_E—NE—A+H
M1 3% 2 BB AR A 48 21 102,557,828 15 FF
250,000,000 {7 i x4 2 REEHER] o X
RIFLRZ AT E B B W ER AT 13 SR IB ARS8 4y
75,000,000 7T ° #R1T{EE 1.50 & TR
ZHZERTARITEERMES2,557,828 (H H
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RBR G

MR-oE—N\E=A=0 AAFE=%2
BA BHEEERARTRD]) - KF
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
EUMBHRRME

39 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39 A EHMBEARRE
COMPANY
2017 2016
—E—+E ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEITL
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BBERERE — 130
Intangibles EmILEE 1,350 1,350
Interests in subsidiaries R B ARz 433,272 324,942
Total non-current assets SEMBEEERE 434,622 326,422
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TR e REMEIKRIE
receivables 1,507 2,335
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESREE - 1,281
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 11,947 13,811
Total current assets mBEERE 13,454 17,427
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals L th FE < 58 K B AT B F 14,357 10,596
Bank loans RITER 112,875 —
Total current liabilities BB ERE 127,232 10,596
Net current (liabilities)/assets nE(BE) EEFE (113,778) 6,831
Total assets less current liabilities/ BEERRSAR,
Net assets BEFE 320,844 333,253
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to the Company’s AR AR EA ABEREZ
equity holders
Share capital N 144,970 123,370
Reserves (Note (i) (A () 175,874 209,883
Total equity B 320,844 5213, 253
Signed on behalf of the Board on 26 March 2018 by RRESEN=ZE—\F=ZA=+B%
=
Erik D. Prince Hua Dongyi
ER—
Director Director
2 E2

Annual Report 2017 &R



,-""::’

NTS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED HyQNiﬁAT. STATEME
:-v_\éﬂji%ﬁﬁmqﬁi ‘k, 2

39 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39 ADTHMBEMRRTE)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note: Yoz
(i) Reserves movements of the Company (i) QTR EEE
Shares
held for
share Equity Share-based
Share award Contributed instrument  compensation  Accumulated
premium scheme surplus reserve reserve losses Total
RERG A% Z
RivaE  REHEER EARS  BEIERE fERRE ZitER &t
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAT FAL AL FAL FAL AL
At 1 January 2016 R=5-~"§-A-B 121,047 - 558,899 176,072 50,137 (250,853) 664,302
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - (447,740) (447 740)
Other comprehensive loss Eh2EER
Change in value of available-for- ~ ARHESHEEY
sale financial assets EEZE - - - (11,815) - — (11,815)
Realisation of equity instrument HETHIESRERY
reserve upon disposal of SRERIARR
available-for-sale financial
assets - — — (10,910) — — (10,910)

Other comprehensive loss for the year, EE £t 2 MR (B 5%
net of tax - — — (22,725) — — (22,725)

Total comprehensive loss for the year £E2EBRER - - - (22,725) - (447,740) (470,465)

Transactions with equity holders HEFHEALRS

Share-based compensation WRBE 2 HE - = = = 21477 = 21477
Exercise of share options fIERmRE 5533 — — = (1,880) = 3,653
Lapse of share options BREAN - - - - (1,863) 627 (1,236)
Shares acquired for share award ARG R EEER(R

scheme - (7,848) — - - - (7,848)

Vesting of shares under share RERR B 2SRRA
award scheme - 7,848 - - (7,810) (38) -
5,533 — — — 9,924 589 16,046
At 31 December 2016 R=E-AEt=A=1-H 126,580 — 558,899 153,347 69,061 (698,004) 209,883
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39 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39 AQTHBEMRRTE)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note: (continued) Hiat - (&)

(i)  Reserves movements of the Company (continued) (i) ARARDREEH(E)

Shares
held for
share Equity  Share-based
Share award Contributed instrument  compensation  Accumulated
premium scheme surplus reserve reserve losses
KR HRHZA
KiEE  ZEHHzRH BfER  EEIARG JHERE 2i
HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000
FE7 i 22 FE7 i FEr FE7
At 1 January 2017 R=8-tf-A-R 126,580 - 558,899 153,347 69,061 (698,004) 209,883
Loss for the year FEFE - - - - - (208,817) (208,817)
Other comprehensive loss Afh2ERE
Change in value of available-for- RHESHAEY
sale financial assets [EEET - - - (125) - - (125)
Realisation of equity instrument HETRIESREER
reserve upon disposal of SRR ARE
available-for-sale financial
assets - - - (604) - - (604)
Other comprehensive logs for the year, £ £t 2 EEE(RHE)
net of tax - - - (729) - - (729)
Total comprehensive loss for the year £E2EFEAE - - - (729) - (208,817) (209,546)
Transactions with equity holders REFHEALRS
Issue of shares BIRG 170,856 - - - - - 170,856
Share-based compensation DRAXAZRE - - - - 10,343 - 10,343
Lapse of share options BREXT - - - (20,518) (879) 20,518 (879)
Shares acquired for share award AR R HBEE 2R/ H
scheme - (4,269) - - - - (4,269)
Vesting of shares under share RERHZBTESERS
award scheme - 4,269 - - (3,096) (1,173) -
Lapse of share award TRt REK - - - - (514) - (514)
170,856 - - (20,518) 5,854 19,345 175,537
At 31 December 2017 RZE-t5+-A=1-R 297,436 - 558,899 132,100 74,915 (887,476) 175,874
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY ., p
LFEMBEHRE '

The consolidated results, and assets and liabilities of the Group for NEBRBEDFEMBRERE 2 GEEX2E  BENEB

M=

the last five financial years are summarised below. BT o
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—tF —E—RF —ZT—0F —ZE—F —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEIT FEIT FETT
Results E4
Loss/(profit) attributable to: LA T AL EIGEE (i
)
Equity holders of the ENNGIL EESE SN
Company 223,760 209,816 142,920 130,440 182,227
Non-controlling interests e RS (658) (330) — 532 168
223,102 209,486 142,920 130,972 182,395
Assets and liabilities EERAE
Total assets BEME 884,177 912,467 1,349,713 1,400,773 886,278
Total liabilities B s (496,236) (513,536) (706,718) (580,565) (130,612)
Non-controlling interests ISt £od (124,267) (123,528) (116,250) (116,250) (116,782)
Equity attributable to the RARERTFEA
Company’s equity holders R (263,674) (275,403) (526,745) (7083,958) (638,884)

208 Frontier Services Group Limited 452 ARF5 4 B AR A 7
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